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To Our Stockholders:

TriQuint Semiconductor is recognized as the innovation leader in radio frequency (RF) solutions for
wireless communications. Recent technology and new product investments have reached the revenue
growth phase and our unique product strategy, including high volume active, passive and module
capability, has positioned us as the partner of choice for a wide diversity of communications platforms.

While our revenue decreased approximately 6% in 2005 compared to 2004, we finished the year with a
strong second half as new products displace old — over 50% of our revenue was generated from products
introduced in 2004 and 2005. In 2005, our focus was improved financial performance and strategic
positioning for growth. Net income, including discontinued operations, increased to $4.0 million for
2005, resulting in a profit of $0.03 per diluted share, compared to a net loss of $29.1 million, $0.21 per
diluted share, in 2004, We generated $14.4 million in positive cash flow from operating activities. Qur

balance sheet remains healthy with cash and short and long term marketable securities of

$406.7 million. TriQuint’s cash and investments, net of our convertible notes, increased $23.7 million in
2005 compared to 2004.

Our largest market opportunity is the GSM/GPRS/EDGE wireless handset market and the follow on
data driven third generation (3G) market. Our revenue from products for GSM/GPRS/EDGE handsets
increased 69% in 2005 compared to 2004. We gained share as our revenue grew much faster than this
market. We successfully launched a complete RF solution for the growing 3G multi-band
WCDMA/EDGE (WEDGE) market meeting our strategic objective of being an innovator in this
important future opportunity. We remain one of the most diversified RF product providers. Our base
station product revenue was up 2% in 2005 compared to 2004, representing approximately 21% of our
total revenues. Our revenues from broadband and military applications represent approximately 21%
and 15% of our total revenues, respectively. Building on our technology strength TriQuint Semiconductor
won a major award from DARPA focused on gallium nitride (GaN) development for
high power, wide bandwidth RF amplification worth potentially $30 million over 5 years.

We remain committed to our goal of “connecting the digital world to the global network.” The world of
wireless communication remains one of the most exciting markets available and is a significant
opportunity for the investors anc employees of TriQuint Semiconductor. The TriQuint team looks forward
to the challenges of 2006 and I am confident they will stay the course of profitable growth and
financial srrrece
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- Ralph G. Quinsey,
JUN 3 ﬁ{ 2”@ President and Chief Executive Officer
‘ @ ‘ TriQuint Semiconductor, Inc.
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TriQuint Semiconductor, Inc. is a leading supplier of high-performance components and modules for
communication applications. We sell our products into four major end markets: wireless handsets, broadband, base
stations and military.

Revenue by End Market* Revenue by Geographic Region*

Asia
47 %

Broadband Wireless Handsets United States
21% 43% 32%

Canada, Mexico

Military Base Station and South America

15% 21% 5% Europe
16%
Revenue from Wireless Handset Consolidated Annual Revenues
Products by Air Interface Past 4 Years
Standard* ($ Million)
400+
GSM CDMA 3001
21% 78 %
200+
1004 |
0+

2002 2003 2004 2005

*Based on revenue for the year ended December 31, 2005.




TriQuint @
SEMICONDUCTOR

April 13, 2006

Dear Stockholders:

Our 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders will be held on Wednesday, May 24, 2006, at 4:00 p.m.,
Pacific time, at our headquarters facility located at 2300 NE Brookwood Parkway, Hillsboro, Oregon
97124. You are invited to attend this meeting to give us an opportunity to meet you personally and to allow
us to introduce to you the key management and members of the board of directors of our company.

Thej‘ formal notice of meeting, the proxy statement, the proxy card and a copy of the Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005 are enclosed.

I hope that you will be able to attend the meeting in person. Whether or not you plan to attend, please
sign and return the enclosed proxy card promptly. A prepaid reply envelope is provided for this purpose.
You may also vote electronically via the Internet or by telephone. Please see “Questions and Answers about
the Proxy and the Annual Meeting” and the attached proxy card for further details. Your shares will be
voted at the meeting in accordance with your proxy regardless of the voting method used.

If you have shares in more than one name, or if your stock is registered in more than one way, you may
receive multiple copies of the proxy materials. If so, please sign and return each proxy card you receive so
that all of your shares may be voted. 1 look forward to meeting you at the annual meeting.

Very truly yours,

TRIQUINT SEMICONDUCTOR, INC.

™

RALPH G. QUINSEY
President and Chief Executive Officer
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TRIQUINT SEMICONDUCTOR, INC.
NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

Wednesday, May 24, 2006
4:00 p.m. (Pacific time)

TO OUR STOCKHOLDERS:

The 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of TriQuint Semiconductor, Inc., a Delaware corporation
(“TriQuint,” “we,” “us” or “our company”), will be held on Wednesday, May 24, 2006, at 4:00 p.m., Pacific
time, at 2300 NE Brookwood Parkway, Hillsboro, Oregon 97124, for the following purposes:

‘1. To elect seven directors to serve until the next annual meeting of stockholders or until their
' successors are duly elected and qualified;

2. | To ratify the audit committee’s appointment of KPMG LLP as TriQuint’s independent registered
: public accounting firm for the year ending December 31, 2006; and

3. . To transact such other business as may properly come before the annual meeting, including any
 motion to adjourn to a later date to permit further s011c1tat10n of pr0x1es if necessary, or before
+ any adjournment thereof. :

The\ foregoing items of business are more fully described in the proxy statement accompanying this
notice. Stockholders who owned shares of our common stock at the close of business on Wednesday,
March 22, 2006, are entitled to attend and vote at the annual meeting. A complete list of these stockholders
will be available during normal business hours for 10 days prior to the meeting at our headquarters located
at 2300 NE Brookwood Parkway, Hillsboro, Oregon 97124. A stockholder may examine the list for any
legally valid purpose relating to the meeting. The list will also be available during the annual meeting for
inspection by any stockholder present at the meeting.

Whether or not you plan to attend the annual meeting, please complete, sign, date and return the
enclosed proxy card as promptly as possible in the accompanying reply envelope. You may also vote
electromcally via the Internet or by telephone. For specific 1nstruct10ns please refer to the information
prowded w1th your proxy card.

For the Board of Directors of
TRIQUINT SEMICONDUCTOR, INC.

Stephanie J. Welty
Vice President, Finance and Administration,
Chief Financial Officer and Secretary

Hillsboro, Oregon
April 13, 2006

YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT
PLEASE COMPLETE, SIGN AND DATE THE ENCLOSED PROXY CARD AS
PROMPTLY AS POSSIBLE AND RETURN IT IN THE ACCOMPANYING REPLY ENVELOPE OR
VOTE VIA THE TELEPHONE OR INTERNET AS SOON AS POSSIBLE.

o
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TRIQUINT SEMICONDUCTOR, INC.

PROXY STATEMENT FOR THE
2006 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

GENERAL INFORMATION

The enclosed proxy is solicited on behalf of the board of directors of TriQuint Semiconductor, Inc., a
Delaware corporation (“TriQuint,” “we,” “us,” “our,” or “our company”), for use at our 2006 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders, or at any adjournment. The annual meeting will be held on Wednesday, May 24,
2006, at 4:00 p.m., Pacific time, for the purposes set forth in the accompanying notice of annual meeting of
stockholders. The annual meeting will be held at 2300 NE Brookwood Parkway, Hillsboro, Oregon 97124.
Our telephone number at that location is (503) 615-9000.

This proxy statement and the enclosed proxy card were mailed on or about April 13, 2006, together
with our 2005 Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005, to all stockholders
entitled to vote at the annual meeting.

Record Date and Shares Outstanding

Only stockholders of record at the close of business on March 22, 2006, the record date, are entitled to
attend and vote at the annual meeting. On the record date, 140,389,588 shares of our common stock were
outstanding and held of record by 498 stockholders. On the record date, $218,755,000 of our 4%
convertible subordinated notes due March 1, 2007 were outstanding and were convertible at the option of
the holders thereof to an aggregate of 3,226,483 shares of our common stock. The closing price of our
common stock on the Nasdaq Stock Market on the record date was $4.51 per share. The closing price of our
4% convertible subordinated notes due March 1, 2007 on the PORTAL market on the record date was $973
per $1,000 principal amount of note.




QUESTI‘ONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE PROXY MATERIALS AND THE ANNUAL MEETING

Although we encourage you to read the enclosed proxy statement in its entirety, we include this
question and answer section to provide some background information and brief answers to several questions
you might have about the annual meeting.

Q: Why am I receiving these materials?

A: ‘;TriQuint’s board of directors (the “board”) is providing these proxy materials for you in connection
‘with TriQuint’s annual meeting of stockholders, which will take place on May 24, 2006. Stockholders
iare invited to attend the annual meeting and are requested to vote on the proposals described in this
'Proxy statement.

USUIo]

o L . ,
Q: What information is contained in these materials?
. ; 1 -
A: The information included in this proxy statement relates to the proposals to be voted on at the annual \,.
meeting, the voting process, the compensation of directors and our most highly paid officers, and
certain other required information. TriQuint’s 2005 Annual Report on Form 10-K and audited
financials statements, proxy card and return envelope are also enclosed.
o: Wh{lt proposals will be voted on at the annual meeting?

|
A: There are two proposals scheduled to be voted on at the annual meeting:
. thé election of directors (Proposal No. 1); and

« the ratification of the audit committee’s appointment of KPMG LLP as TriQuint’s independent
registered public accounting firm for the year ending December 31, 2006 (Proposal No. 2).

1We jwill also consider other business that properly comes before the annual meeting.

©

How does the board recommend that I vote?

A: TriQuint’s board recommends that you vote your shares “FOR” each of the nominees to the board and
“FOR” the ratification of the audit committee’s appointment of independent registered public
‘accounting firm.

jWkdt shares owned by me can be voted?

©

A: All shares of TriQuint common stock owned by you as of the close of business on March 22, 2006 (the
“Record Date”) may be voted by you. On all matters other than the election of directors, you may cast
;one ‘vote per share of common stock that you held on the Record Date. These shares include shares that
are: (1) held directly in your name as the stockholder of record, and (2) held for you as the beneficial
-owner through a stockbroker, bank or other nominee or shares acquired through the Sawtek Employee
Stock Option Plan and 401(k) Plan. Holders of the 4% subordinated convertible notes due March 1,
2007 are not entitled to vote on any matter until such time as they are converted to our common stock.

3Wh(;1t is the difference between holding shares as a stockholder of record and as a beneficial owner?

©

A: Most stockholders of TriQuint hold their shares through a stockbroker, bank or other nominee rather
than directly in their own name. As summarized below, there are some distinctions between shares
held of record and those owned beneficially.

Stockholder of Record

If your shares are registered directly in your name with TriQuint’s transfer agent, Mellon Investor
‘Services, LLC, you are considered, with respect to those shares, the stockholder of record, and these

3
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proxy materials are being sent directly to you by TriQuint. As the stockholder of record, you have the
right to grant your voting proxy directly to TriQuint or to vote in person at the annual meeting.
TriQuint has enclosed a proxy card for you to use. You may also vote by Internet or by telephone as
described below under “How can I vote my shares without attending the annual meeting?”.

Beneficial Owner

If your shares are held in a stock brokerage account or by a bank or other nominee, you are considered
the beneficial owner of shares held in street name, and these proxy materials are being forwarded to
you by your broker or nominee who is considered, with respect to those shares, the stockholder of
record. As the beneficial owner, you have the right to direct your broker on how to vote and are also
invited to attend the annual meeting. However, since you are not the stockholder of record, you may
not vote these shares in person at the annual meeting. Your broker or nominee has enclosed a voting
instruction card for you to use in directing the broker or nominee regarding how to vote your shares.
You may also vote by Internet or by telephone as described below under “How can I vote my shares
without attending the annual meeting?”.

How can I vote my shares in person at the annual meeting?

Shares held directly in your name as the stockholder of record may be voted in person at the annual
meeting. If you choose to do so, please bring the enclosed proxy card or proof of identification. Even if
you plan to attend the annual meeting, TriQuint recommends that you vote your shares in advance as
described below so that your vote will be counted if you later decide not to attend the annual meeting.

Shares held in street name may be voted in person by you only if you obtain a signed proxy from the
record holder giving you the right to vote the shares.

How can I vote my shares without attending the annual meeting?

Whether you hold shares directly as the stockholder of record or beneficially in street name, you may
direct your vote without attending the annual meeting by Internet, telephone or completing and mailing
your proxy card or voting instruction card in the enclosed pre-paid envelope. Please refer to the
enclosed materials for details. The Internet and telephone voting procedures are designed to
authenticate the stockholder’s identity and to allow stockholders to vote their shares and confirm that
their voting instructions have been properly recorded.

Can I change my vote?

You may change your proxy instructions at any time prior to the vote at the annual meeting. You may
accomplish this by entering a new vote by Internet, by telephone, by delivering a written notice of
revocation to the corporate secretary of our company, by granting a new proxy card or new voting
instruction card bearing a later date (which automatically revokes the earlier proxy instructions), or by
attending the annual meeting and voting in person. Attendance at the annual meeting will not cause
your previously granted proxy to be revoked unless you specifically so request.

How are votes counted?

In the election of directors, you may vote “FOR” all of the nominees or your vote may be
“WITHHELD” with respect to one or more of the nominees. For ratification of the appointment of our
independent registered public accounting firm, you may vote “FOR,” “AGAINST” or “ABSTAIN.” If
you “ABSTAIN,” your vote has the same effect as a vote “AGAINST.” If you sign your proxy card or
broker voting instruction card with no further instructions, your shares will be voted in accordance
with the recommendations of the board.
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-What is the voting requirement to approve each of the proposals?

1In the election of directors, the seven persons receiving the highest number of “FOR” votes will be
elected. The proposal for ratification of the audit committee’s appointment of the independent
-registered public accounting firm requires the affirmative “FOR” vote of a majority of those shares
present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote at the annual meeting. If you are a
beneficial owner and do not provide the stockholder of record with voting instructions, your shares
‘may constitute broker non-votes. In tabulating the voting result for any particular proposal, shares that
constitute broker non-votes are not considered entitled to vote.

If you return a proxy card that indicates an abstention from voting in all matters, the shares represented
‘will be counted as present for the purpose of determining a quorum, but they will not be voted on any
matter at the annual meeting. Consequently, if you abstain from voting on the proposal to elect
‘directors; your abstention will have no effect on the outcome of the vote with respect to this proposal.
If you abstain from voting on the proposal for the ratification of the audit committee’s appointment of
'KPMG LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm, your abstention will have the same
effect as a vote against this proposal.

Under the rules that govern brokers who have record ownership of shares that are held in “street name”
for ftheir clients, who are the beneficial owners of the shares, brokers have discretion to vote these
shares on routine matters but not on non-routine matters. Thus, if you do not otherwise instruct your
broker, the broker may turn in a proxy card voting your shares “for” routine matters but expressly
instructing that the broker is NOT voting on non-routine matters. A “broker non-vote” occurs when a
‘broker expressly instructs on a proxy card that it is not voting on a matter, whether routine or
'nontroutine. Broker non-votes are counted for the purpose of determining the presence or absence of a
quorum but are not counted for determining the number of votes cast for or against a proposal. Your
brol‘<er will have discretionary authority to vote your shares the proposals, which are routine matters.

Who are the proxies and what do they do?

The two persons named as proxies on the enclosed proxy card, Ralph G. Quinsey, our president and
chief executive officer, and Stephanie J. Welty, our vice president, finance and administration, chief
financial officer and secretary, were designated by the board of directors. All properly executed proxies
will be voted (except to the extent that authority to vote has been withheld) and where a choice has
been specified by you as provided in the proxy card, it will be voted in accordance with the instructions
you: indicate on the proxy card. If you submit the proxy card, but do not indicate your voting
‘instructions, your shares will be voted “FOR” Proposals No. 1 and 2.

May I cumulate my votes?

Every stockholder voting for the election of directors may cumulate such stockholder’s votes and
(i) give one candidate a number of votes equal to the number of directors to be elected multiplied by
the number of shares that such stockholder is entitled to vote or (ii) distribute such stockholder’s votes
on the same principle among as many candidates as the stockholder may select, provided that votes
cannot be cast for more than seven candidates. However, no stockholder is entitled to cumulate votes
unless the candidate’s name has been placed in nomination prior to the voting and the stockholder, or
.any: other stockholder, has given notice at the meeting, and prior to the voting, of the intention to
cunjulate the stockholder’s votes. ‘

Cumulative voting applies only to the election of directors. For all other matters, each share of
common stock outstanding as of the close of business on the Record Date is entitled to one vote.
What does it mean if I receive more than one proxy or voting instruction card?

You may receive more than one set of voting materials, including multiple copies of this proxy
statement and multiple proxy cards or voting instruction cards. For example, if you hold your shares in
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more than one brokerage account, you may receive a separate voting instruction card for each
brokerage account in which you hold shares. If you are a stockholder of record and your shares are
registered in more than one name, you will receive more than one proxy card. Please complete, sign,
date and return each TriQuint proxy card and voting instruction card that you receive.

What if I share the same address as another stockholder of record?

TriQuint has adopted a procedure called “householding,” which has been approved by the Securities
and Exchange Commission. Under this procedure, TriQuint is delivering only one copy of the annual
report and proxy statement to multiple stockholders who share the same address, unless TriQuint has
received contrary instructions from an affected stockholder. This procedure reduces TriQuint’s printing
costs, mailing costs and fees. Stockholders who part1c1pate in householdmg will contmue to receive
separate proxy cards. A ,

TriQuint will deliver, promptly upon wrltten or oral request, a separate copy of the annual report and the
proxy statement to any stockholder at a shared address to which a single copy of either of those
documents was delivered. To receive a separate copy of the annual report or proxy statement, you may
write or call TriQuint at 2300 NE Brookwood-Parkway, Hillsboro, OR 97124, telephone 503-615-9000.
Any stockholders of record who share the same address and currently receivé multiple copies of
TriQuint’s annual report and proxy statement who wish to receive only one copy of these materials per
household in the future, please contact TnQumt at the address or telephone number listed above to
participate in the householding program. /

A number of brokerage firms have instituted householding. If you hold your shares in “street name,”
please contact your bank, broker, or other holder of record to request information about householding.

Where can I find the voting results of the annual meeting?

We will announce preliminary; votihg results at the annual meeting and publish final results in
TriQuint’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the second quarter of 2006.

What happens if additional proposals are presented at the annual meéting?

Other than the two proposals described in this proxy statement, TriQuint does not expect any
additional matters to be presented for a vote at the annual meeting. If you grant a proxy, the persons
named as proxy holders, Ralph G. Quinsey, TriQuint’s president and chief executive officer, and
Stephanie J, Welty, TriQuint’s vice president of finance and administration, chief financial officer and
secretary, will have the discretion to vote your shares on any additional matters properly presented for
a vote at the annual meeting. If for any. unforeseen reason any of TriQuint’s nommees is not available
as a candidate for director, the persons named as proxy holders will vote your proxy for such other
candidate or candidates as may be nominated by the board. :

What is the quorum requirement for the annual meeting?

The quorum requirement for holding the annual meeting and transacting business is a majority of the
outstanding shares entitled to be voted. The shares may be present in person or represented by proxy at
the annual meeting. Both abstentrons and.broker non-votes are counted as present for the purpose of
determining the presence of a quorum Broker non-votes, however, are not counted as shares present
and entitled to be voted with respect to the matter on which the broker has expressly not voted. Thus,
broker non-votes will not affect the outcome of any of the matters being voted on at the annual
meeting. :

Who will count the vote?

Joseph Pugh, our assistant secretary, has been appointed to act as the inspector of election and will
tabulate the votes. In the event he is unable to do so, Susan Liles, our treasurer, will act in this role.

6
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Is my vote confidential?

Proxy instructions, ballots and voting tabulations that identify individual stockholders are handled in a
manner that protects your voting privacy. Your vote will not be disclosed either within TriQuint or to
third parties except (1) as necessary to meet applicable legal requirements, (2) to allow for the
tabulation of votes and certification of the vote, or (3) to facilitate a successful proxy solicitation by the
board. Occasionally, stockholders provide written comments on their proxy card, which are then
forwarded to TriQuint’s management.

Who will bear the cost of soliciting votes for the annual meeting?

TriQuint will pay the entire cost of preparing, assembling, printing, mailing and distributing these
proxy materials. In addition to the mailing of these proxy materials, the solicitation of proxies or votes
may, be made in person, by telephone or by electronic communication by TriQuint’s directors, officers,
and employees, who will not receive any additional compensation for such solicitation activities.
TriQuint may retain the services of a third party firm to aid in the solicitation of proxies. TriQuint
estimnates that this cost will not exceed $15,000. In addition, TriQuint may reimburse brokerage firms
and other persons representing beneficial owners of shares for their expenses in forwarding solicitation
mat§ﬁa1 to such beneficial owners.

What is the deadline to propose actions for consideration at next year’s annual meeting of
stockholders or to nominate individuals to serve as directors?

You may submit proposals for consideration at future annual stockholder meetings, including director
nominations.

Stockholder Proposals: In order for a stockholder proposal to be considered for inclusion in our
proxy statement for next year’s annual meeting, the written proposal must be received by us no later
than December 14, 2006, and should contain such information as is required under TriQuint’s bylaws.
If the date of next year’s annual meeting is moved more than 30 days before or after the anniversary
date of this year’s annual meeting, the deadline for inclusion of proposals in our proxy statement is
instead a reasonable time before we begin to print and mail our proxy materials. Proposals will also
need to comply with the regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) under
Rule 14a-8 regarding the inclusion of stockholder proposals in company-sponsored proxy materials.
Proposals should be addressed to our corporate secretary at our principal executive offices.

If you intend to present a proposal at our 2007 annual meeting and the proposal is not intended to be
included in our proxy statement relating to that meeting, you must give us advance notice of such
proposal in accordance with our bylaws. Pursuant to our bylaws, in order for a stockholder proposal to
be deemed properly presented under such circumstances, a stockholder must deliver notice of such
proposal to our corporate secretary at our principal executive offices no later than the close of business
on December 14, 2006. However, if the date of the 2007 annual meeting is more than 30 days before
May 24, 2007, the first anniversary of this year’s annual meeting, stockholders must give us notice of
any stockholder proposals within a reasonable time before the mailing date of the proxy statement. If a
stockholder does not provide us with notice of a stockholder proposal in accordance with the deadlines
described above, the stockholder will not be permitted to present the proposal to the stockholders for a
vote at the meeting.

The SEC rules establish a different deadline with respect to discretionary voting (the “Discretionary
Vote' Deadline”) for stockholder proposals that are not intended to be included in a company’s proxy
statement. The Discretionary Vote Deadline for our 2007 annual meeting is February 27, 2007, which
is 45 calendar days prior to the anniversary of the mailing date of this proxy statement. If a stockholder
gives notice of a proposal after the Discretionary Vote Deadline, our proxy holders will be allowed to
use their discretionary voting authority to vote against the stockholder proposal when and if the
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proposal is raised at our 2007 annual meeting. Because the stockholder proposal deadline provided for
in our bylaws cannot be determined until we publicly announce the date for our 2007 annual meeting,
it is possible that the bylaw deadline may occur after the Discretionary Vote Deadline. In such a case, a
stockholder proposal received after the Discretionary Vote Deadline but before the bylaw deadline
would be eligible to be presented at the next year’s annual meeting, but we believe that our proxy
holders would be allowed to use the discretionary authority granted by the proxy card to vote against
the proposal at the annual meeting without including any disclosure of the proposal in the proxy
statement relating to such meeting.

Nomination of Director Candidates: You may propose director candidates for consideration by the
board’s nominating and governance committee. See “Consideration of Director Nominees” below.

Copy of Bylaw Provisions: You may contact TriQuint’s corporate secretary at our principal
executive offices for a copy of the relevant bylaw provisions regarding the requirements for making
stockholder proposals and nominating director candidates.

How do I communicate with the board?

The board has adopted a process for stockholder communications with the board of directors and has
selected Stephanie J. Welty, chief financial officer, to act as the company’s contact person for
stockholder communication directed to the board. Ms. Welty will relay all relevant questions and
messages from the stockholders of the company to the specific director identified by the stockholder
or, if no specific director is requested, to a director selected by her. Ms. Welty can be reached at:

Chief Financial Officer
TriQuint Semiconductor, Inc.
2300 NE Brookwood Parkway
Hillsboro, OR 97124




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

Considefation of Director Nominees

The nominating and governance committee of the board of directors considers both recommendations
and nommatlons for candidates to the board of directors proposed by stockholders. Any stockholder who
wants to recommend or nominate a candidate for the nominating and governance committee’s consideration
may do so by following the approved policies and procedures for director candidates. Stockholders must
hold no less than 5% of the company’s securities continuously for at least 24 months prior to the date of the
submission of the recommendation or nomination.

Stockholder recommendations for candidates to the board of directors must be directed in writing to
TriQuint Semiconductor, Inc., Attn: Corporate Secretary, 2300 NE Brookwood Parkway, Hillsboro, Oregon
97124, and must include:

+ the candidate’s name, business address and residence address;

* the candidate’s principal occupation or employment;

+ the number of shares of the company which are beneficially owned by such candidate;
|

* detailed biographical data and qualifications and information regarding any relationships between the
candidate and the company within the last three years; and

» any other information relating to such candidate that is required to be disclosed in solicitations of
proxies for elections of directors, or is otherwise required, in each case pursuant to Regulation 14A
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “1934 Act”).

A stockholder’s recommendation to the secretary must also set forth:

* the name and address, as they appear on the company’s books, of the stockholder making such
reqommendation;

+ the class and number of shares of the company which are beneficially owned by the stockholder and
the date such shares were acquired by the stockholder;

¢ any material interest of the stockholder in such nomination;

* a description of all arrangements or understandings between the stockholder making such
nomination and the candidate and any other person or persons (naming such person or persons)
pursuant to which the nomination is made by the stockholder;

* a statement from the recommending stockholder in support of the candidate, references for the
candidate, and an indication of the candidate’s willingness to serve, if elected; and

. any other information that is required to be provided by the stockholder pursuant to Regulation 14A
under the 1934 Act, in his/her capacity as a proponent to a stockholder proposal.

Stockholder nominations to the board of directors must meet the requirements set forth in Sections 2.2
and 2.5 of our bylaws. For a nomination to be properly brought before an annual meeting by a stockholder,
the stockholder must have given timely notice thereof in writing to the corporate secretary of the company.
To be timely, a stockholder’s notice must be delivered to or mailed and received at our principal executive
offices not less than 120 calendar days in advance of the date that proxy statements were mailed to
stockholders in connection with the previous year’s annual meeting of stockholders. However, in the event
that no annual meeting was held in the previous year or the date of the annual meeting had been changed by
more than 30 days from the date contemplated at the time of the previous year’s proxy statement, notice by
the stockholder must be received a reasonable amount of time before the solicitation is made in order to be
considered timely.




Identifying and Evaluating Nominees for Director

The nominating and governance committee shall use the following procedures to identify and evaluate
the individuals that it selects, or recommends that the board of directors select, as director nominees:

+ The committee reviews the qualifications of any candidates who have been properly recommended
or nominated by the stockholders, as well as those candidates who have been identified by
management, individual members of the board of directors or, if the committee determines, a search
firm. The review may, in the committee’s discretion, include a review solely of information provided
to the committee or may also include discussions with persons familiar with the candidate, an
interview with the candidate or other actions that the committee deems proper.

« The committee evaluates the performance and qualifications of individual members of the board of
directors eligible for re-election at the annual meeting of stockholders.

o The committee considers the suitability of each candidate, including the current members of the
board of directors, in light of the current size and composition of the board of directors. Except as
may be required by rules promulgated by the Nasdaq Stock Market or the SEC, it is the current sense
of the committee that there are no specific, minimum qualifications that must be met by each
candidate for the board of directors, nor are there specific qualities or skills that are necessary for one
or more of the members of the board of directors to possess. In evaluating the suitability of the
candidates, the committee considers relevant factors, including, among other things, issues of
character, judgment, independence, expertise, diversity of experience, length of service, other
commitments and the like. The committee evaluates such factors, among others, and considers each
individual candidate in the context of the current perceived needs of the board of directors as a
whole.

o After such review and consideration, the committee selects, or recommends that the board of
directors select, the slate of director nominees, either at a meeting of the committee at which a
quorum is present or by unanimous written consent of the committee.

» The committee endeavors to notify, or causes to be notified, all director candidates of its decision as
to whether to nominate such individual for election to the board of directors.

The board of directors has final authority on determining the selection of director candidates for
nomination to the board. These policies and procedures may be modified at any time as may be determined
by the committee.

Statement on Corporate Governance

We have been committed to having sound corporate governance principles since our inception, and in
September 2002, we adopted formal corporate governance standards. We have reviewed internally and with
the board the provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (“Sarbanes-Oxley Act”), the rules of the SEC
and the Nasdaq Stock Market’s listing standards regarding corporate governance policies and processes and
are in compliance with the rules and listing standards. We have amended the charters of our compensation
committee, audit committee and nominating and governance committee to implement the new rules and
standards. You can access our committee charters, and our code of business conduct and ethics without
charge on our website at www.triquint.com under the “Investors” section, and by clicking on “Sarbanes-
Oxley Documents,” or by writing to us at TriQuint Semiconductor, Inc., 2300 NE Brookwood Parkway,
Hillsboro, OR 97124 Attention: Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Paul Gary has been designated as the lead
independent director, and as such he chairs the regularly scheduled executive sessions among TriQuint’s
non-management directors without management present.
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Code!of Business Conduct and Ethics

' We have a code of business conduct and ethics that applies to all of our employees, including our
principal executive officer, principal financial officer and principal accounting officer. This code of ethics is
posted on our Internet web site. The Internet address for our web site is www.triquint.com, and the code of
ethics may be found as follows:

1. From our main web page, first click on “Investors.”

2. }Next, click on “Sarbanes-Oxley Documents.”

3. iNext, click on “Policies.”

4, ;‘Next, click on “Code of Business Conduct and Ethics.”

We intend to satisfy the disclosure requirement under Item 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding an amendment
to, or waiver from, a provision of this code of ethics by posting such information on our web site, at the
address and location specified above. If you wish to receive a copy of our code of ethics and do not have
access to the Internet, please write to us at the address below, and we will furnish you a copy without
charge:

Chief Financial Officer

TriQuint Semiconductor, Inc.

2300 NE Brookwood Parkway

Hillsboro, OR 97124

Attendance by Board Members at the Annuai Meeting of Stockholders

It is the policy of the board to require board members to attend the annual meeting of stockholders.
Exceptions may be made due to illness, travel or other commitments. All members of the board of directors
attended our annual meeting of stockholders in person or by teleconference on May 12, 2005.

i1
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PROPOSAL NO. 1
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Nominees

A board of seven directors is to be elected at the annual meeting. Unless otherwise instructed, the
proxy holders will vote the proxies received by them for the seven nominees named below, all of whom are
presently directors of our company. In the event that any nominee of our company is unable or declines to
serve as a director at the time of the annual meeting, the proxies will be voted for any nominee who shall be
designated by the present board of directors to fill the vacancy. The term of office for each person elected as
a director will continue until the next annual meeting or until a successor has been elected and qualified.
The following table lists the persons recommended by the nominating and governance committee and
nominated by the board of directors to be elected as directors and their ages as of April 1, 2006:

Name of Nominee Age Position with TriQuint Since Conﬁg?t:ges**
Dr. Paul A. Géry ....... 65 Director 1996 A, C, N*
Charles Scott Gibson .... 53  Director 1992 A, C* N
Nicolas Kauser......... 66  Director 1999 C, N
Ralph G. Quinsey ...... 50  President and Chief Executive Officer, Director 2002 —

Dr. Walden C. Rhines ... 59 Director 1995 C,N
StevenJ. Sharp ........ 64  Chairman of the Board, Director 1992 —
WillisC. Young . ....... 65 Director 2001 A* N

Board Committees: A-Audit, C-Compensation, N-Nominating and Governance
*  Designates chair of that committee
**  Effective at the close of the 2006 annual meeting

There is no family relationship between any director and/or executive officer of our company.

Dr. Gary has been a director of our company since May 1996. Dr. Gary has been retired since 1996.
From 1967 until 1996, he served in various capacities for Bell Laboratories, Western Electric Corporation
and the Microelectronics division of AT&T Corporation (now Agere Systems, Inc.), with his last position
being vice president of the Netcom IC business unit. He also serves as chairman of the board of directors of
Data I/O Corporation and Broad-Air, a privately held broadband internet service company. Dr. Gary holds a
B.S. degree in electrical engineering from Lafayette College, an M.S. degree in electrical engineering from
Stanford University and a Ph.D. in electrical engineering from Stanford University.

Mr. Gibson has been a director of our company since September 1992. Since March 1992, Mr. Gibson
has been a director of a number of high technology companies and not-for-profit organizations. He
co-founded Sequent Compuiter Systems Inc., a computer systems company, in 1983 (which was acquired by
International Business Machines Corporation), and served as its president from January 1988 to February
1992. From 1976 to 1983, Mr. Gibson was employed at Intel Corporation as general manager, Memory
Components Operations. He also serves as chairman of the board of directors of RadiSys Corporation, and
is a director of Pixelworks, Inc., Electroglas, Inc. and Northwest Natural Company. Mr. Gibson also serves
on the Board of Trustees of Olin School of Engineering and is the Vice Chairman of the Oregon Health and
Sciences University Governing and Foundation Board of Trustees and as a director of the Oregon
Community Foundation. He received a B.S. degree in electrical engineering and an M.B.A. from the
University of Illinois.

Mr. Kauser has been a director of our company since December 1999, Presently, Mr. Kauser is the
President of Clearwire International and member of the board of directors of Clearwire Inc., a privately held
company dedicated to the implementation of wireless broadband services in various countries. From 1990
through 1998, Mr. Kauser served as executive vice president and chief technology officer of AT&T
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Wireless ' Services, Seattle, Washington (formerly McCaw Cellular Communications, Inc.). From 1984
through 1990, Mr. Kauser was employed by Rogers Cantel, Inc., a Canadian wireless service provider, as
vice president of engineering and later, senior vice president of network operations. He was a member of
Cantel’s board of directors from 1990 to 1998. Mr. Kauser received a B.S. degree in electrical engineering
from McGill University, Montreal, Canada.

Mr. Quinsey joined our company in July 2002 as president and chief executive officer and a director.
From September 1999 to January 2002, Mr. Quinsey was with ON Semiconductor, a manufacturer of
semiconductors for a wide array of applications, as Vice President and General Manager of the Analog
Division. From 1979 to September 1999, Mr. Quinsey was with Motorola, a manufacturer of
semiconductors and communications equipment holding various positions including Vice President and
General Manager of the RF/IF Circuits Division, which developed both silicon and GaAs technologies for
wireless phone applications. Mr. Quinsey received a B.S. degree in Electrical Engineering from Marquette
University.

Dr. Rhines has been a director of our company since May 1995. Dr. Rhines has been the chief
executive officer of Mentor Graphics Corporation, an electronic design automation company, since 1993
and chairman of their board of directors since 2002. Prior to joining Mentor Graphics, he spent 21 years at
Texas Instruments Incorporated, with his most recent position having responsibility for directing its
worldwide semiconductor business as the executive vice president of Texas Instruments’ Semiconductor
Group. Dr. Rhines also serves as a director of Cirrus Logic, Inc. Dr. Rhines holds a B.S. degree in
metallurgical engineering from the University of Michigan, an M.S. degree and Ph.D. in materials science
and engineering from Stanford University and an M.B.A. from Southern Methodist University.

Mzr. Sharp joined our company in September 1991 as director, president and chief executive officer. In
May 1992, he became chairman of our board. In July 2002, Mr. Sharp stepped down as president and chief
executive officer of TriQuint, and in September 2004, he resigned as an employee of the company but
remains as chairman of the board of directors of TriQuint. Previously, Mr. Sharp had served various roles
associated with venture capital-financed semiconductor companies. In these assignments he was founder of
Power Integrations, Inc. and Silicon Architects, Inc. (since acquired by Synopsys, Inc.). Mr. Sharp was also
a Director at Volterra Semiconductor Corp., Megatest Corp. (since acquired by Teradyne, Inc.), Crystal
Semiconductor, Inc. (since acquired by Cirrus Logic, Inc.) and Gazelle Microelectronics (now TriQuint).
Prior to that time, Mr. Sharp was employed for 14 years by Signetics Corporation (since acquired by Philips
Electronics N.V.), a semiconductor manufacturer and for nine years by Texas Instruments, Incorporated, a
semiconductor manufacturer. Mr, Sharp also serves as a director of Power Integrations, Inc. and Ambric,
Inc. He received a B.S. degree in Mechanical Engineering from Southern Methodist University, a M.S.
degree in Engineering Science from California Institute of Technology and a M.B.A. from Stanford
University.

Mr. Young has been a director of our company since July 2001. Prior to joining our board, he was a
director of Sawtek Inc. from 1996 until 2001 when Sawtek merged with TriQuint. Mr. Young was a senior
partner in the Atlanta office of BDO Seidman, LLP, an international accounting and consulting firm, from
January 1996 to June 2000. Mr. Young retired in July 2000. From April 1995 to December 1995,
Mr. Young was the chief financial officer for Hayes Microcomputer Products, Inc., a manufacturer of
modems and communication equipment. From 1965 to 1995, Mr. Young held various positions with BDO
Seidman, LLP, and from 1988 to 1995 he was vice chairman and a member of BDO Seidman’s Executive
Committee. Mr. Young has a B.S. degree in accounting from Ferris State University. He is a certified public
accountant. Under Item 401(h) of Regulation S-K, Mr. Young is the designated audit committee financial
expert. Mr. Young is considered “independent” as the term is used in Item 7(d)(3)(iv) of Schedule 14A
under the 1934 Act.
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Mr. Edward F. Tuck has been a director of our company since November 1994. He is the principal of
Falcon Fund, a wholly-owned venture capital entity. Since 1990, he has been a general partner of Kinship
Venture Management LLP, which is the general partner of Kinship Partners II, a venture capital fund. From
1986 to 1995, Mr. Tuck was a general partner of Boundary, the general partner of The Boundary Fund, a
venture capital fund. He spent most of his career in the telecommunications industry, serving in various
positions with GTE Corporation and as vice president and technical director of ITT North America
Telecommunications, among others. He currently serves as chairman of High Tower Software, a closely-held
software company and president of Social Fabric Corporation, a start up company, and holds a B.S. degree in
electrical engineering from the University of Missouri at Rolla. In 2006, Mr. Tuck will reach the Company’s
mandatory retirement age and thus has opted not to seek re-election to the board. The board wishes to thank
Mr. Tuck for his service to our company since 1994 and wishes him well in the future.

Director Independence

TriQuint has adopted standards for director independence, which are compliant with the rules of the
Nasdaq Stock Market and the SEC.

The board determined that each member of the board and the board committees, except for
Mr. Quinsey and Mr. Sharp, meet the aforementioned independence standards. Mr. Quinsey does not meet
the aforementioned independence standards, because he is the current president, chief executive officer and
an employee of TriQuint. Mr. Sharp does not meet the independence standards, because he was an officer
and employee of our company until 2004, which was during the last three fiscal years.

Furthermore, the board has determined that each member of each of the board’s committees meets the
aforementioned independence standards.

Meetings and Committees of the Board of Directors

Our board of directors held five meetings during 2005. All of the directors who served on the board
during 2005 attended at least 75% of the meetings of the board of directors, either in person or by
teleconference. Further, the board currently has three committees, each of which operates under a charter
approved by the board: an audit committee, a compensation committee and a nominating and governance
committee. Each director attended at least 75% of the committee meetings on which he served during 2005
either in person or by teleconference, except for Mr. Kauser who was unable to attend two meetings of both
the compensation committee and the nominating and governance committee.

The audit committee, which consisted of directors Young (who serves as chairman), Gary and Tuck,
held 12 meetings in 2005. The audit committee is responsible for appointing and overseeing actions taken
by our independent registered public accounting firm, reviewing our external financial reports and filings
with the SEC and reviewing our internal financial controls. The board has determined that Mr. Young is the
“audit committee financial expert” pursuant to the rules and regulations of the SEC. Mr. Tuck will reach the
Company’s mandatory retirement age in 2006 and thus is not seeking re-election to the board of directors.
The board has selected Mr. Gibson to replace Mr. Tuck on the audit committee following his retirement.

The compensation committee, consisting of directors Gibson (who serves as chairman), Gary, Kauser
and Rhines, held four meetings in 2005. The compensation committee is responsible for determining
salaries, incentives and other forms of compensation for our executive officers as well as overseeing the
administration of various incentive compensation and benefit plans, including our 1996 Stock Incentive
Program. Due to Mr. Gibson’s selection to fill Mr. Tuck’s position on the audit committee, Mr. Gibson has
stepped down as chairman of the compensation committee, however he remains on the committee. The
board has selected Mr. Rhines to be the committee chairman.

The nominating and governance committee, consisting of directors Gary (who served as chairman),
Gibson, Kauser, Rhines, Tuck and Young, held three meetings in 2005. Mr. Tuck recently reached the
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mandatory retirement age and thus is not seeking re-election to the board of directors in 2006. The board
has elected not to replace Mr. Tuck on the nominating and governance committee at this time.

The purpose of the nominating and governance committee is to ensure that the board of directors is
properly constituted to meet its fiduciary obligations to stockholders and our company and that we have and
follow appropriate governance standards. To carry out this purpose, the nominating and governance
committee shall: (1) assist the board of directors by identifying prospective director nominees and to
recommend to the board of directors the director nominees for the next annual meeting of stockholders;
(2) develop and recommend to the board of directors the governance principles applicable to us; (3) oversee
the evaluation of the board of directors and management; and (4) to recommend director nominees for each
committee.

Director Compensation

Directors who are employees of our company receive no additional or special remuneration for serving
as directors. The board of directors, upon review of comparable company data and in light of additional
governance responsibilities, restructured director compensation in November 2004 to be effective on
January 1, 2005. As of January 1, 2006, there has been no change in the compensation levels and each
non-employee director is to receive the following compensation, in addition to reimbursement for
out-of-pocket expenses:

+ an:annual retainer of $20,000, payable in four equal quarterly installments;

. an:3 annual fee of $5,000 for members of the audit committee and $3,000 for members of the
compensation committee;

< an, annual fee of $2,000 for the chairman of each of the audit committee, the compensation
committee, and the nominating and governance committee; and

* in addition to the annual retainer, an annual fee of $40,000 for the chairman of the board of directors.

We also offer participation in our group medical insurance program to all outside directors if they
agree to pay the full COBRA rate to us. Only Mr. Sharp has opted to participate in this program at this time.

In addition to above compensation, the 1996 Stock Incentive Program provides for an automatic,
one-time ‘grant of an option to purchase 33,000 shares of common stock to each non-employee director,
effective on the date of each such director’s initial appointment or election. The exercise price per share of
the option is equal to the fair market value of our common stock as of the date of grant, and the option vests
at a rate of 28% on the first anniversary of the grant date and 2% per month thereafter so long as the
optionee remains a director of our company.

The 1996 Stock Incentive Program also provides for an automatic, nondiscretionary annual grant,
effective at each annual meeting of stockholders, of an option to purchase 17,500 shares of common stock
to each non-employee director who does not represent stockholders owning more than 1% of our
outstanding common stock. Additionally, in 2005 shareholders approved an amendment to the 1996 Stock
Incentive:Plan which provides for an additional annual grant of 17,500 stock options to a non-employee
director who acts as the chairman of the board, if immediately after such meeting, he or she shall continue
to serve as chairman. This grant is adjusted pro-rata for a partial year if a director becomes a member of the
board of directors at any time other than at the annual meeting of stockholders. All such options have an
exercise price equal to the fair market value of our common stock as of the date of grant and vest at a rate of
25% six months after grant date and 12.5% per calendar quarter thereafter following the date of grant so
long as the optionee remains a director of our company.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS VOTING “FOR” THE ELECTION OF EACH OF
THE NOMINEES NAMED ABOVE.
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PROPOSAL NO. 2
RATIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The audit committee of the board has appointed KPMG LLP as TriQuint’s independent registered
public accounting firm to audit its consolidated financial statements for 2006. During 2005, KPMG LLP
served as TriQuint’s independent registered public accounting firm. Although TriQuint is not required to
seek stockholder approval of this appointment, the board believes it to be sound corporate governance to do
so. If the appointment is not ratified, the audit committee will investigate the reasons for stockholder
rejection and will reconsider the appointment.

Representatives of KPMG LLP are expected to attend the annual meeting where they will be available
to respond to questions and, if they desire, to make a statement.

Before selecting KPMG LLP, the audit committee carefully considered KPMG LLP’s qualifications as
independent registered public accounting firm. This included a review of the qualifications of the
engagement team, the quality control procedures the firm has established, any issues raised by the most
recent quality control review of the firm, as well as its reputation for integrity and competence in the fields
of accounting and auditing. The audit committee’s review also included matters to be considered under the
rules of the SEC, including the nature and extent of non-audit services, to ensure that the independent
registered public accounting firm’s independence will not be impaired. The audit committee expressed its
satisfaction with KPMG LLP in all of these respects. The audit committee has determined that the provision
of services by KPMG LLP other than for audit related services is compatible with maintaining the
independence of KPMG LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm. After review of all
credentials, including industry expertise and services, the audit committee appointed KPMG LLP for the
audit of the company’s financial statements for 2006.

The following table shows KPMG LLP’s billings to us for the audit and other services for 2005 and
2004.

2005 2004
Audit Feest) | . .. $1,076,500 $1,223,656
Audit-related fees . ... .. —_ —
Tax FeesD .. e — 4,000
All Other Fees® ... .. i e — 10,000

$1,076,500 $1,237,656

() Audit fees represent fees for professional services provided in connection with the audit of our
financial statements and review of our quarterly financial statements and audit services provided in
connection with other statutory or regulatory filings.

@  The tax fees for 2004 relate to tax work provided to the company’s Costa Rican subsidiary.

3 We did not engage KPMG LLP to provide advice to us regarding financial information systems design
and implementation during 2005 or 2004. The $10,000 included in all other fees for 2004 relates to an
overview of section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 provided by KPMG LLP to TriQuint.

Pre-Approval of Audit and Non-Audit Services

The audit committee pre-approves all audit and permissible non-audit services provided by its
independent registered public accounting firm. These services may include audit services, audit-related
services, tax services and other services. Prior to engaging TriQuint’s independent registered public
accounting firm to render an audit or permissible non-audit services, the audit committee specifically
approves the engagement of TriQuint’s independent registered public accounting firm to render that service.
Accordingly, TriQuint does not engage its independent registered public accounting firm to render andit or
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permissible non-audit services pursuant to pre-approval policies or procedures or otherwise, unless the
engagement to provide such services has been approved by the audit committee in advance. As such, the
engagement of KPMG LLP to render 100% of the services described in the categories above was approved
by the audit committee in advance of the rendering of the services. The audit committee has determined that
the rendéring of the services other than audit services by KPMG LLP is compatible with maintaining the
principal.accountant’s independence.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS VOTING “FOR” THE RATIFICATION OF THE
AUDIT ‘COMMITTEE’S APPOINTMENT OF KPMG LLP AS TRIQUINT’S INDEPENDENT
REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2006.
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Notwithstanding any statement to the contrary in any of our previous or future filings with the SEC,
this report of the audit committee of the board of directors shall not be deemed “filed” with the SEC or
“soliciting material” under the 1934 Act, and shall not be incorporated by reference into any such filings.

. The audit committee currently consists of three non-employee, independent directors: Willis C. Young,
Paul A. Gary and Edward F. Tuck. The audit committee evaluates audit performance, manages relations
w1th our 1ndependent registered public accounting firm and evaluates policies and procedures relating to
internal accounting functions and controls. The board of directors has adopted a written charter for the audit
committee which details the responsibilities of the audit committee. This report relates to the activities
undertaken by the audit committee in fulfilling such responsibilities. Mr. Tuck is not seeking re-election to
the board ‘of directors, and the board has selected Mr. Gibson to replace Mr. Tuck on the audit committee
after the 2006 annual meeting of stockholders.

On July 30 2002 the Sarbanes-Oxley Act was signed into law. In September 2002, the committee met
with representatlves of management, legal counsel and our independent registered public accounting firm to
further understand the provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. During 2004 and 2005, we reviewed processes
that already are in place as well as those that will be implemented to comply with the requirements of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act as they become effective.

The audit committee members are not active professional accountants or auditors, and their functions
are not\intended to duplicate or to certify the activities of management and the independent registered public
accounting firm. The audit committee oversees our financial reporting process on behalf of the board of
directors. Management has the primary responsibility for the financial statements and reporting process,
including the systems of internal controls. In fulfilling its oversight responsibilities, the audit committee
reviewed with management the audited financial statements included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2005. This review included a discussion of the quality and the
acceptability of the financial reporting and controls, including the clarity of disclosures in the financial
statements.

The audit committee also reviewed with KPMG LLP, the company’s independent registered public
accounting firm, which is responsible for expressing an opinion on the conformity of our audited financial
statements with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, their judgments as to the
quality and the acceptability of our financial reporting and such other matters required to be discussed with
the audit committee under auditing standards generally accepted in the United States, including Statement
on Auditing Standards No. 61, as amended. The audit committee has received the written disclosures and
the letter from the independent registered public accounting firm required by Independence Standards Board
Statement No. 1. The audit committee discussed with KPMG LLP their independence from management
and TriQuint, including the matters in their written disclosures required by Independence Standards Board
Statement No. 1.

The audit committee further discussed with our independent registered public accounting firm the
overall scope and plans for their audits. The audit committee meets periodically with the independent
registered public accounting firm, with and without management present, to discuss the results of the
independent registered public accounting firm’s evaluations of the effectiveness of our internal controls, and
the overall quality of our financial reporting.

The audit committee also reviewed management’s report on internal controls as well as the
independent registered public accounting firm’s report to the company as to its review of the effectiveness
of the company’s internal controls as required under Item 308 of the SEC’s Regulation S-K which
implements section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.
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In reliance on the reviews and discussions referred to above, the audit committee recommended to the
board of directors (and the board has approved) that the audited financial statements be included in the
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005, for filing with the Securities and
Exchangé Commission.

SUBMITTED BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

Mr. Willis C. Young—Chairman
Dr. Paul Gary
Mr. Edward Tuck
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COMMON STOCK OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table provides information regarding the beneficial ownership of our common stock as
of March 22, 2006, by:

» each stockholder known by us to beneficially own more than 5% of our common stock;

¢ each of our directors and director nominees;

» each of our executive officers named in the summary compensation table on page 22; and
+ all of our directors and executive officers as a group.

Except as otherwise indicated below and subject to applicable community property laws, each owner
has sole voting and sole investment powers with respect to the common stock listed.

Number of Total Shares
Qutstanding Beneficially Owned
Shares Number of Shares and Shares Percent of
Beneficially  Underlying Options Underlying Outstanding
Beneficial Owners Owned Exercisable® Exercisable Options  Shares (%)@
5% Shareholders
Mazama Capital Management One S.W.
Columbia, Suite 1500 Portland, OR
07258 . 8,945475 — 8,945,475 6.4%
Directors and Named Executive OfficersD)
Dr.Paul A.Gary ..................... 10,000 133,190 143,190 *
Charles Scott Gibson® ., ............. 1,000 63,750 64,750 *
Nicolas Kauser ...................... 4,000 153,750 157,750 *
RalphG. Quinsey .................... 39,000 615,833 654,833 *
Dr. Walden C. Rhines® . .............. 6,000 135,750 141,750 *
Steven J. Sharp® .......... ... .. .. .. 232,130 1,164,516 1,396,646 *
EdwardF. Tuck ..................... 38,000 125,750 163,750 *
WillisC. Young ..................... 9,109 86,750 95,859 *
Brian P. Balut® . .................... 142,518 251,036 393,554 *
Thomas V.Cordner .................. 51,764 370,420 422,184 *
Todd A.DeBonis .................... 11,278 133,000 144,278 *
J.DavidPye ........ ... ... ... ... 59,479 322,272 381,751 *
All directors and executive officers as a
group (17 persons) ................. 817,466 4,739,356 5,555,822 4.0%

*  Less than 1%

() The address of all directors and named executive officers is the address of our company: 2300 NE
Brookwood Parkway, Hillsboro, Oregon 97124,

@ Includes shares to which each individual had the right at March 22, 2006 to acquire beneficial
ownership through the exercise of vested options, plus options that vest within 60 days of that date.

& Applicable percentage of ownership is based on 140,389,588 shares of common stock outstanding as
of March 22, 2006, together with applicable options for such stockholders. Beneficial ownership is
determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC, and includes voting and investment power with
respect to shares. Shares of common stock subject to options currently exercisable or exercisable
within 60 days after March 22, 2006, are deemed outstanding for computing the percentage ownership
of the person holding such options, but are not deemed outstanding for computing the percentage of
any other person.

@ Includes 1,000 shares held in trust by Mr. Gibson.
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) Inéludes 6,000 shares held by Dr. Rhines’ wife.

©  Excludes 13,600 shares held by a not-for-profit charitable foundation which Mr. Sharp is the trustee
but receives no benefits from the foundation.

M Indludes 59,924 shares held in the Sawtek Employee Stock Ownership and 401(k) for Mr. Balut, and
7,589 shares held in the Sawtek Employee Stock Ownership and 401(k) by Mr. Balut’s wife who is a
former employee of Sawtek; 12,985 shares held directly by Mr. Balut; 3,358 shares held directly by
Mr. Balut’s wife; 21,403 shares held in trust; 35,533 held in an IRA for Mr. Balut; and 1,726 shares
held by Mr. Balut’s son.

SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16(a) of the 1934 Act requires our executive officers and directors, and persons who own more
than 10% of a registered class of our equity securities, to file reports of ownership and changes in ownership
with the SEC and the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. Executive officers, directors and
greater than 10% stockholders are required by SEC regulations to furnish us with copies of all Section 16(a)
forms they file. Based solely on our review of the copies of such forms we have received, or written
representations from certain reporting persons, we believe that during the year ended December 31, 2005,
all executive officers, directors and greater than 10% stockholders complied with all applicable filing
requirements.

21




EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION AND OTHER MATTERS

Summary of Cash and Certain Other Compensation

The following table provides certain summary information for 2005, 2004, and 2003 concerning
compensation awarded to, earned by or paid to our chief executive officer and our four next most highly
compensated executive officers (the “named executive officers”).

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Long Term
Annual Compensation ~ Compensation Award All Other
Salary Bonus Securities Underlying  Compensation

Name and Principal Position Year ($Hw 3@ Options (#) $H®
Ralph G. Quinsey® .................. 2005 $329,293 $ 398 150,000 $ —
President and 2004 325,664 1,979 — —
Chief Executive Officer 2003 316,611 — 300,000 14,628
Brian P.Balut®» ..................... 2005 210,577 1,443 50,000 924
Vice President, Sawtek, Inc. 2004 290,080 2,672 56,600 2,925
2003 186,118 750 70,000 60,871
Thomas V. Cordner .................. 2005 217,800 195 50,000 1,500
Vice President, TriQuint Texas 2004 215,402 1,309 50,000 500
2003 209,748 — 40,000 500
Todd A.DeBonis .................... 2005 221,390 492 70,000 1,500
Vice President, Sales 2004 147,106 185 280,000 500
2003 — — — —
J.DavidPye ........ ... ... ... ... ... 2005 253,238 151 50,000 1,500
Vice President, TriQuint Oregon 2004 249,819 1,493 50,000 500
2003 245,194 — 40,000 500

@ All executive officers listed above, except for Mr. DeBonis who was not an employee at that time,
elected to take a voluntary reduction in base pay of approximately 10% for the second half of 2003.
The base pay was reinstated to the previous levels on January 1, 2004,

@  Represents payments under TriQuint profit sharing programs. Mr. Balut also received an achievement
bonus of $1,000 in the first quarter of 2005.

) Includes matching contributions to the TriQuint 401(k) plan of $1,500 for 2005 and $500 for 2004 and
2003, respectively.

®  Mr. Quinsey joined TriQuint in July 2002 as president and chief executive officer. Included in all other
compensation for Mr. Quinsey is $14,128 for moving and relocation costs for 2003.

®)  The base salary for Mr. Balut in 2004 includes $90,506 for sales incentive commissions while
Mr. Balut was Vice President, Sales and Marketing. All other compensation for Mr. Balut includes a
payment of $799 under the Sawtek ESOP and 401(k) plan for 2005, $2,425 for 2004, and $60,371 for
2003 and a match under the TriQuint 401(k) of $125 in 2005 and-$500 in 2004 and 2003.
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Stock Option Grants in 2005

Thé following table sets forth information concerning stock option grants under the 1996 Stock

Incentive Program to each of the named executive officers during 2005.

i OPTION GRANTS IN LAST FISCAL YEAR

|
‘ Individual Grants®

Number of Percent of Potential Realized Value At
Securities  Total Options Assumed Annual Rates of
Underlying Granted to Stock Prlcg Appreciation
Options Employeesin  Exercise Price  Expiration for Option Term®
Name Granted Fiscal Year® Per Share Date 5% ($) 10% (8)
Ralph G Quinsey ........ 150,000 4.802% $3.65 8/18/2015 $344,320 $872,574
BrianP. Balut ........... 50,000 1.601 3.09 4/26/2015 97,164 246,233
Thomas, V. Cordner ...... 50,000 1.601 3.09 4/26/2015 97,164 246,233
Todd A.DeBonis ........ 70,000 2.241 3.09 4/26/2015 136,030 344,726
J.DavidPye ............ 50,000 1.601 3.09 4/26/2015 97,164 246,233

(€}

()]

€Y

Options granted under the 1996 Stock Incentive Program include both incentive stock options and
nonqualified stock options. All option grants are subject to the discretion of the compensation
committee of the board of directors. The options begin to vest monthly on July 1, 2008 with full
vesting on June 1, 2009.

These calculations are based on certain assumed annual rates of appreciation as required by SEC rules
and regulations governing the disclosure of executive compensation. Under these rules, an assumption is
made that the shares underlying the stock options shown in this table could appreciate at rates of 5% and
10% per annum on a compounded basis over the ten-year term of the stock options. Actual gains, if any,
on stock option exercises are dependent on the future performance of our common stock and overall
stock market conditions. There can be no assurance that the gains reflected in this table will be achieved.

Based on options granted in 2005 totaling 3,123,647 shares to our employees under all stock option
programs.

Stock Option Exercises and Holdings

The following table provides information relating to option exercises by the named executive officers

during 2005. In addition, it indicates the number and value of vested and unvested options held by these
named executive officers as of December 31, 2005.

The “Value Realized” on option exercises is equal to the difference between the fair market value of

our common stock on the date of exercise less the exercise price. The “Value of Unexercised In-the-Money
Options ‘at Fiscal Year-End” is based on $4.45 per share, the closing sales price of our common stock in
trading on the Nasdaq Stock Market on December 31, 2005, less the exercise pnce multiplied by the
aggregate number of shares subject to outstanding options.

AGGREGATED OPTION EXERCISES IN LAST FISCAL YEAR
AND FISCAL YEAR-END OPTION VALUES

Number of Securities Value of Unexercised
Shares Value Underlying Unexercised In-the-Money Options at

Acquired on  Realized Options at Fiscal Year-End (#) Fiscal Year-End (§)

Name Exercise (#) [63) Exercisable Unexercisable  Exercisable Unexercisable

Ralph G. Quinsey ......... — —_ 545,000 405,000 $105,800  $290,200
BrianP. Balut ............ — — 229,161 132,850 40,250 92 150
Thomas V. Cordner . ...... — — 357,920 115,000 74,139 8 1,800
Todd A. DeBonis ......... — — 112,000 238,000 — 95,200
J.DavidPye ............. — — 309,772 115,000 151,398 8 1,800
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information as of December 31, 2005, about our common stock that may
be issued upon the exercise of options and rights granted to employees, consultants or members of our
board of directors under all existing equity compensation plans including the 1987 Stock Incentive Program,
the 1996 Stock Incentive Program, the 1998 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan, the 1998 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan, the Sawtek Inc. Second Stock Option Plan and the Sawtek Inc. Stock Option Plan for

Acquired Companies:
Number of securities
remaining available for
Number of securities future issuance under
to be issued upon Weighted average equity compensation
exercise of exercise price of plans (excluding
outstanding options,  outstanding options, securities reflected in
warrants and rights warrants and rights column(a))
Plan category (a) _(b) {0
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders ....................... 22,156,971 $10.85® 10,951,564®
Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders ....................... 1,283,173 $ 9.56 1,454,405
Total ... 23,440,144 $10.78® 12,405,969

(M Of these shares of common stock, 34,248 shares were subject to outstanding options under the 1987
Stock Incentive Program, 20,850,785 shares were subject to outstanding options under the 1996 Stock
Incentive Program, 1,242,309 shares were subject to outstanding options under the Sawtek Inc. Second
Stock Option Plan and 29,629 shares were subject to outstanding options under the Sawtek Inc. Stock
Option Plan for Acquired Companies.

@  Includes 455,388 shares of our common stock reserved for future issuance under our 1998 Employee
Stock Purchase Plan. The 1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plan provides for an automatic increase of
up to 2,400,000 shares in May of each year.

3 The weighted average exercise price excludes the shares in the 1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
We are unable to ascertain with specificity the number of securities to be issued upon exercise of
outstanding rights under the 1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plan or the weighted average exercise
price of outstanding rights under the 1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. The 1998 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan provides that shares of our common stock may be purchased at a per share price equal to
85% of the fair market value of the common stock on the beginning of the offering period or a
purchase date applicable to such offering period, whichever is lower.

1998 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan

In January 1998, the board of directors approved the 1998 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan (the “1998
Plan”). The 1998 Plan was subsequently amended and restated in July 2003. The 1998 Plan has not been

submitted to our stockholders for approval.

The mateﬁal terms of the 1998 Plan are summarized as follows:

Purpose

The purposes of the 1998 Plan are to attract and retain the best available personnel for positions of
substantial responsibility, to provide additional incentive to employees and consultants and to promote the

success of our business.
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Eligibility to Participate in the 1998 Plan

Nonstatutory stock options may be granted to our consultants and our employees who are not officers
or directors.

Numberjof Shares Covered by the 1998 Plan

The board of directors initially reserved 500,000 shares of our common stock for issuance under the
1998 Plan. Our shares of common stock have split three times (3 for 2 stock split in July 1999, 2 for 1 in
February 2000 and 2 for 1 in July 2000), thus producing an equivalent effect of a 6 for 1 stock split. Due to
these stock splits, the shares of our common stock reserved for issuance under the 1998 Plan increased from
500,000:to 3,000,000 shares. In December 2002, the board of directors amended the 1998 Plan to increase
the aggregate number of shares of common stock authorized for issuance by 1,000,000 due to the grant of
stock options to our new employees from businesses that we acquired in 2002 and early 2003. As of
March 22, 2006, options to acquire 1,229,121 shares had been exercised, options to acquire 1,289,678
shares were outstanding and options to acquire 1,481,201 shares remain to be granted under the 1998 Plan,
out of the 4,000,000 shares reserved for issuance.

Awards Permitted under the 1998 Plan

Thé 1998 Plan authorizes the granting of nonstatutory stock options only.

Terms of Options

The exercise price of an option may not be less than the fair market value of our common stock on the
date of grant and the term of each option shall be stated in the stock option agreement. All of the options
that are’currently outstanding under the 1998 Plan vest and become exercisable over a four-year period
beginning at the grant date. Payment of the exercise price may be made by cash, check, promissory note,
cashless exercise, other shares of our common stock, any other form of consideration permitted by
applicable law or any combination of the foregoing methods of payment. Options may be made exercisable
only under the conditions the board of directors or its appointed committee may establish. If an optionee’s
employment terminates for any reason, the option remains exercisable for a fixed period of three months or
such longer period as may be fixed by the board of directors or its appointed committee up to the remainder
of the option’s term.

Capital Changes

The number of shares available for future grant and previously granted but unexercised options are
subject to adjustment for any future stock dividends, splits, mergers, combinations, reclassification of the
common stock or other changes in capitalization as described in the 1998 Plan.

Merger-or Change of Control

In the event of a merger of our company with or into another corporation, or the sale of substantially
all of our assets, each outstanding option under the 1998 Plan must be assumed or an equivalent option or
right substituted by the successor corporation or a parent or subsidiary of such successor corporation. If the
successor corporation refuses to assume or substitute for the option, the optionee will fully vest in and have
the right to exercise the option as to all of the optioned stock, including shares as to which it would not
otherwise be vested or exercisable.

Termination and Amendment

The 1998 Plan provides that the board of directors may amend or terminate the 1998 Plan without
stockholder approval, but no amendment or termination of the 1998 Plan or any award agreement may
adversely affect any award previously granted under the 1998 Plan without the written consent of the
optionee. '
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EMPLOYMENT CONTRACTS AND TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT AND
CHANGE-OF-CONTROL ARRANGEMENTS

Employment Contracts and Termination of Employment Arrangements

In June 2002, under the terms of his acceptance of employment, Ralph G. Quinsey, our president and
chief executive officer, entered into a letter agreement with us pursuant to which he was to receive an
annual base salary of $330,200, subject to annual review, an annual target bonus of 50% of his base salary
subject to compliance with performance against a corporate wide bonus plan and a stock option grant for
500,000 shares of our common stock (vesting 28% on first anniversary of option grant, then 2% monthly
thereafter until fully vested), a moving and relocation allowance consistent with our corporate polices, with
a tax equalization adjustment, and a signing bonus of $25,000. In the event that we desire to terminate
Mr. Quinsey’s employment without cause, we must provide Mr. Quinsey a lJump sum payment equal to one
year’s compensation at Mr, Quinsey’s then-current base salary and health and life benefits at company
expense for 12 months. The agreement also provides for a change of control benefit of full vesting of 12
months’ worth of unvested options in the event Mr. Quinsey is terminated without cause or resigns for good
reason within 12 months of a change of control.

In April 2004, we entered into a letter agreement with Todd A. DeBonis, our vice president of
worldwide sales. Pursuant to the agreement, Mr. DeBonis receives an annual base salary of $220,000 and a
guaranteed first year sales incentive bonus of approximately $74,000 payable in the first quarter of 2005 and
targeted at 50% of his base compensation annually, a stock option grant of 280,000 shares vesting over a
five year period, and a moving and a relocation allowance consistent with our corporate policies, with tax
equalization adjustment. In the event of a change of control resulting in a termination without cause or
resignation for good reason, we will vest the furthest out 12 months of unvested options. In the event of
termination without cause or resignation for good reason, Mr. DeBonis shall receive 12 months of base pay
along with 12 months of health and life insurance, which shall cease upon Mr. DeBonis’s subsequent
employment or consulting.

In July 2005, we entered into a letter agreement with Stephanie J. Welty, our vice president of finance
and administration, chief financial officer and secretary. Pursuant to the agreement, Ms. Welty receives an
annual base salary of $210,000, subject to annual review, an annual bonus consistent with our bonus
programs, a stock option grant for 15,000 shares of our common stock (vesting 25% per year over a four
year period) and an annual option grant in accordance with our current guidelines. In the event that
Ms. Welty’s employment is terminated without cause or due to death or disability or Ms. Welty resigns for
good reason, Ms. Welty will be entitled to receive, within 30 days of the date of termination, a lump sum
payment equal to 12 months’ base compensation, less appropriate deductions. Bonus payments, if any, will
be made pursuant to the terms of the applicable bonus plan. Additionally, Ms. Welty will receive health and
life insurance benefits with the same coverage provided prior to termination of employment for a 12 month
period immediately following termination. In the event that Ms. Welty’s employment is terminated without
cause or Ms. Welty resigns for good reason at any time from the date our board of directors approves a
transaction which, if consummated, would result in a change in control of the Company and continuing for
12 months following the effective date of such change in control, 12 months’ worth of unvested stock
options held by Ms. Welty will automatically become vested.

26




Change of Control Arrangements

In January 1995, the board approved an amendment to each stock option held by our then-current
executive officers, and to each stock option granted to our future executive officers, as determined from
time to time by the board of directors or a committee thereof, to provide that, in the event we experience a
change of control, certain outstanding stock options held by each executive officer at the time of any such
change of control, regardless of whether such stock options are then exercisable in accordance with their
terms, shall become vested and exercisable as follows:

1. The chief executive officer shall become immediately vested for those shares that would have
‘otherwise become vested over the last 12 months of the options’ vesting schedules.

2. The chief financial officer shall become immediately vested for those shares that would otherwise
‘have become vested over the last eight months of the options’ vesting schedules.

3. All other executive officers shall become immediately vested for those shares that would have
;otherwise become vested over the last four months of the options’ vesting schedules.

This arrangement is applicable to all stock options held by our current executive officers.

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Since January 1, 2004, we believe that, except as described below, there has not been, nor is there
currently proposed, any transaction or series of similar transactions to which we were or are to be a party in
which thé amount involved exceeds $60,000 and in which any director, executive officer or holder of more
than 5% of our common stock, or members of any such person’s immediate family, had or will have a direct
or indirect material interest, other than the compensation agreements described in “Executive Compensation
and Other Matters.” We intend that any such future transactions will be approved by a majority of the board
of directors, including a majority of the independent and disinterested outside directors, and will be on terms
no less favorable to our company than could be obtained from unaffiliated third parties.

' COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION

Our compensation committee is responsible for determining salaries, incentives and other forms of
compensation for directors and executive officers. Our compensation committee consists of Messrs. Gibson,
Gary, Kauser and Rhines. Mr. Quinsey, our chief executive officer, makes recommendations regarding
salaries ‘and incentive compensation for all of our executive officers, but does not participate in the
deliberations of the compensation committee. No interlocking relationship exists between any member of
our compensation committee and any member of any other company’s board of directors or compensation
committee.
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REPORT OF THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Notwithstanding any statement to the contrary in any of our previous or future filings with the SEC,
this board compensation committee report on executive compensation shall not be deemed “filed” with the
Commission or “soliciting material” under the 1934 Act, and shall not be incorporated by reference into
any such filings.

The compensation committee reviews and approves TriQuint’s executive compensation policies. The
compensation committee operates under a written charter adopted by the board in September 2002 and
amended in May 2005 and March 2006. The following is the report of the compensation committee
describing compensation policies and the rationale applicable to the compensation paid to TriQuint’s
executive officers for fiscal 2005.

Compensation Philosophy and Policies for Executive Officers

TriQuint’s executive compensation program is designed to align the interests of executives with the
interest of the stockholders by creating a performance-oriented environment that rewards performance
related to the goals of TriQuint. TriQuint’s executive compensation program is also designed to attract and
retain qualified executives in the highly competitive high technology marketplace in which TriQuint
competes. In this regard, the levels of executive compensation established by the compensation committee
are designed to be consistent with those available to other executives in the industry. In particular:

» We base compensation on the level of job responsibility, individual performance, and company
performance. As employees progress to higher levels in the organization, an increasing proportion of
their pay is linked to company performance and shareholder returns. ’

s We reflect in our compensation the value of the job in the marketplace. To attract and retain a highly
skilled work force, we must remain competitive with the pay of other high technology employers
who compete with us for talent.

* We develop and administer our compensation programs to foster the long-term focus required for
success in our industry.

The program consists of both annual and long-term components, which are considered together in
assessing whether the program is attaining its objectives.

We consider various measures of company and industry performance, including sales, operating
income, net income, and total market value. These data assist us in exercising judgment in establishing total
compensation ranges. We do not assign these performance measures relative weights. Instead, we make a
subjective determination after considering all such measures collectively.

We also compare, or benchmark, our programs with other technology companies of comparable size
and stature to the company. For this benchmarking, we use a peer group of technology companies and
survey data of other semiconductor companies. We compare the executive compensation programs as a
whole, and we also compare the pay of individual executives if we believe the jobs are sufficiently similar
to make the comparison meaningful.

We use the peer group data primarily to ensure that the executive compensation program as a whole is
within the broad middle range of comparative pay of the peer group companies. We do not target a specific
position in the range of comparative data for each individual or for each component of compensation. We
establish individual amounts in view of the comparative data and such other factors as level of
responsibility, prior experience, and our judgment as to individual performance. We do not apply formulas
or assign these factors specific mathematical weights; instead, we exercise judgment and discretion.

Components of Executive Compensation for 2005

1. Base Salary—which is designed to compensate executives competitively within the industry and

the marketplace;
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2.. Quarterly Profit Sharing—which provides a direct link between executive compensation and the
i quarterly performance of TriQuint;

3., Management Incentive Plan—which provides a direct link between executive compensation and
¢ the quarterly and annual performance of TriQuint;

4 Long Term Incentives—which consist of stock options that link management decision making
with TriQuint’s long-term performance and stockholder interests; and

5. Deferred Compensation—which provides officers, directors and certain key employees an option

- to defer a certain portion of their compensation. TriQuint does not contribute any additional

amounts to this program other than the amounts deferred by the individuals who chose to
participate.

Base Sdlaries

Ba“se salary levels for the chief executive officer and other executive officers of TriQuint are reviewed
annually by the compensation committee. The compensation committee’s current policy is to maintain base
salary levels in the second quartile for the industry when compared with those of executives holding similar
positions with other companies in the high technology and semiconductor industries that are similar in size
to TriQuint. The compensation committee reviewed survey data from peer companies and various other
industry. surveys in setting the compensation for the executive officers of TriQuint. Certain companies
included in the peer group index of the stock performance graph are also included in surveys reviewed by
TriQuint in determining salary levels for the chief executive officer and other executive officers of TriQuint.

Quarterly Profit Sharing

A]li U.S. based employees and employees in certain foreign subsidiaries participate in TriQuint’s profit
sharing program. Profit sharing is paid quarterly if the Company’s adjusted operating income meets certain
criteria, and equals a percentage of the employees’ quarterly earnings. The profit sharing pool is equal to
10% of -adjusted operating income. Effectlve January 1, 2005, for all employees employed in the United
States, the profit sharing amount is paid quarterly in cash. During 2005, 2004 and 2003, the profit share
payments have less than $2,000 per each eligible executive officer.

Management Incentive Plan

In March 2006, the compensation committee of the board of directors approved the 2006 management
incentive plan to provide appropriate short-term and long-term incentives to members of the Company’s
senior management team. The Plan participants include all officers, except those on a commission plan, as
well as certain senior managers and individual contributors. However, participants must be in ‘a regular,
active employment status on the date of payment to receive the incentive. Possible payout from the Plan will
be semi-annual and will range from 0% to 22.5% of base salary for officers and 0% to 15% of base salary
for other participants based upon achievement of specific company and business unit/group performance
goals. The plan replaces the Officer and Key Incentive Plan approved by the board in February 2004. There
were no payments to any officer or employee pursuant to either plan in 2003, 2004 or 2005. An
achievement bonus of $1,000 was paid to Mr. Balut in the first quarter of 2005.

Long-Term Incentives

- TriQuint provides its executives, including the chief executive officer, long-term incentives through the
grant of stock options under its 1996 Stock Incentive Program. The purpose of the 1996 Stock Incentive
Program is to create a direct link between compensation and the long-term performance of TriQuint. Stock
options under this program are generally granted at an exercise price equaling 100% of fair market value,
have. a ten-year term and generally vest in installments over four years. Because the receipt of value by an
executive officer under a stock option is dependent upon an increase in the price of TriQuint’s common
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stock, this portion of the executives’ compensation is directly aligned with an increase in stockholder value.
Stock options are granted to executive officers in conjunction with each executive officer’s acceptance of
employment with TriQuint, upon promotion to executive officer, and annually based on several factors.
When determining the number of stock options to be awarded to an executive officer, the compensation
committee considers (i) the executive’s current contribution to TriQuint’s performance, (ii) the executive’s
anticipated contribution in meeting TriQuint’s long-term strategic performance goals and (iii) comparisons
to an internally generated informal survey of executive stock option grants made by other high technology
and semiconductor companies at a similar stage of development as TriQuint. Individual considerations, such
as the executive’s current and anticipated contributions to TriQuint’s performance, may be more subjective
and less measurable by financial results at the corporate level. In this respect, the compensation committee
exercises significant judgment in measuring the contribution or anticipated contribution to TriQuint’s
performance. The compensation committee also periodically reviews the stock options granted to insure
equitable distribution of such options among the officers.

Other -

TriQuint’s executive officers are also eligible to participate in compensation and benefit programs
generally available to other employees, including TriQuint’s employee stock purchase plan.

Chief Executive Officer Compensation for 2006

In establishing Mr. Quinsey’s compensation for 2005, the compensation committee applied the
principles outlined above in the same manner as they were applied to the other executives. The
compensation committee and the full board of directors set the base salary for Mr. Quinsey on his date of
hire in July 2002 at $330,200 per year subject to annual review. Mr. Quinsey took a voluntary 10%
reduction in his base salary during the second half of 2003. Mr. Quinsey’s base pay was restored back to
$330,200 on January 1, 2004, and it remains at that amount. The compensation committee will review
Mr. Quinsey’s compensation for 2006 in the second quarter of 2006.

Deductibility Cap on Executive Compensation

The compensation committée has considered the potential impact of Section 162(m) of the Internal
Revenue Code on the compensation paid to TriQuint’s executive officers. Section 162(m) disallows a tax
deduction for any publicly held corporation for individual compensation exceeding $1.0 million in any
taxable year for any of the named executive officers, unless compensation is performance-based. In general,
it is the compensation committee’s-policy to qualify, to the maximum extent possible, its executives’
compensation for deductibility under applicable tax laws.

Conclusion

The compensation committee and the board believe that the caliber and motivation of all our
employees, and especially our executive leadership, are essential to the company’s performance. We believe
our management compensation programs contribute to our ability to differentiate our performance from
others in the marketplace. We will continue to evolve and administer our compensation program in a
manner that we believe will be in stockholders’ interests and Worthy of stockholder support.

SUBMITTED BY THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

Mr. Charles Scott Gibson—Chairman
Dr. Paul Gary

Mr. Nicolas Kauser

Dr. Walden C. Rhines

30




STOCK PRICE PERFORMANCE GRAPH

Notwithstanding any statement to the conirary in any of our previous or future filings with the SEC, the
following information relating to the price performance of our common stock shall not be deemed “filed”
with the Commission or “soliciting material” under the 1934 Act, and shall not be incorporated by
reference into any such filings.

Set forth below is a line graph comparing the annual percentage change in the cumulative return to the
stockholders of our common stock with the cumulative return of the Nasdaq U.S. Index and the SIC
Code 3674—Semiconductors and Related Devices Index for the period commencing December 31, 2000
and ending on December 31, 2005.

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE FIVE YEARTOTAL RETURN
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2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

TriQuint Semiconductor, Inc.  .................. 100.00 28.06 9.71 16.18 10.19 10.19
NasdaqU.S.Index .......... ... ... ... 0. 100.00 79.21 5446 82.12 89.65 91.54
Peer Group . ... 100.00 81.40 38.64 7231 59.00 63.80

* No cash dividends have been declared or paid on our common stock. Stockholder returns over the
indicated period should not be considered indicative of future stockholder returns. The peer group index
used, SIC Code 3674—Semiconductors and Related Devices, utilizes the same methods of presentation
and assumptions for the total return calculation as our company and the Nasdaq U.S. Index. All
companies in the peer group index are weighted in accordance with their market capitalizations.
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OTHER MATTERS

We know of no other matters to be submitted at the annual meeting. If any other matters properly come
before the annual meeting, it is the intention of the persons named in the enclosed proxy card to vote the
shares they represent as the board of directors may recommend.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
TRIQUINT SEMICONDUCTOR, INC.
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ANNEX A

TRIQUINT SEMICONDUCTOR, INC.
NOMINATING AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE CHARTER
(Adopted September 25, 2002)

PURPOSE:

The purpose of the Nominating and Governance Committee of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of
TriQuint Semiconductor, Inc. (the “Company”} is to ensure that the Board is properly constituted to meet its
fiduciary obligations to stockholders and the Company and that the Company has and follows appropriate
governance standards. To carry out this purpose, the Nominating and Governance Committee shall:
(1) assist the Board by identifying prospective director nominees and to recommend to the Board the
director nominees for the next annual meeting of stockholders; (2) develop and recommend to the Board the
governance principles applicable to the Company; (3) oversee the evaluation of the Board and management;
and (4) recommend to the Board director nominees for each committee.

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP AND ORGANIZATION:

» The Nominating and Governance Committee shall be comprised of no fewer than three members.

+ The members of the Nominating and Governance Committee shall meet the independence
requirements of The Nasdaq Stock Market.

* The members of the Nominating and Governance Committee shall be appointed and replaced by the
Board.
COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITIES AND AUTHORITY:

* Evaluate the current composition, organization and governance of the Board and its committees,
determine future requirements and make recommendations to the Board for approval.

* Determine on an annual basis desired Board qualifications, expertise and characteristics and conduct
searches for potential Board members with corresponding attributes. Evaluate and propose nominees
for election to the Board. In performing these tasks, the Nominating and Governance Committee
shall have the sole authority to retain and terminate any search firm to be used to identify director
candidates.

* Ensure that independent members of the Board convene executive sessions regularly.
* Review the appropriateness of each Board member’s continued service every three years.

* Oversee the Board performance evaluation process including conducting surveys of director
observations, suggestions and preferences.

* Form and delegate authority to subcommittees when appropriate.

« Evaluate and make recommendations to the Board concerning the appointment of directors to Board
committees, the selection of Board committee chairs and proposal of the Board slate for election.
Consider stockholder nominees for election to the Board.

* BEvaluate and recommend termination of membership of individual directors in accordance with the
Board’s governance principles, for cause or for other appropriate reasons.

* Review, approve and monitor the Company’s code of ethics for senior financial officers.

* Conduct an annual review on succession planning, report its findings and recommendations to the
Board, and work with the Board in evaluating potential successors to executive management positions.
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Coordinate and approve Board and committee meeting schedules.

Maintain minutes of its meetings, which minutes will be filed with the minutes of the meetings of the
Board.

Make regular reports to the Board.

Review and re-examine this Charter annually and make recommendations to the Board for any
proposed changes.

Annually review and evaluate its own performance.

In performing its responsibilities, the Nominating and Governance Committee shall have the
authority to obtain advice, reports or opinions from internal or external counsel and expert advisors.

Review the independence of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer.
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ANNEX B

TRIQUINT SEMICONDUCTOR, INC.
COMPENSATION COMMITTEE CHARTER
(Adopted September 25, 2002) ’
(Amended May 12, 2005 and March 3, 2006)

]Purpose

The purpose of the Compensanon Committee (the “Comm1ttee”) of the Board of Directors (the
“Board”) of TnQumt Semiconductor, Inc. (the “Company”) shall be to make recommendations to the Board
concerning, and monitor and implement the Board’s direction relating to, the company’s compensation
phllosophy and framework for all employees.

The Committee is also responsible for producing an annual report on executive compensation for
1ncluslon in the Company’s proxy statement.

The Committee has the authority to undertake the specific dutles and responsibilities listed below and
will have the authority to undertake such other specific duties as the Board from time to time prescribes.

Membership and Orghnization

The Committee will be appointed by and will serve at the dlscretlon of the Board. The Committee shall
consist of no fewer than two members. The members of the Committee shall meet (i) independence
requirements of the listing standards of The Nasdaq Stock Market, (ii) non-employee director definition of
Rule 16b-3 promuilgated under Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and (iii) the
outside director definition of Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

The members of the Committee will be appointed by the Board. Committee members will serve at the
discretion of the Board.

The Committee will maintain written minutes of its meetmgs which will be filed with the minutes of
the meetmgs of the Board.

Responsnbllmes and Authority

1. The Committee shall annually review and approve for the Chief Executive Officer: (a) the annual
base salary, (b) the annual incentive bonus, including the specific performance goals and amount, (c) equity
grants such as stock options, (d) employment agreements, severance arrangements and change in control
agreements/provisions, and (e) any other benefits, compensation or arrangements. The Board shall annually
review the performance of the Chief Executive Officer.

2. The Committee shall annually review and approve for the other executive officers of the Company
(a) annual base salaries, (b) annual incentive bonus, (¢) equity grants such as stock options, (d) employment
agreements, severance arrangements and change in control agreements/provisions, and (e) any other
benefits, compensation or arrangements.

3. The Committee may make recommendations to the Board with respect to the philosophy and
framework of incentive compensation plans for non-executive, management personnel, and within board-
approved philosophies and frameworks, shall have authority to approve specific plans.

4. The Committee shall approve at least annually an allocation matrix for grants pursuant to the
Company’s equity incentive compensation plans for newly-hired non-executive employees and shall
delegate to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer the authority to make such
grants in accordance with such matrix.
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5. The Committee shall at least annually review and approve allocation guidelines for annual refresh/
performance equity compensation for non-executive employees, and shall delegate to the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer the authority to make grants within those guidelines.

6. The Committee shall approve any special equity grants to non-executive officers.
7. The Committee may form and delegate authority to subcommittees when appropriate.
8. The Committee shall make regular reports to the Board.

9. The Committee shall review and reassess the Committee’s charter, structure, processes and
membership requirements at least annually and submit any recommended changes to the Board for its
consideration.

10. The Committee shall annually review its own performance.

11. The Committee shall have the sole authority to retain and terminate any compensation consultant to
be used by the Company to assist in the evaluation of Chief Executive Officer or executive officer
compensation and shall have sole authority to approve the consultant’s fees and other retention terms.

12. The Committee shall have the authority to obtain advice and assistance from internal or external
legal, accounting or other advisors.
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ANNEX C

TRIQUINT SEMICONDUCTOR, INC.
AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER
(Adopted as of June 5, 2000)
(Amended September 25, 2002; February 10, 2005; and March 2, 2006)

Purpose

Thé parpose of the Audit Committee (the “Committee”) is to provide assistance to the Board of
Directors (the “Board”) of TriQuint Semiconductor, Inc. (the “Company”) in fulfilling the Board’s
oversight of the Company’s compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the Company’s accounting
and system of internal controls, the quality and integrity of the Company’s financial reports and the
independence, qualification and performance of the Company’s independent registered public accounting
firm (the “Auditor”) and to prepare the report that the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the
“SEC”) require be included in the Company’s annual proxy statement.

In the exercise of its oversight, it is not the duty of the Committee to plan or conduct audits or to
determine that the Company’s financial statements fairly present the Company’s financial position and
results of operation and are in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Instead, such
duties remain under the oversight of management and the Auditor. Nothing contained in this charter is
intended to alter or impair the operation of the “business judgment rule” as interpreted by the courts under
the Delaware General Corporation Law (the “Delaware Law”). Further, nothing contained in this charter is
intended to alter or impair the right of the members of the Committee under the Delaware Law to rely, in
discharging their oversight role, on the records of the Company and on other information presented to the
Committee, the Board or the Company by its officers or employees or by outside experts such as the
Auditor. It is acknowledged that all of the areas of oversight listed below may not be relevant to all of the
matters and tasks that the Committee may consider and act upon from time to time, and the members of the
Committee in their judgment may determine the relevance thereof and the attention such items will receive
in any particular context.

Membership

The Committee shall consist of three to five members of the Board as determined from time to time.
The members shall be appointed by action of the Board and shall serve at the discretion of the Board.
Members of the Committee shall satisfy the following criteria (as well as any criteria required by the SEC):

1.;Each member will be an independent director, as defined in (i) Nasdaq Rule 4200, (ii) the rules of
the SEC and (iii) the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002;

2. Each member will be able to read and understand fundamental financial statements, in accordance
with the Nasdaq National Market Audit Committee requirements; and

3. At least one member will have past employment experience in finance or accounting, requisite
professional certification in accounting, or other comparable experience or background, including a current
or past position as a principal financial officer or other senior officer with financial oversight
responsibilities.

Committee Organization, Procedures and Reports

1. The members of the Committee shall appoint a Chair of the Committee by majority vote. The Chair
(or in her or his absence, a member designated by the Chair) shall preside at all meetings of the Committee.

2. The Committee shall meet at least four times in each fiscal year, and more frequently as the
Committee in its discretion deems desirable.
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3. The Committee may include in its meetings members of the Company’s financial management,
representatives of the Auditor, any senior internal audit manager and other financial personnel employed or
retained by the Company. The Committee may meet with the Auditor in separate executive sessions to
discuss any matters that the Committee believes should be addressed privately, without management’s
presence. The Committee may also meet privately with management, as it deems appropriate.

4. The Committee will maintain minutes of its meetings, which minutes will be filed with the minutes
of the meetings of the Board.

5. The Committee shall review and reassess the Committee’s charter, structure, processes and
membership requirements at least annually and submit any recommended changes to the Board for its
consideration.

6. The Committee, through its Chair, shall report periodically, as deemed necessary or desirable by the
Committee, but at least annually, to the full Board regarding the Committee’s actions and recommendations,
if any.

7. The Committee shall provide the report for inclusion in the Company’s Annual Proxy Statement
required by Item 306 of Regulation S-K of the SEC.

Oversight
Auditor

1. The Auditor shall be ultimately accountable to the Committee and the Board in connection with the
audit of the Company’s annual financial statements and related services. The Committee shall review and
oversee the independence and performance of the Auditor and shall annually appoint the Auditor and
approve the fees to be paid to the Auditor.

2. The Committee shall receive from the Auditor, at least annually, a written statement delineating all
relationships between the Auditor and the Company, consistent with Independence Standards Board
Standard No. 1. The Committee shall discuss with the Auditor any disclosed relationships or services that,
in the view of the Committee, may impact the objectivity and independence of the Auditor. If the
Committee determines that further inquiry is advisable, the Committee shall recommend that the Board take
any appropriate action in response to the Auditor’s independence.

3. The Committee shall pre-approve audit and non-audit services provided to the Company by the
Auditor (or subsequently approve non-audit services in those circumstances where a subsequent approval is
necessary and permissible); in this regard, the Committee shall have the sole authority to approve the hiring
and firing of the Auditor, all audit engagement fees and terms and all non-audit engagements, as may be
permissible, with the Auditor.

4. The Committee shall review the inspection report of the Auditor conducted by the Public
Accounting Oversight Board in Compliance with Section 104 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002, when
such report is available.

5. The Committee shall review the reports submitted to the Committee by the Auditor in accordance
with the applicable SEC requirements.
Annual Audit

1. The Committee shall meet with the Auditor and management in connection with each annual audit
to discuss the scope of the audit and the procedures to be followed.

2. The Committee shall meet with the Auditor and management prior to the public release of the
financial results of operations for the year under audit and discuss with the Auditor any matters within the
scope of the pending audit that have not yet been completed.
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3. The Committee shall discuss with the Auditor the matters required to be discussed by Statement on
Auditing'Standards No. 61 relating to the conduct of the annual audit.

4. The Committee shall, based on the review and discussions in paragraphs 7 and 8 above, and based
on the disclosures received from the Auditor regarding its independence and discussions with the auditor
regarding such independence in paragraph 5 above, recommend to the Board whether the audited financial
statements should be included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year subject to
the audit.

5. T‘he Committee shall conduct a post-audit review of the financial statements and audit findings,
including any significant suggestions for improvements provided to management by the Auditor.

Quarterly Review

1. The Committee shall direct the Auditor to review the interim financial statements to be included in
any Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of the Company using professional standards and procedures for
conducting such reviews, as established by generally accepted auditing standards as modified or
suppleménted by the SEC and in accordance with Statement on Auditing Standards No. 100, prior to the
filing of the Form 10-Q. The Committee shall discuss with management and the Auditor the results of the
quarterly, reviews including such matters as significant adjustments, management judgments, accounting
estimates, significant new accounting policies and disagreements with management. The Chair or Acting
Chair may represent the entire Committee for purposes of this discussion.

2. The Committee shall review before release the unaudited quarterly operating results in the
Company’s quarterly earnings release.

Internal Controls

1. The Committee shall review on a continuing basis the adequacy and effectiveness of the accounting
and financial controls of the Company and consider any recommendations for improvement of such internal
control procedures. Such review shall include meeting periodically with the Auditor, management and the
senior internal audit manager to review the adequacy of such controls and to review before release the
disclosure regarding such system of internal controls required under the rules of the SEC to be contained in
the Company’s periodic filings and the attestations or reports by the Auditor relating to such disclosure.

2. The Committee shall discuss with the Auditor and with management any significant management
letter provided by the Auditor and any other significant matters brought to the attention of the Committee by
the Auditor as a result of its annual audit.

3. The Committee shall establish procedures for receiving, retaining and treating complaints received
by the Company regarding accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing matters and procedures for
the confidential, anonymous submission by employees of concerns regarding questionable accounting or
auditing matters.

Miscellaneous

1. The Committee shall review legal and regulatory matters that may have a material impact on the
financial statements and related compliance policies and programs.

2. The Committee shall review and approve in advance any proposed related party transactions.

3. The Committee shall obtain, as appropriate, advice and assistance from outside legal, accounting or
other advisors.

4. The Committee shall, if necessary, institute special investigations with full access to all books,
records, facilities and personnel of the Company.
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5. The Committee shall provide oversight and review at least annually of the Company’s risk
management policies, including its investment policies.

6. The Committee shall oversee compliance with the requirements of the SEC for disclosure of
auditor’s services and audit committee members, member qualifications and activities.

7. The Commiittee shall annually review and evaluate its own performance.

COMPENSATION

Members of the Committee shall receive such fees, if any, for their service as Committee members as
may be determined by the Board in its sole discretion. Such fees may include retainers or per meeting fees.
Fees may be paid in such form of consideration as is determined by the Board.

Members of the Committee may not receive any compensation from the Company except the fees that
they receive for service as a member of the Board or any committee thereof.

Delegation of Authority

The Committee may delegate to one or more designated members of the Committee the authority to
pre-approve audit and permissible non-audit services, provided such pre-approval decision is presented to
the full Committee at its scheduled meetings.
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Important Notice to Investors:

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains both historical information and forward-looking
statements about TriQuint Semiconductor, Inc. (“TriQuint”, “we”, “us”, “our” or “our company”). A
number of factors affect our operating results and could cause our actual future results to differ materially
from any forward-looking results, including, but not limited to, those related to our product strategy;
demand for wireless handsets and our product offerings in this market; our product offerings in the base
station market and our outlook for this market; our revenue outlook for our military business; our outlook
for the broadband market; our expectations regarding certain customer-specific products; our competitive
advantages in design and process; our ability to manufacture and sell in international markets; our plans
for our manufacturing facilities; risks associated with manufacturing yields, costs and subcontractor
services; risks associated with our production outside of the U.S.; our reliance on certain suppliers; risks
associated with our backlog; our expectations regarding research and development expenses and selling
general and administrative expenses; our estimates of stock based compensation expenses; our ability to
improve our products and processes and develop new products; our expectations regarding the selling
prices for our handset products; our expectations regarding our competitors and pricing levels; our goal to
reduce production costs and improve performance value for our products; risks associated in protecting
our intellectual property interests; impact of environmental regulations on our business;, and other
comments that involve risks and uncertainties. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements
by terminology such as “anticipates”, “appears”, “believes”, “continue”, “estimates”, “expects”, “feels”,
“hope”, “intends”, “may”, “our future success depends”, “plans”, “potential”, “predicts”, “reasonably”,
“seek to continue”, “should”,” thinks”, “will” or the negative of these terms or other comparable
terminology. These statements are only predictions. Actual events or results may differ materially. In
addition, historical information should not be considered an indicator of future performance. Factors that
could cause or contribute to these differences include, but are not limited to, the risks discussed in the
section of this report titled “Factors that May Affect Future Results.” These factors may cause our actual
results to differ materially from any forward-looking statement.

Although we believe that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable,
we cannot guarantee future results, levels of activity, performance or achievements. Moreover, neither we
nor any other person assumes responsibility for the accuracy and completeness of these statements. We are
under no duty to update any of the forward-looking statements after the date of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K to conform these statements to actual results. These forward-looking statements are made in
reliance upon the safe harbor provision of The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
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PART1I

Item 1.:  Business
Overview

TriQuint Semiconductor, Inc. (“TriQuint,” “we,” us,” “our,” or “our company”) is a supplier of high
performance modules, components and foundry services to the world’s leading communications companies.
We wete incorporated in California in 1991 and reincorporated in Delaware on February 12, 1997. We have
the following wholly-owned operating subsidiaries; TFR Technologies, Inc., TriQuint Semiconductor Texas
LP, TriQuint Semiconductor GmbH, Sawtek, Inc. and Sawtek SRL.

Our focus is on the specialized expertise, materials and know-how of radio frequency (“RF”) and other
high and intermediate frequency applications. We connect the digital world to the global network as a
premier supplier of advanced technology products that address four primary end markets: wireless handsets,
broadband communications, wireless base stations and military systems. We continually strive to lower
customers’ costs and improve system performance through advanced engineering expertise, dedicated
service .and forward-looking design. Our products are designed on various wafer substrates including
compound semiconductor materials such as gallium arsenide (“GaAs™) and piezoelectric crystals such as
lithium ‘tantalate (“LiTa03”). We use a variety of process technologies using GaAs substrates including
hetrojunction bipolar transistor (“HBT”) and pseudomophic high electron mobility transistor (“pHEMT").
Using various other substrates we also manufacture surface acoustic wave (“SAW”) and bulk acoustic wave
(“BAW?) products. Using these materials and our proprietary technologies, we believe our products can
overcome the performance barriers of competing devices in a variety of applications and offer other key
advantages such as steeper selectivity, lower distortion, higher power and power-added efficiency, reduced
size and weight and more precise frequency control. For example, GaAs has inherent physical properties
that allow its electrons to move up to five times faster than those of silicon. This higher electron mobility
permits the manufacture of GaAs integrated circuits that operate at higher levels of performance than silicon
devices. We sell our products and services to major communication and military equipment companies
worldwide with our top ten end customers in 2005 as follows (in alphabetical order): Ericsson Networks,
Kyocera Corp., Motorola, Inc., Nokia Corp., Northrop Grumman Corp., Raytheon Co., Royal Philips
Electronics N.V., Samsung Electronics Company, Texas Instruments, Inc., and ZTE Corp.

In tthe U.S., we have design and manufacturing facilities in Oregon, Texas and Florida with an
additional design facility in Massachusetts and application sales support offices in various locations.
Outside the U.S., we have a production and assembly facility in Costa Rica, a design facility in Germany
and application sales support offices in China, Japan, Korea and Taiwan. We own and operate our own
wafer fabrication, foundry and product test and assembly facilities. We also lease one facility and use
subcontractors for some of our test and packaging processes. We use our proprietary processes in these
facilities to produce high performance RF, analog and mixed-signal modules, components, integrated
circuits ‘and other products at high volumes and believe that control of these manufacturing processes
enables us to be a reliable source of supply with increased opportunities to enhance quality, reliability and
manufacturing efficiency. In addition, control of our manufacturing process and our combined research and
design capabilities assists us in developing new processes and products and increase our ability to be
responsive to customer requirements.

We believe we have vertically integrated our sizeable design and production capabilities to focus on
the needs of RF, analog and mixed-signal applications as a foundation to service our primary end markets.
We also believe our integration strategy allows us to offer cost-saving advantages and high-quality
products, which in turn has made our products the choice of industry leaders across the globe.

Our principal executive offices are located at 2300 N.E. Brookwood Parkway, Hillsboro, Oregon
97124 and our telephone number at that location is (503) 615-9000. Information about our company is also
available at our website at www.triquint.com, which includes links free of charge to reports and
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amendments to those reports we have filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). The
contents of our website are not incorporated by reference in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The public
may read and copy any materials that we file with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 450
Fifth Street, NW, Washington, DC 20549. The public may obtain information on the operation of the Public
Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330.

Industry Background

Market demands for higher levels of performance with reduced cost in electronic communications
systems have produced an increasing number of varied, complex applications. The increased capabilities of
these new systems, in turn, are spawning new markets and a further proliferation of new, sophisticated
applications. Many of these new applications have emerged in the wireless handset, broadband, base station
and military markets.

The wireless handset, broadband and base stations markets are constantly changing with the advent of
new and more complex applications such as digital music players, camera phones, digital video, handheld
navigation products based on the global positioning satellite (“GPS”) standard, satellite communications,
wireless local area networks (“WLANSs”) and wireless internet. Wireless communications systems can offer
the functional advantages of wired systems without the costly and time-consuming development of an
extensive wired infrastructure, which is of particular importance in developing parts of the world. In
addition, many of these new applications require battery-powered portability. The proliferation of some of
these new applications, combined with a demand for higher data rates to support them due to the more
complex and advanced applications, has led to increased communication traffic resulting in congestion of
the existing assigned frequency bands. As a consequence, wireless communications are moving to higher,
less congested frequency bands and are implementing new, advanced communication standards. The
advantages of wireless communications systems, as well as the increasing demand for wireless
communications at higher frequencies, continue to drive worldwide growth in existing communication
systems and continue to drive the emergence of new markets and applications.

The military market utilizes advanced monolithic microwave integrated circuits (“MMICs”), as well as
SAW and BAW devices for aerospace, military and commercial applications. Aerospace and military
applications include high power amplifiers, low noise amplifiers, switches, voltage controlled oscillators
(*VCOs”), filters and attenuvators for use in a variety of advanced systems such as active array radar,
missiles, electronic warfare and space communications systems. Commercial applications for products and
services in this frequency range include wireless telephone applications, optical fiber links and switching
networks, millimeter wave (“mmW?”) radios for point-to-point and point-to-multipoint systems, phased-
array radar and satellite links both on the orbiting payload and for earth station transmitters.

To address the market demands for higher levels of performance, electronic communications systems
manufacturers have relied heavily on advances in high performance components and modules such as those
we produce. In addition, traditional signal processing technologies included lumped element filters, ceramic
filters, crystal filters, resonators and oscillators. However, today’s high performance electronic systems
require performance beyond that achievable with these technologies.

The performance requirements of certain critical system functions generally cannot be achieved using
silicon based semiconductors or filters, resonators and oscillators based on traditional technologies. As a
result, systems manufacturers are seeking components and modules which can overcome these performance
limitations. GaAs semiconductor technology has become an effective alternative or complement to silicon
solutions in many high performance applications. The higher electron mobility of GaAs permits GaAs
integrated circuits to operate at higher speeds than silicon devices or at the same speeds with lower power
consumption. In addition, SAW and/or BAW technology offers a number of advantages over traditional
filter technologies, including precise frequency control and selectivity, reduced size and weight, high
reliability, environmental stability and the ability to pass RF signals with minimal distortion. In general,




SAW technology has a cost/performance advantage from low frequencies to approximately 2 gigahertz.
BAW technology has a cost/performance advantage from approximately 2 gigahertz to 10 gigahertz.

Inimany new applications, GaAs integrated circuits and acoustic filters (SAW or BAW) enable high
performance systems to process signals and information more quickly and more precisely. In addition, the
use of these components in high performance communications systems can reduce system power
requirements and the physical size and weight of the system, important elements in battery powered or
portable applications. These characteristics, combined with the systems requirements of the
communications industry, have led to the use of our components in high volumes to complement silicon
devices in a wide range of commercial and aerospace systems.

Electronic communications systems manufacturers, particularly wireless handset manufacturers, are
also moving increasingly toward designing integrated modules into their phones, rather than the individual
compoﬂents comprising these modules. By doing this, the handset manufacturers can achieve cost
reductions, optimization of design and reduction of the size of their phones while accelerating design cycles
and time to market. Our high performance GaAs integrated circuits and our SAW filters comprise some of
the primary components in these RF modules. In addition, we are currently developing our BAW
technology to address the needs of higher frequency filters for the next generation of wireless
communication products.

TriQuiht Strategy

Our strategy is to provide our customers with high-performance, low-cost solutions to applications in
the wireless handset, base station, broadband, and military markets. Our mission is, “Connecting the Digital
World fp the Global Network™,” and we accomplish this through a diversified product portfolio within the
communications and military industries. In the wireless handset market, we provide high performance
devices such as RF filters, duplexers, receivers, smail signal components, power amplifiers, switches and
passive components. We have also developed integrated RF modules with the goal of maximizing content
and minimizing stacked margins by offering complete module solutions with almost all subcomponents
sourced from our own technologies and manufacturing facilities. In broadband communications and
wireless base station markets, we are a supplier of both active GaAs and passive SAW components. We
provide the military market with phased-array antenna radar components and in 2005 were awarded the role
of prime contractor on a Defense Advanced Research Projects Agency (“DARPA”) contract to develop high
power wide band amplifiers in gallium nitride (“GaN”), a next generation GaAs derived technology. The
other key elements of our strategy include:

Focusing on RF Power, Filtering and Switching Design Excellence.

We have made substantial investments in our RF power, filtering and switching design capabilities.
Our design teams have specialized expertise to address the needs of each of our target markets. The
foundation of our design resources is an extensive library of cells and associated software tools and
databases necessary to develop new products rapidly and cost-effectively. We believe that our RF power
filtering' and switching design capabilities provide us with a competitive advantage in designing and
developing integrated circuit modules and SAW/BAW-based products for standard or customer-specific
products in our target markets.

Diversification of Business Models, Market Applications, Technologies and Customers.

We offer a broad range of standard and customer-specific products, as well as manufacturing, design
and foundry services, which address numerous end-user applications in a variety of communications
markets. We provide a balanced portfolio of products and services, ranging from foundry services to die
level products, packaged components and integrated modules. Our primary application areas are wireless
handsets, broadband, base station and military. Our products are designed on various wafer substrates using
a variety of technologies. We delivered products and services to over 400 customers during 2005. In
addition, we had over 40 customers that each contributed $1.0 million or more to our revenues in 2005.
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Targeting High-Growth Markets with High Performance Solutions.

We plan to continue to develop and produce high performance standard products and modules. In
2001, we added SAW filters to our portfolio of high performance solutions by acquiring Sawtek, Inc.
(“Sawtek™), which enabled us to offer a complete array of RF products for wireless handsets and base
stations, and in 2005 we added BAW technology to our portfolio with the acquisition of TFR Technologies,
Inc. (“TFR™). Many of our new products are focused on RF modules in wireless handset and broadband
wireless access markets with the following standards and technologies:

* GSM—global system for mobile communications;

* GPRS--—general packet radio service;

* EDGE—enhanced data rates for global evolution;

* CDMA—code division multiple access;

« WDCMA—wide band code division muitiple access;

* WEDGE—a combination of EDGE and WDCMA technology;
¢ 802.11 WLAN—wireless local area network; and

*« WiMAX—wireless metro area network.

We are also investing in the development of technologies and products that address more functionality
within the base station market as well as new opportunities in the automotive market.

Create the smallest, highest performance components and modules with the highest value for the
front-end of various communication systems.

We have introduced a series of new products focused on the RF front-end of wireless applications. One
of these new products is a quad-band GSM/GPRS transmit module which provides GSM/GPRS power
amplifier, filtering and switching capability in the same size package as most GSM power amplifier-only
modules. We believe this is the smallest commercially available module of its kind. Other new products
include new highly-integrated WCDMA transmit modules that reduce the RF front-end complexity of the
third generation of mobile technology, or 3G, data intensive wireless phones; reduced-size WCDMA and
GSM/EDGE receive modules for wireless phones designed to better meet the signal processing needs in
next-generation, multi-module slim-line handsets; a quad-band polar GSM/EDGE power amplifier module
(“PAM”) which improves efficiency, leading to longer battery life; and a WCDMA/GSM quad-band switch
module which provides key functions that 3G handsets require to switch between WCDMA and GSM
bands, in smaller, more compact mobile devices that customers demand.

Capitalizing on Partnerships with Industry Leaders in our Target Markets.

We plan to continue to establish and maintain close working relationships with industry leaders in our
target markets. We also intend to establish strategic relationships with companies that provide access to new
technologies, products and markets. These relationships are critical to providing us with insights into future
customer requirements, which facilitates the timely development of new products and services to meet the
changing needs of our target markets.

Markets and Applications
We focus on four end markets in the electronic communications system industry: wireless handsets,
broadband, base stations and military applications.

Wireless Handsets

The demand for wireless phones has evolved over the past several years as a result of increased
demand for portable voice and data communication capabilities. Users want wireless handsets to provide




signal quality similar to wired communication systems, be smaller and lighter, accommodate longer talk
time and standby time and contain complex functionality such as digital cameras, video recorders, music
players, GPS, Bluetooth, internet access, mobile television and other video standards. To support the
growing demand for wireless data communications, implementation of new standards has evolved such as
GPRS,: EDGE, WCDMA and EV-DO (Evolution-Data Optimized). This increase in wireless
communication traffic has resulted in congestion of the assigned frequency bands, creating capacity issues
for network operators. As a consequence, wireless communications standards are evolving to more
efficiently utilize the available spectrum and demand has increased for handsets that work across multiple
standards and frequency bands. Phones of this complexity provide new technical challenges that our
products are well suited to address.

Our wireless handset revenues are from electronic components for mobile phones including power
amplifier modules, RF modules, switches, low noise amplifiers (“LNAs”), duplexers, triplexers, filter
banks, filters and other RF devices. We sell these products to wireless handset manufactures worldwide.
Historically, the demand for handset components and modules has been driven by the increasing usage of
wireless handsets worldwide and the increasing complexity of those wireless handsets which utilize features
such as multiband radios and global positioning systems. Worldwide, the total number of wireless handset
subscribers continues to grow, with China and India growing at the fastest rates. There are a number of
wireless phone standards in use around the world. GSM and CDMA refer to the primary wireless air
interface standards used. GSM is the most prevalent standard, utilized primarily in Europe and many parts
of Asia and GSM has a growing presence in the U.S. This standard, and its EDGE extension, accounts for
over 70% of total phone sales and subscribers worldwide. CDMA is the standard used principally in North
and South America, Korea, and parts of China and India. Historically, we have more sales of CDMA
standard-based products, such as IF SAW filters, receivers, duplexers, and triplexers. These CDMA
products have characteristics which are better suited for CDMA and in some cases are not used in GSM.
However, over the past several years, we have focused our efforts on the design of products based on the
GSM standard. We believe we have made significant advances and are continuing to gain market share for
GSM products. Our growing GSM product portfolio embraces the needs of third generation of mobile
communication (“3G”) with a complete selection of WCDMA modules. WCDMA is well suited to meet the
performance criteria for mobile internet access including streaming voice / audio / voice, and voice over
Internet protocol (*“VOIP”) calls.

The wireless handset market has experienced growth in each of the past 15 years, except for 2001 due
to a slowdown in the overall economy. In 2005, we estimate the wireless handset market grew to over
800 million units, from our estimates of approximately 680 million units in 2004, In 2006, we are projecting
unit sales to be over 870 million units. Further, we are estimating the global number of subscribers to
wireless communications to grow from approximately 2.9 billion in 2004 to over 3.0 billion by the end of
2006. This growth has been particularly strong due to growth in both China and India as well as the increase
in demand for new phones with additional features. We expect to see continued strengthening during 2006.

In many wireless handset applications, GaAs material and device design can provide key performance
advantages over silicon, such as higher frequency operation, improved signal reception and transmission,
better signal processing in congested bands and greater power efficiency for longer battery life. These are
becoming increasingly important with the new applications and we believe our use of GaAs wafer
substrates and a variety of technologies provides us with the ability to satisfy these market demands.
Further, our access to varied process technologies enables us to combine them in applications to optimize
both product performance and cost. Specifically, we have introduced many new products for this market,
including a family of GSM/GPRS power amplifier modules (“PAMs”) and transmit modules that use
advanced InGaP (Indium Gallium Phosphide) GaAs HBT technology for superior performance. In addition,
our new CuFlip™ flip-chip technology enables small-size, low-cost PAMs with performance equivalent to
larger, more costly products by eliminating traditional wirebond chip connections.
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Historically, we have experienced seasonal fluctuations in our sales of wireless handset components.
Our revenues are generally the strongest in the fourth quarter in response to the holiday selling season. The
first quarter of each year is generally the weakest quarter for wireless handset component revenues, due to
reduced consumer demand subsequent to the holiday selling season.

As a percentage of our total revenues in 2005, our revenues from wireless handsets products accounted
for approximately 43%, as compared to 44% of revenues in 2004 and 46% of revenues in 2003.

Broadband

Our broadband products are those used to support transfer of data at high rates across wireless or wired
networks. Our products for this market include those related to Bluetooth, WLANs / WiFi (wireless
fidelity), WiMAX (worldwide interoperability for microwave access), WiBro {wireless broadband), CATV
(community access television or cable television), microwave radio, cordless telephones, automotive and
optical communications. We also report our multi-market standard products in the broadband category. We
experienced a decline in revenue in this market in 2005 as compared to 2004 due primarily to a decline in
legacy physical layer GaAs optical products and IF filters for WLAN products. Our current strength in this
market is being driven by our dual LNA WLAN product and increased penetration in the cordless phone

market.

Revenues from the broadband market accounted for approximately 21% of our revenues in 2005, as
compared to 22% in 2004 and 22% in 2003.

Base station

We believe there are three major drivers to the base station equipment market. The first is the
continued deployment of base stations in Asia and other emerging markets such as India. The second is the
build-out of GSM/EDGE networks for the U.S. and Latin America to upgrade and expand existing
networks. However, this projected growth could be offset, in part, by the consolidation of network operators
which could reduce the demand of infrastructure investments in the future. The third is the build-out of 3G
WCDMA systems. Demand in the base station market has increased in the past couple of years due to
increased capital spending by network operators, including EDGE rollouts in the U.S., WCDMA rollouts in
Europe and new network build outs in Asia and India.

Base stations are critical to the success of any mobile network because they form the backbone of these
complex wireless communications systems. The demand for base station equipment is related to network
build-out plans of wireless network operators and is highly dependent upon the capital equipment budgets
of those operators. In the base station market we provide products used in base station transceivers and
point-to-point radios, such as SAW filters, foundry services and standard RF components. Revenues from
this end market can vary significantly from quarter to quarter and are dependent on both new base station
build-out and upgrades to existing base stations. Additionally, as the wireless infrastructure networks build
out in developing countries and remote areas, we expect to benefit from point-to-point radio product
demand for back haul communications from base station transceivers and base station controller systems.

Our revenues from base station products accounted for approximately 21% of our total revenues in
2005, as compared to 19% in 2004 and 14% in 2003.

Military
Our largest customers in this market are military subcontractors to the U.S. government. These
subcontractors use our products for phased-array radar to identify, track and target aircraft and threats of
unknown origin as well as in communications systems. The capability to track multiple targets
simultaneously is one of the key enhancements found on the new generation of fighters such as the F-22
Raptor and Joint Strike Fighter (“JSE”). We are teamed with the prime contractors on both of these
programs. Our microwave power amplifiers (“PAs”) will provide the capability to transmit the microwave




power that is at the heart of the radar’s operation. These radars are comprised of large arrays of elements,
each with its own PA. In addition, in 2005 we entered into a multi-year DARPA contract to develop high
power wide band amplifiers in gallium nitride. Gallium nitride HEMT devices provide the higher power
density and efficiency required for high power phased array radar, electronic warfare, missile seeker and
communications systems and we believe that at the end of the program, we will have a reliable,
reproducible and stable gallium nitride process suitable for the Department of Defense and commercial
applications. We hope to expand these programs in 2006 and beyond. However, the current conflict in the
Middle: East is consuming a significant portion of the military budget that may have otherwise been
available for advanced aircraft upgrades and deployments, causing some risk that programs such as the F-22
Raptor and JSF could be delayed.

Our military business accounted for approximately 15% of our total revenues in 2005 and 2004, as
compared to approximately 18% in 2003.

Producﬁ

We offer a broad array of RF, analog and mixed-signal integrated circuits and acoustic filter products
as a foundation to address the needs of our customers in target markets. We utilize specalized substrate
materials and high performance technologies such as pHEMT, HBT, HFET (Heterostructure Field Effect
Transistor), MESFET (Metal-Semiconductor Field Effect Transistor), SAW and BAW to design and
manufacture products which overcome the performance barriers of competing devices. In addition, we
believe our products offer other key advantages such as steeper selectivity, lower distortion, higher power
and power-added efficiency, reduced size and weight and more precise frequency control. Our broad range
of standard and customer-specific integrated circuits, components and modules, and SAW and BAW
duplexers and filters, combined with our manufacturing and design services, allow customers to select the
specific product solution that best fulfills their technical and time-to-market requirements. We believe
efficient manufacturing facilities and processes result in products that provide our customers a favorable
price/pérformance trade-off.

Standard Products

We offer families of standard products for the following target market application areas. These include:

Wireless Handsets

Our products include amplifier modules, filter banks, receivers, switches, duplexers, triplexers,
integrated transmit modules, antenna switch modules and front-end modules. These products address the
needs of system designers for low noise, power efficient amplification, low loss switching and efficient and
accurate frequency conversion. Our products support GSM, EDGE, CDMA and 3G networks and can be
found across this wide spectrum. We believe our highly integrated, smaller sized modules and components
enable quicker design turns, higher performance, lower part count and lower overall solution costs.

Broadband

Broadband is an umbrella term we use for products, standards and technology used to support large
data rates across wireless or wired networks. Bluetooth devices, cable head-end and set-top boxes, GPS
locators, WLAN, WiFi and WiMAX networks, plus VoIP and video on demand (*VOD”) are familiar
members of the broadband universe. Our products in this market include SAW filters, BAW filters and
GaAs active devices. Specific products include high power amplifiers, low noise amplifiers, switches,
attenuators and discrete integrated circuits.




Base station

We are a long-standing supplier of SAW filters for GSM, CDMA and WCDMA base stations. In
addition, we offer our base station customers a full portfolio of other products including general purpose
GaAs integrated circuits and foundry services. We have a wide selection of GaAs MesFET, pHEMT and
HFET power transistors for wireless handset base stations, CATV and active antenna products.

Military

Our products are used in long lead-time, large scale programs. Once a component has been designed
into an end-use product for a military application, the same component is generally used during the entire
production life of the end-use product. As a result, we tend to produce large volumes of these components.
Specific products for this market include PAs for phased-array radar antenna and similar applications for
airborne systems allowing them the capability to track multiple targets simultaneously. Other products
include MMICs, such as frequency converters, control devices, switches, discretes and oscillators.
Additionally, with the purchase of TFR, we expanded our product line to include BAW filter and resonator
products.

Customer-Specific Products and Services

In addition to our standard products, we offer our customers a variety of product options and services
for the development of customer-specific products. Our services include design, wafer fabrication, test
engineering, package engineering, assembly and test. We generally receive revenues from customer-specific
products and services at two stages: when the design is developed and engineered and when we
manufacture and deliver the device. We focus the development of our customer-specific products on
applications involving volume production requirements. As is typical in the semiconductor industry,
customer-specific products are developed for specific applications. As a result, we expect to generate
production revenues only from those customer-specific products that are subsequently produced in high
volume. A substantial portion of our products are designed to address the needs of individual customers.
Frequent product introductions by systems manufacturers make our future success dependent on our ability
to select customer-specific development projects which will result in sufficient production volume to enable
us to achieve manufacturing efficiencies. Because customer-specific products are developed for unique
applications, we expect that some of our current and future customer-specific products may never be
produced in high volume.

Customer-specific designs are generally implemented by one of two methods. Under the first method,
the customer supplies us with detailed performance specifications and we design, develop and manufacture
the integrated circuits. These designs are generated using either our in-house design engineering group or
independent third-party design organizations which have been qualified by us. Under the second method,
we supply circuit design and process rules to our customer and the customer’s internal engineering staff
designs and develops the product, which we then manufacture.

Design and Process Technology

In order to rapidly develop and cost-effectively introduce new products which address the needs of our
customers, we have made substantial investments in building our capabilities in RF, analog and mixed-
signal circuit design technologies. We have developed an extensive library of component cells and
associated software tools and databases which we use to facilitate the design of our integrated circuits. We
have developed techniques for material design as well. The advancement of our products is highly
dependent on our ability to quickly and accurately produce the proper material structure to meet the targeted
end device performance. We have also developed and documented process and design rules which allow
customers to design proprietary integrated circuits themselves. Mixed-signal products, which generally
involve varied and complex functions operating at high frequencies, generally present the most complex




design: and testing challenges. We believe that our extensive cell library, device simulation models,
optimized mixed-signal process technology and design and test engineering expertise in high performance
mixed-signal integrated circuits provide a competitive advantage.

Our manufacturing strategy is to use high volume process technologies when possible to enable us to
provide cost-effective, stable, uniform and repeatable solutions for our customers. We provide advanced
wafer manufacturing processes and we have pursued core process technologies that are cost-effective for
RF, analog and mixed-signal electronic applications. As a result, we are able to enjoy the cost advantages
associated with standard high volume semiconductor manufacturing practices. The core process technology
in our :Hillsboro, Oregon wafer fabrication operation employs both implanted and epitaxial structures,
4 micron metal pitch, typically 0.5 or greater micron geometries, involves 10 to 18 mask steps, has a cutoff
frequency of up to 21 GHz and is scalable. This scalability facilitates further cost reduction and
performance improvement. The process technology employed in our Texas wafer fabrication operation
includes eight advanced performance production processes: 0.5 micron gate length MESFET for amplifier
applications; two 0.15, a 0.25 and a 0.5 micron gate length pHEMT for high power and high frequency
applications; a 0.15 micron gate length raHEMT process for ultra-high frequency and low noise
applications; HBT for high voltage, high linearity and high power density; 0.5 micron gate length HFET for
high voltage, high power amplifiers and switches and Vertical P-I-N diode (VPIN) for signal control
devices' such as switches, limiters and attenuators. In our Florida and Bend, Oregon wafer fabrication
operations, we use manufacturing techniques to produce our SAW and BAW devices that are very similar to
those for integrated circuits.

Customers

We have a broad customer base of leading systems manufacturers. In 2005, we shipped products or
provided manufacturing services to over 400 end-user customers. Motorola, Inc. accounted for 13%, 12%
and 16% of our revenues in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively and Nokia Corp. accounted for 10% of our
revenues in 2004. No other single end customer accounted for greater than 10% of our revenues during
these periods.

Our sales to end customers outside the U.S. accounted for approximately 68%, 58% and 56% of
revenues in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Sales to end customers in China represented the largest
portion .of our non-U.S. sales in 2005, with sales accounting for approximately 23% of our revenues. In
2004, China and Korea represented approximately 15% and 12% of our revenues, respectively. In 2003,
China and Korea represented approximately 15% and 13% of our revenues, respectively. No other country
represented 10% or more of our end customer revenues in any of these periods.

Some of our sales to overseas customers are made under export licenses that must be obtained from the
U.S. Department of Commerce. Trade legislation in either the U.S. or other countries, such as a change in
the current tariff structures, export compliance laws, trade restrictions resulting from war or terrorism, or
other trade policies could adversely affect our ability to sell or to manufacture in markets outside of the U.S.

Manufabturing

We currently have five manufacturing centers located in Oregon, Texas, Florida and Costa Rica as
follows:

* Our facilities in Oregon are located in Hillsboro and Bend. The 254,000 square foot Hillsboro
manufacturing facility on 50 acres of land comprised of approximately 76,000 square feet, of which
21,000 is operated as a Class 10 performance clean room. Our executive, administrative, test and
technical offices are also located at this location. The Bend facility comprises of approximately
14,100 square feet, of which approximately 4,600 is manufacturing space.
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« QOur 540,000 square foot Texas facility is located in Richardson on approximately 38 acres of land.
The Richardson facility has 48,000 square feet of Class 1 performance clean room space; however,
we currently operate the clean room as a Class 10 performance clean room.

* Our 92,100 square foot Apopka, Florida facility is a wafer fabrication and assembly and test facility
located on approximately 16 acres of land. The Apopka wafer fabrication facility includes
16,000 square feet of clean room, of which 2,300 square feet is Class 10 performance clean room.

» QOur 61,300 square foot San Jose, Costa Rica facility is an assembly and test facility for the
production of SAW filters on approximately 2 acres of land. The Costa Rican facility has over
19,000 square feet of clean room space. We use our Costa Rica facility to assemble, package, test
and ship final product to customers. This facility is located in the Metro Free Trade Zone; however
our tax holiday will expire in 2007.

The fabrication of integrated circuits and SAW filter products in these facilities is highly complex and
sensitive to particles and other contaminants and requires production in a highly controlled, clean
environment. Minute impurities, difficulties in the fabrication process or defects in the masks used to
transfer circuits onto the wafers can cause a substantial percentage of the wafers to be rejected or numerous
die on each wafer to be nonfunctional. The more brittle nature of GaAs wafers can also lead to higher
processing losses than experienced with silicon wafers. To maximize wafer yield and quality, we test our
products in various stages in the fabrication process, maintain continuous reliability monitoring and conduct
numerous quality control inspections throughout the entire production flow.

We incur a high level of fixed costs to operate our own manufacturing facilities. These fixed costs
consist primarily of facility occupancy costs, investment in manufacturing equipment, repair, maintenance
and depreciation costs related to equipment and fixed labor costs related to manufacturing and process
engineering. Our manufacturing yields vary significantly among our products, depending upon a given
product’s complexity and our experience in manufacturing it. We have in the past and may in the future
experience substantial delays in product shipments due to lower than expected production yields.

For integrated circuit products made by our Oregon facility, we assemble our products using outside
assembly contractors. Our Texas facility manufactures and sells packaged products, which are also
assembled by outside contractors. Outside assembly services are contracted to approximately 25 vendors, 12
of which are located in the U.S. In addition, we have moved some of our assembly and test operations to
vendors in China, Malaysia and the Philippines. A reduction or interruption in the performance of assembly
services by subcontractors or a significant increase in the price charged for such services could adversely
affect our operating results.

Production Outside of the U.S.

Because of the significant fixed costs associated with the manufacture of our products and components
and our industry’s history of declining prices, we must continue to produce and sell our integrated circuits,
components and modules in significant volume, continue to lower manufacturing costs and carefully
monitor inventory levels. We periodically evaluate our integrated circuit, SAW and BAW components
manufacturing processes as well as the desirability of transferring volume production of those products
between facilities, including transfer to other countries where labor and other manufacturing costs may be
significantly lower than in the U.S. We also consider whether the functional currency of a non-U.S.
operation would be the U.S. dollar or the local currency by evaluating the potential risks of a non-U.S
functional currency and the costs to hedge against currency exchange rate fluctuations.

Raw Materials and Sources of Supply

We generally maintain alternative sources for our principal raw materials to reduce the risk of supply
interruptions or price increases. We purchase these materials on a purchase order basis. The raw materials
used are available from several suppliers for our integrated circuit, module and component manufacturing
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operations. For our GaAs integrated circuit manufacturing operations, we currently have approximately
twenty fully qualified wafer vendors, at least eleven of which are located in the U.S., and six fully qualified
mask set vendors, four of which are located in the U.S. We purchase high performance, multilayer ceramic
packages from three vendors, all of which are located in the U.S. We currently purchase plastic packaging
from approximately seven suppliers, three of which are located in the U.S. We also utilize nonqualified
vendors for these and other materials for use in nonproduction research and test activities.

For our acoustic filter manufacturing operations, we use several raw materials, including wafers made
from quartz, LiNbO3 or LiTaO3 and ceramic or metal packages. Relatively few companies produce these
piezoelectric wafers and metal and ceramic packages. Our most significant suppliers of ceramic surface
mount packages are three companies based in Japan. For our SAW operations, we also utilize ten qualified
wafer vendors, eight of which are located outside the U.S., and two qualified mask set vendors, both of
which are domestic companies.

Our reliance on a limited number of suppliers for certain raw materials and parts may impair our ability
to produce our products on time and achieve acceptable yields. At times in the past, we have experienced
difficulties in obtaining ceramic packages used in the production of certain SAW filters. The acquisition of
relatively simple devices, such as capacitors, has been problematic at times because of the large demand
swings that can occur in the cellular handset market for such components. This risk will spread across a
larger percentage of our total business as a greater portion of our revenues results from our integrated
module product offerings. In an attempt to minimize this problem, we have qualified multiple sources of
supply when possible and intend to maintain a safety stock of raw material inventories of these items.

As: is characteristic of the integrated circuit and acoustic filter component industries, the average
selling prices of our products have decreased over the products’ life cycles and we expect this pattern to
continue. To offset these decreasing selling prices, we rely primarily on obtaining yield improvements and
corresponding cost reductions in the manufacture of existing products, introducing new products of similar
functionality to existing products but with lower cost by design and on introducing new products which
incorporate advanced features and can be sold at higher average selling prices. We also work closely with
our suppliers to obtain continual improvement on pricing of key raw materials and components. As more of
our product offerings migrate toward integrated assemblies requiring the acquisition of outside
manufactured components, we will have to effectively work with our suppliers to reduce the total cost of the
respective bill of material. To the extent that our cost reduction efforts or new product introductions do not
occur in a timely manner or our or our customers’ products do not achieve market acceptance, our operating
results could be adversely affected.

Marketiﬁg, Sales and Distribution

We sell our products through independent manufacturers’ representatives, one independent distributor
and our direct sales staff. As of December 31, 2005, we had approximately 30 independent manufacturers’
representative firms and one independent distributor, which is based in the U.S. Of the independent
manufacturers’ representatives, approximately half are based in the U.S. and half are located in Europe, the
Pacific Rim and South America. Our direct sales staff provides sales direction and support to the
manufacturers’ representatives. We have domestic sales management offices in the metropolitan areas of
San Diego, California; San Jose, California; Boston, Massachusetts; Portland, Oregon; Chicago, Illinois;
and Raleigh, North Carolina. We have also established foreign sales and marketing offices in China,
Finland, France, Germany, Japan, Korea, Malaysia, Sweden and Taiwan.

Backlog :

As of December 31, 2003, our backlog was approximately $71.5 million compared to approximately
$58.5 million as of December 31, 2004. We include in our backlog all purchase orders and contracts for
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products requested by the customer for delivery within approximately 12 months. We expect to ship nearly
all of our backlog by December 31, 2006. The backlog is not necessarily indicative of future product sales,
and a delay or cancellation of a small number of purchase orders may materially adversely affect us.

We do not have long-term agreements with any of our customers, except for certain military-related
contracts, but may enter into long-term agreements in the future. Customers generally purchase our products
pursuant to cancelable short-term purchase orders. Our customers have canceled these purchase orders or
rescheduled delivery dates in the past, and we expect that these events may also occur in the future. If there
is any work in process at the time of cancellation, the customer may be required to pay customary
termination charges. If customers order excess products to secure delivery dates and eventually cancel those
excess orders, the customers may be subject to price renegotiations as a result of lower quantity of units
taken.

Frequently, we can ship our standard products from inventory shortly after receipt of an order, referred
to as “turns business”, and these orders may not be reflected in backlog. Accordingly, backlog as of any
particular date may not necessarily be representative of actual sales for any future period.

Research and Development

Our research and development efforts are directed toward developing enabling technologies, integrated
circuits, acoustic filters and modules. We are also focused on improvement of our existing products’
performance, development of new processes, reductions of manufacturing process costs and improvements
in device packaging.

In 2005, we introduced many new key products, such as new CuFlip™ flip-chip technology which
enables small-size, low-cost PAMs with performance equivalent to larger, more costly products and a
family of GSM/EDGE transmit modules for use in multi-band phones that draw from our vertically
integrated product portfolio.

Our research, development and engineering expenses in 2005, 2004 and 2003 were approximately
$46.7 million, $47.7 million and $51.3 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2005, approximately 410
of our employees were engaged in activities related to process and product research and development. We
expect to continue to spend substantial funds on research and development.

We are continually designing new and improved products to maintain our competitive position. While
we have patented a number of aspects of our process technology, the market for our products is
characterized by rapid changes in technologies. Because of continual improvements in these technologies,
we believe that our future success will depend on our ability to continue to improve our products and
processes and develop new technologies in order to remain competitive. Additionally, our future success
will depend on our ability to develop and introduce new products for our target markets in a timely manner.
The success of new product introductions is dependent upon several factors, including timely completion
and introduction of new product designs, achievement of acceptable fabrication yields and market
acceptance. The development of new products by us and the design into customers’ systems can take
several years, depending upon the complexity of the device and the application. Accordingly, new product
development requires a long-term forecast of market trends and customer needs. Furthermore, the
successful introduction of our ongoing products may be adversely affected by competing products or
technologies. In addition, new product introductions frequently depend on our development and
implementation of new process technologies. If we are unable to design, develop, manufacture and market
new products successfully, our future operating results will be adversely affected. We cannot assure you
that our product and process development efforts will be successful or that our new products will be
available on a timely basis or achieve market acceptance.
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Competition

The markets for our products are characterized by price competition, rapid technological change, short
product life cycles, and heightened global competition. Many of our competitors have significantly greater
financial, technical, manufacturing and marketing resources. Due to the increasing requirements for high-
speed, high-frequency components, we expect intensified competition from existing integrated circuit and
acoustic, device suppliers, as well as from the entry of new competitors to our target markets and from the
internal 'operations of some companies producing products similar to ours for their internal requirements.
There isino guarantee that pricing will stay at a level where we can sell our products on a profitable basis.

For our integrated circuit devices, we compete primarily with manufacturers of GaAs integrated
circuits. Our GaAs-based competitors include companies such as Anadigics Inc., Eudyna, Inc., Freescale
Semiconductor, Inc., Raytheon Co., RF Micro Devices, Inc., Skyworks Solutions, Inc., Renesas Technology
Corp. and others. For our SAW devices our competitors include companies such as ICS Technologies, Inc.,
Phonon Corp., RF Monolithics, Inc., Vectron International, EPCOS AG, Temex SAS, TAI-SAW
Technology Co., Fujitsu Microelectronics, Inc., Murata Manufacturing Co., Panasonic Corp. and others.
Competition could also come from companies ahead of us in developing alternative technologies such as
indium phosphide (“InP”) integrated circuits and digital filtering and direct conversion devices.

Our prospective customers are typically systems designers and manufacturers that are considering the
use of GaAs integrated circuits or SAW and BAW filters, as the case may be, for their high performance
systems. Competition is primarily based on performance elements such as speed, complexity and power
dissipatibn, as well as price, product quality and ability to deliver products in a timely fashion. We believe
that we currently compete favorably with respect to these factors. Due to the proprietary nature of our
products, competition occurs almost exclusively at the system design stage. As a result, a design win by our
competitors or by us often limits further competition with respect to manufacturing a given design. While
our GaAs integrated circuit products have inherent speed advantages over silicon or other related devices,
the speed of products based upon silicon and other related processes is continually improving and may
displace some of our GaAs products in the future. Our products are often sole sourced to our customers and
our operating results could be adversely affected if our customers were to develop other sources for our
products.

Intellectual Property Matters

We rely on a combination of patents, trademarks, trade secret laws, confidentiality procedures and
licensing arrangements to protect our intellectual property rights. We currently have patents granted and
pending in the U.S. and elsewhere and intend to continue to apply for patents on our technology. We have
approximately 160 patents that expire from 2006 to 2023, with most expiring between 2015 and 2023. We
currently do not have any significant revenue related to a patent that will soon expire. In addition to having
our own patents and patent applications, we have acquired a substantial portfolio of U.S. and foreign patent
applications in the optoelectronics area of technology. Many of these patent applications have issued as
patents and will have lives that will extend 20 years from their respective filing dates, while others are still
pending.or have been abandoned. We also have acquired a number of patents in the BAW area of
technology which will expire 20 years from their respective filing dates. We cannot be certain that patents
will be issued from any of our pending applications or that patents will be issued in all countries where our
products can be sold. Further, we cannot be certain that any claims allowed from pending applications will
be of sufficient scope or strength to provide meaningful protection or any commercial advantage. Our
competitors may also be able to design around our patents. The laws of some countries in which our
products, are or may be developed, manufactured or sold, may not protect our products or intellectual
property. rights to the same extent as do the laws of the U.S., increasing the possibility of piracy of our
technology and products. Although we intend to vigorously defend our intellectual property rights, we may
not be able to prevent misappropriation of our technology. OQur competitors may also independently develop
technologies that are substantially equivalent or superior to our technology.
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Notwithstanding our active pursuit of patent protection, we believe that our future success will depend
primarily upon the technical expertise, creative skills and management abilities of our officers and key
employees rather than on patent ownership. We also rely substantially on trade secrets and proprietary
technology to protect our technology and manufacturing know-how, and works actively to foster continuing
technological innovation to maintain and protect our competitive position. There can be no assurance that
our competitors will not independently develop or patent substantially equivalent or superior technologies.

Our involvement in any patent dispute or other intellectual property dispute or action to protect trade
secrets and know-how could have a material adverse effect on our business. Adverse determinations in any
litigation could subject us to significant liabilities to third parties, require us to seek licenses from third
parties and prevent us from manufacturing and selling our products. Any of these situations could have a
material adverse effect on our business.

Environmental Matters

Federal, state and local regulations impose various environmental controls on the storage, handling,
discharge and disposal of chemicals and gases used in our manufacturing processes. We provide our own
manufacturing waste water treatment and disposal for our manufacturing facilities and have contracted for
the disposal of hazardous waste. State agencies require us to report usage of environmentally hazardous
materials and have retained the appropriate personnel to help ensure compliance with all applicable
environmental regulations. We believe that our activities conform to present environmental regulations;
however, increasing public attention has been focused on the environmental impact of semiconductor
operations and these regulations may require us to fund remedial action regardless of fault. For example,
new European regulations such as the Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment (“WEEE”) and the
Reduction of the use of certain Hazardous Substances in electrical and electronic equipment (“RoHS”)
directives could require us to both redesign our products to comply with the standards and develop
compliance administration systems. Currently however, we believe the majority of our products are
compliant with these emerging regulations. Further, while we have not experienced any materially adverse
effects on our operations from environmental regulations, there can be no assurance that changes in such
regulations will not impose the need for additional capital equipment or other requirements. Any failure by
us to adequately restrict the discharge of hazardous substances could subject us to future liabilities or could
cause our manufacturing operations to be suspended.

Employees

As of December 31, 2005, we employed a total of approximately 1,575 persons, including
approximately 910 in manufacturing and support related positions, 35 in quality and reliability, 410 in
process, product and development engineering, 90 in marketing and sales and 130 in general and
administration functions. As of December 31, 2005, none of our domestic employees were represented by a
collective bargaining agreement; however at our German operation, approximately 33 of our employees are
represented by a collective bargaining agreement. We consider our relations with employees to be good and
we have not experienced a work stoppage due to labor issues.

Item 1A, Risk Factors
Risk Factors

An investment in our common stock is extremely risky. This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains
forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties, as well as assumptions that, if they never
materialize or prove incorrect, could cause our actual results to differ materially from those expressed or
implied by such forward-looking statements. Such statements reflect management’s current expectations,
assumptions and estimates of future performance and economic conditions. Such statements are made in
reliance upon the safe harbor provisions of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The following are some of the factors we
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believe could cause our actual results to differ materially from expected and historical results. The trading
price of our common stock could decline due to any of these risks and you may lose part or all of your
investment. Other factors besides those listed here could also adversely affect us.

Our opérating results may fluctuate substantially, which may cause our stock price to fall.

Our quarterly and annual results of operations have varied in the past and may vary significantly in the
future due to a number of factors including, but not limited to, the following:

* cancellation or delay of customer orders or shipments;

* market acceptance of our products and those of our customers;

. \fariability of the life cycles of our customers’ products;

« variations in manufacturing yields;

* timing of announcements and introduction of new products by us and our competitors;
+ changes in the mix of products we sell;

» declining average sales prices for our products;

. éhanges in manufacturing capacity and variations in the utilization of that capacity;
* variations in operating expenses;

. iinpainnents of our assets;

. the long sales cycles associated with our customer-specific products;

* the timing and level of product and process development costs;

. aivailability of materials used in the assembly of our products;

. véﬁations in raw material quality and costs;

. délays in new process qualification or delays in transferring processes;

* additional costs or delays in increasing manufacturing capacity needed to support increasing
customer demand,

» the timing and level of nonrecurring engineering revenues and expenses relating to customer-specific
products;

* significant changes in our and our customers’ inventory levels; and

¢ delivery terms requiring that we cover shipment and insurance costs as well as request that we cover
duty costs.

We expect that our operating results will continue to fluctuate in the future as a result of these and
other factors. Any unfavorable changes in these or other factors could cause our results of operations to
suffer as they have in the past. Due to potential fluctuations, we believe that period-to-period comparisons
of our results of operations are not necessarily meaningful and should not be relied upon as indicators of our
future performance.

Additionally, if our operating results are not within the market’s expectations, then our stock price may
fall. The public stock markets have experienced extreme price and trading volume volatility, particularly in
high technology sectors of the market. This volatility has significantly affected the market prices of
securities of many technology companies for reasons frequently unrelated to or disproportionately impacted
by the operating performance of these companies. These broad market fluctuations may adversely affect the
market price of our common stock.
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New competitive products and technologies brought into the market could reduce demand for our current
product afferings. Further, our business may be adversely impacted if we fail to successfully introduce new
products or to gain our customers’ acceptance of those new products.

The markets for electronic communications applications in which we participate are subject to intense
competition, rapid technological change, and short product life cycles. It is critical for companies such as
ours to continually and quickly develop new products to meet the changing needs of these markets. If we
fail to develop new products to meet our customers’ needs on a timely basis, we will not be able to
effectively compete in these markets. Further, new products could be introduced by competitors that have a
competitive and technological advantages over our current product line-up. For example, new products have
been introduced that use a direct conversion architecture in wireless phones. Direct conversion architecture
has been available since the mid-1990’s for GSM phones and wireless phone manufacturers are increasingly
using this technology in their new handsets. This technology reduces the number of components needed in
the receiver portion of wireless phones, including our SAW IF filter products. As a result of the adoption of
direct conversion technology, the sale of our IF filters declined approximately 79% in 2005 as compared to
2004. Other competitive filtering technologies, including BAW and film bulk acoustic resonator (“FBAR”),
a form of BAW, have been introduced and have gained market acceptance in certain applications.

We are actively pursuing new products such as RF filters, duplexers, power amplifiers, RF modules
and BAW filtering to offset the decline in sales of products affected by direct conversion architecture and
the loss of revenues from new filtering technologies. If we fail to design and produce these products in a
manner acceptable to our customers, or have incorrectly anticipated our customers’ demand for these types
of products, our business, financial condition and results of operation will suffer.

Our business will be adversely impacted if we do not continue to gain market acceptance of our wireless phone
module products or develop effective manufacturing processes to produce them.

Our strategy for wireless phone products depends in large part upon the success of our design and
marketing of wireless phone modules. Wireless phone modules represent the incorporation of some or all of
the components of the wireless phone radio into a single product. If we are unable to design these modules
in a manner acceptable to our customers or have incorrectly anticipated our customers’ demand for these
products, our operating results will be adversely affected.

Manufacturing RF module products represents a departure from our traditional component
manufacturing business. Production of module products entails different manufacturing and planning
processes, costs, yields, and lead times. If we fail to successfully transition manufacturing resources to
produce these products or are unable to do so cost-effectively, our operating results will be adversely
affected. Our current experience is that increased module sales are having a negative impact on our gross
margins due to our production costs. If we are unable to reduce the costs of producing modules, our total
gross margin will decrease as the proportion of module sales increase and our operating results may decline.

Our operating results may suffer due to fluctuations in demand for semiconductors and electronic
‘communications components.

From time to time, our wireless phone, broadband, base station and military markets have experienced
significant downturns and wide fluctuations in product supply and demand, often in connection with, or in
anticipation of, maturing product cycles, capital spending cycles and declines in general economic
conditions. The cyclical nature of these markets has led to significant imbalances in demand, inventory
levels and production capacity. It has also accelerated the decrease of average selling prices per unit. We
have experienced, and may experience again, periodic fluctuations in our financial results because of these
or other industry-wide conditions. For example, if demand for communications applications were to
decrease substantially, demand for the integrated circuits and modules, components and other products in
these applications would also decline, which would negatively affect our operating results.
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We depénd on the continued growth of communications markets and cost-effective selling prices.

We derive our product revenues from sales of products and services for electronic communication
applications. These markets are characterized by the following:

* cyclical demand;

. intense competition;

. fapid technological change; and

» short product life cycles, especially in the wireless phone market.

The electronic communications markets are currently above their cyclical lows of the recent past,
however there is no guarantee that these markets will resume historical growth rates. Further, as is
characteristic of the integrated circuit and acoustic filter component industries, the average selling prices of
our products have historically decreased over the products’ life cycles and we expect this pattern to
continue. To offset these decreasing selling prices, we rely primarily on obtaining yield improvements and
corresponding cost reductions in the manufacture of existing products and on introducing new products of
similar functionality to existing products but with lower costs by design or new products which incorporate
advanced features and can be sold at higher average selling prices. We also work closely with our suppliers
to obtain continual improvement on pricing of key raw materials and components. As more of our product
offerings migrate toward integrated assemblies requiring the acquisition of outside manufactured
components, we will have to work effectively with our suppliers to reduce the total cost of the respective
bill of material.

If the current market demand trend does not continue to improve, and/or if there is continued pressure
on average selling prices and our cost reduction efforts are not effective, our operating results could suffer.
Additionally, our future success will depend, in part, upon our ability to successfully develop and introduce
new products based on emerging industry standards. If these introductions do not occur in a timely manner,
or if our customers’ products do not achieve market acceptance, our operating results could be adversely
affected.

We may be unable to successfully design and manufacture new products that address the needs of our
customers or that will meet with substantial market acceptance.

In the event we are not able to satisfy a significant increase in demand from any one of our customers or our
customers in total we may not be viewed as a dependable high volume supplier and our customers will source
their demand elsewhere.

In some areas of our business, we have customers, particularly those in the wireless handset market,
which ship their completed products in very large unit volumes. These customers may require large
inventories of our products on short notice. If we are unable to support our customers when their production
volume increases, we may be considered an undependable supplier and our customer may seek alternate
suppliers for products which we may have anticipated producing over an extended period of time and in
large quantities. If our customers consider us to be an undependable supplier, our operating results could be
adversely affected as we may not be able to find alternative sources of revenue.

Our ﬁndncial statements will have a significant material adverse charge when we are required to expense
share-based payment to employees.

On December 16, 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment, which replaces
SFAS No. 123, supersedes APB No. 25, and amends SFAS No. 95, Statement of Cash Flow. SFAS
123(R) became effective for us on January 1, 2006. During the periods presented in this Form 10-K, we
used the Black-Scholes model for option expense calculation and have presented pro forma disclosure of the
income statement effect in financial statement footnotes under SFAS No. 123. However, under
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SFAS No. 123(R), pro forma disclosure of the income statement effects of share-based payments will no
lIonger be an alternative and all share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock
options and the benefits of the employee stock purchase plan (“ESPP”) will be recognized in the financial
statements based on their fair values. In addition, we must also recognize compensation expense related to
any awards that are not fully vested as of the effective date. Compensation expense for the unvested awards
will be measured based on the fair value of the awards previously calculated in developing the pro forma
disclosures in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123. Currently, we expect the effect of SFAS
123(R) to be approximately $2 million (unaudited) in the first quarter of 2006 and between $7 million and
$10 million (unaudited) for the full year. This expense will be included in our financial statements in 2006
and includes the value of the options granted in 2006 and those previously granted which have not fully
vested, as well as the shares purchased and expected to be purchased as part of our ESPP.

In the event we are unable to satisfy regulatory requirements relating to internal controls, or if these internal
controls over financial reporting are not effective, our business and our stock price could suffer.

Section 404 of Sarbanes-Oxley requires companies to do a comprehensive and costly evaluation of
their internal controls. As a result, as of December 31, 2005, we were required to perform an evaluation of
our internal controls over financial reporting and have our auditor publicly attest that such evaluation. At
December 31, 2005, management asserted, and our auditors attested, that we had no material weaknesses
over internal controls over financial reporting. Our efforts to comply with Section 404 and related
regulations regarding our management’s required assessment of internal control over financial reporting and
our independent auditors’ attestation of that assessment has required, and continues to require, the
commitment of significant financial and managerial resources. While we anticipate maintaining the integrity
of our internal controls over financial reporting and all other aspects of Section 404, we cannot be certain
that a material weakness will not arise when we test the effectiveness of our systems in the future. If a
material weakness is discovered, we could be subject to regulatory investigations or sanctions, costly
litigation or a loss of public confidence in our internal controls, which could have an adverse effect on our

business and our stock price.

Our revenues are at risk if we do not introduce new products and/or decrease costs.

The production of GaAs integrated circuits has been and continues to be more costly than the
production of silicon devices. Although we have reduced production costs through decreasing raw wafer
costs, increasing wafer size and fabrication yields, and achieving higher volumes, there can be no assurance
that we will be able to continue to decrease production costs. Further, the average selling prices of our
products have historically decreased over the products’ lives and we expect them to continue to do so.

To offset these decreases, we rely primarily on achieving yield improvements and other cost reductions
for existing products and on introducing new products that can be manufactured at lower costs. However,
we believe our costs of producing GaAs integrated circuits will continue to exceed the costs associated with
the production of silicon devices. As a result, we must offer devices which provide superior performance to
that of silicon such that the perceived price/performance of our products is competitive with silicon devices
and there can be no assurance that we can continue to identify markets which require performance superior
to that offered by silicon solutions or that we will continue to offer products which provide sufficiently
superior performance to offset the cost differentials. We believe our future success depends, in part, on our
timely development and introduction of new products that compete effectively on the basis of price and
performance and adequately address customer requirements. The success of new product and process
introductions depends on several factors, including:

s proper selection of products and processes;

+ successful and timely completion of product and process development and commercialization;

* market acceptance of our or our customers’ new products;
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 achievement of acceptable manufacturing yields;
¢ our ability to offer new products at competitive prices; and
* managing the cost of raw materials and manufacturing services.

Our product and process development efforts may not be successful and our new products or processes
may not achieve market acceptance. To the extent that our cost reductions and new product introductions do
not occur in a timely manner, our results of operations could suffer.

QOur business could be harmed if systems manufacturers do not use components made of GaAs or the other
alternative materials we utilize.

Sili¢on semiconductor technologies are the dominant process technologies for integrated circuits and
the performance of silicon integrated circuits continues to improve. System designers may be reluctant to
adopt our products because of:

+ their unfamiliarity with designing systems with our products;
« their concerns related to manufacturing costs and yields;
. their unfamiliarity with our design and manufacturing processes; and

* uncertainties about the relative cost effectiveness of our products compared to high performance
silicon components.

Systems manufacturers may not use GaAs components because the production of GaAs integrated
circuits has been, and continues to be, more costly than the production of silicon devices. Systems
manufacturers may also be reluctant to rely on a jointly produced product because future supplies may
depend on our continued good relationships with those vendors. As a result, we must offer devices that
provide superior performance to that of traditional silicon based devices.

In addition, customers may be reluctant to rely on a smaller company like us for critical components.
We cannot be certain that additional systems manufacturers will design our products into their systems or
that the companies that have utilized our products will continue to do so in the future. If our products fail to
achieve market acceptance, our results of operations would suffer.

A decline in the growth of wireless communications or in the continued acceptance of CDMA technology,
particularly in emerging markets, would have an adverse impact on us.

Our products for CDMA-based systems, including filters for base stations and receivers and power
amplifiers for wireless phones comprise a significant part of our business. CDMA technology is relatively
expensive and there can be no assurance that emerging markets, such as China and India, will continue to
adopt this technology. Our business and financial results would be adversely impacted if CDMA technology
does not continue to gain acceptance or if demand does not strengthen.

If we fail to sell a high volume of products, our operating results will be harmed.

Because large portions of our manufacturing costs are relatively fixed, our manufacturing volumes are
critical to our operating results. If we fail to achieve acceptable manufacturing volumes or experience
product shipment delays, our results of operations could be harmed. During periods of decreased demand,
our high fixed manufacturing costs negatively affect our results of operations. We base our expense levels
in part on our expectations of future orders and these expense levels are predominantly fixed in the short-
term. If we receive fewer customer orders than expected or if our customers delay or cancel orders, we may
not be able to reduce our manufacturing costs in the short-term and our operating results would be harmed.
In addition, we are selling products to an increasing number of our customers on a consignment basis,
which can limit our ability to forecast revenues and adjust our costs in the short-term, if appropriate.
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QOur excess manufacturing capacity may adversely affect our operating resullts.

Certain manufacturing lines in our facilities have historically been underutilized, primarily at our
six-inch and four-inch wafer production facilities in Hillsboro and Richardson. The excess capacity means
we incur increased fixed costs in our products relative to the revenue we generate which could have an
adverse effect on our results of operations, particularly during economic downturns. If we are unable to
improve utilization levels and correctly manage capacity, the increased expense levels will have an adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

If we do not sell our customer-specific products in large volumes, our operating results may be harmed.

We manufacture a substantial portion of our products to address the needs of individual customers.
Frequent product introductions by systems manufacturers make our future success dependent on our ability
to select development projects which will result in sufficient volumes to enable us to achieve manufacturing
efficiencies. Because customer-specific products are developed for unique applications, we expect that some
of our current and future customer-specific products may never be produced in sufficient volume and may
impair our ability to cover our fixed manufacturing costs. Furthermore, if customers cancel or delay orders
for these customer-specific products, our inventory of these products may become unmarketable or
obsolete, which would negatively affect our operating results.

In addition, if we experience delays in completing designs, fail to obtain development contracts from
customers whose products are successful, or fail to have our product designed into the next generation
product of existing volume production customers, our revenues could be harmed.

We face challenges and risks associated with our acquisition of TFR and, as a result, may not realize the
expected benefit of this acquisition.

On January 5, 2005, we completed the acquisition of TFR. We face risks associated with this
acquisition such as:

* our ability to develop new products and generate new design wins;

* our ability to retain the employees and to integrate them into our corporate culture;

+ our ability to retain existing partners and customers of this business;

* our ability to cost-effectively develop commercial products using BAW technology;

* our ability to successfully integrate the BAW applications into our products; and

* our ability to successfully integrate the systems of internal controls over financial reporting of TFR

with our existing systems.

If investors or financial or industry analysts do not think the integration of our acquisitions is proceeding as
anticipated or that the benefits of the acquisitions may not be realized, the market price of our common stock
may decline.

The market price of our common stock may decline if:
* the integration of our acquisitions is not completed in a timely and efficient manner;

* our assumptions about the business models and operations of the acquired businesses were incotrect
or their role in our business does not develop as we planned in a manner consistent with the guidance
we gave;

* we are unable to introduce new products incorporating acquired technology;
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+ the effect of the acquisitions on our financial results is not consistent with the expectations of
ﬁnancial or industry analysts; or

* following the acquisitions, our stockholders that hold relatively larger interests in our company may
decide to dispose of their shares because the results of the acquisitions are not consistent with their
expectations.

We face risks of a loss of revenues if contracts with the U.S. government or military contractors are canceled
or delayed.

In: 2005 and 2004, we received approximately 14% and 13%, respectively, of our revenues from the
U.S. government or from prime contractors on U.S. government sponsored programs principally for military
applications. These military programs with the U.S. government generally have long lead times such as the
DARPA contract and the F-22 and B-2 aircraft programs. They are also subject to delays or cancellation.
Changes in military funding or the loss of a significant military program or contract would have a material
adversé impact on our operating results. Further, spending on military contracts can vary significantly
depending on funding from the U.S. government. During 2005 and 2004, we believe our government and
military contracts were negatively impacted by the war in Iraq as the government allocated more funding to
the war and less on new development and long-term programs, such as the ones we are dependent upon.

We face risks from failures in our manufacturing processes, the maintenance of our fabrication facilities and
the processes of our vendors.

The fabrication of integrated circuits, particularly those made of GaAs, is a highly complex and precise
process. Our integrated circuits are primarily manufactured on wafers made of GaAs while our SAW filters
are currently manufactured primarily on LiNbO3, LiTaO3 and quartz wafers and our BAW wafers are
currently manufactured on sapphire or silicon wafers. We refer to the proportion of final components that
have been processed, assembled and tested relative to the gross number of components that could be
constructed from the raw materials as our manufacturing yield. Compared to the manufacture of silicon
integrated circuits, GaAs technology is less mature and more difficult to design and manufacture within
specifications in large volume. In addition, the more brittle nature of GaAs wafers can result in lower
manufacturing yields than with silicon wafers and during manufacturing, each wafer is processed to contain
numerous integrated circuits or SAW/BAW filters. We may reject or be unable to sell a substantial
percentage of wafers or the components on a given wafer because of:

* minute impurities;

+ difficulties in the fabrication process, such as failure of special equipment, operator error or power
outages;

. defects in the masks used to print circuits on a wafer;
» electrical and/or optical performance;

. Wafer breakage; or

* other factors.

We have in the past experienced lower than expected manufacturing yields, which have delayed
product shipments and negatively impacted our results of operations. We may experience difficulty
maintaining acceptable manufacturing yields in the future. Further, the transfer of production of a product to
a different facility often requires the qualification of the facility by certain customers. There can be no
certainty that such changes and transfers will be implemented on a cost-effective basis without delays or
disruption in our production and without adversely affecting our results of operations. Further, offshore
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operations are subject to certain inherent risks, including delays in transportation, changes in governmental
policies, tariffs, import/export regulations and fluctuations in currency exchange rates in addition to
geographic limitations on management controls and reporting and there can be no assurance that the
inherent risks of offshore operations will not adversely affect our future operating results. We also depend
on certain vendors for components, equipment and services. We maintain stringent policies regarding
qualification of these vendors. However, if these vendors’ processes vary in reliability or quality, they could
negatively affect our products, and thereby, our results of operations.

In addition, the maintenance of our fabrication facilities and our assembly facilities is subject to risks,
including:

s the demands of managing and coordinating workflow between geographically separate production
facilities;

* disruption of production in one of our facilities as a result of a slowdown or shutdown in our other
facility; and

* higher operating costs from managing geographically separate manufacturing facilities.

We face risks from an increasing proportion of our operations and employees being located outside of the U.S.

As we continue to expand our operations, an increasing number of our employees and operations are
located in countries other than the U.S. The laws and governance of these countries may differ substantially
from that of the U.S. and may expose us to increased risks of adverse impacts on our operations and results
of operations. These risks could include: loss of protection of proprietary technology, disruption of
production processes, interruption of freight channels and delivery schedules, currency exposure, financial
institution failure, government expropriation, labor shortages, political unrest, and fraud. Specifically, our
operating facility in Costa Rica presents risks of disruption such as government intervention, currency
fluctuations, labor disputes, limited supplies of labor, power interruption, civil unrest, or war. Any such
disruptions could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

Some of our manufacturing facilities are located in areas prone to natural disasters.

We have a SAW manufacturing and assembly facility located in Apopka, Florida and an assembly
facility for SAW products in San Jose, Costa Rica. Hurricanes, tropical storms, flooding, tornadoes, and
other natural disasters are common events for Florida and Central America which could affect our
operations in these areas. Further, although we have manufacturing and assembly capabilities for our
Sawtek products in both Apopka, Florida and San Jose, Costa Rica, we are only capable of fabricating
wafers for those products in our Apopka facility and rely on our San Jose facility for the majority of our
assembly operations. As a result, any disruption to either facility would have a material adverse impact on
our operations and financial results.

In addition, earthquakes and volcanic eruptions could also affect our Costa Rica and Oregon facilities.
Any disruptions from these or other natural disasters would have a material adverse impact on our
operations and financial results. The following table indicates the approximate exposure we believe we have
with respect to natural disasters:

Approximate Percent

Type of of Total*
Location Disaster Fixed Assets Revenues
Apopka, Florida ........... .. .. .o H 15%-20%  35%
Bend,Oregon ......... . .. i E,V 0% - 5% 0%
Dallas, Texas . ... .. H 45% - 50% 25%
Hillsboro, Oregon ........ ... ... .. .. i i, E.V 20% - 25% 35%
SanJose, CostaRica ......... .. i E.VH 10%-15% 35%




E— Earthquake/mudslide

V—Volcanic eruption

H— Hurricane and/or tornado and flooding

*  Figures are based on revenues for the year ended December 31, 2005 or net fixed assets as of
December 31, 2005. Additionally, the sum may be greater than 100% due to shared risks between
locations.

We face risks from changes in tax regulations and a change in our Costa Rican subsidiary’s favorable tax
status would have an adverse impact on our operating results.

We are subject to taxation in many different countries and localities worldwide. In some jurisdictions,
we have employed specific business strategies to minimize our tax exposure. To the extent the tax laws and
regulations in these various countries and localities could change, our tax liability in general could increase
or our tax saving strategies could be threatened. Such changes could have a material adverse effect on our
operations and financial results. For example, our subsidiary in Costa Rica operates in a free trade zone. We
expect ‘to receive a 75% exemption from Costa Rican income taxes through 2007. The Costa Rican
government continues to review its policy on granting tax exemptions to companies located in free trade
zones and it may change our tax status or minimize our benefit at any time. Any adverse change in the tax
structure for our Costa Rican subsidiary made by the Costa Rican government would have a negative impact
on our net income. During 2005 and 2004, the 75% tax exemption reduced our income tax expense by
$1.9 million and $2.7 million, respectively.

In' addition, the U.S. Internal Revenus Service and several foreign tax authorities could assert
additional taxes associated with our subsidiary due to differing interpretations of transfer pricing and other
intercompany transactions.

Our business may be adversely affected by acts of terrorism or war.,

Acts of terrorism or war could interrupt or restrict our business in several ways. We rely extensively on
the use'f: of air transportation to move our inventory between our facilities and to and from our vendors, as
well as to ship finished products to our customers. If war or terrorist acts cause air transportation to be
grounded or severely interrupted, our business would be adversely impacted. Additionally, war or acts of
terrorism could cause existing export regulations to be changed, which could limit the extent to which we
are allowed to export our products. To the extent that war or acts of terrorism also reduce customer
confidence and create general economic weakness, our business would also be adversely affected.

A widespread outbreak of an infectious disease or illness could negatively affect our marketing, assembly and
test, design, or other operations, making it more difficult and expensive to meet our obligations to our
customers and could result in reduced demand from our customers.

A widespread outbreak of an infectious disease or illness such as avian influenza could adversely affect
our operations as well as demand from our customers. A number of countries in the Asia/Pacific region
have experienced outbreaks of different infectious diseases and illnesses in the past. As a result of
widespread outbreaks, our operations could be severely affected through reduced demand and employees
could become ill or be quarantined.

Our operating results could be harmed if we lose access to sole or limited sources of materials, equipment or
services.

We currently obtain some components, equipment and services for our products from limited or single
sources, such as certain ceramic packages and chemicals. Less than 35% of our purchases are from sole
sources. We purchase these components, equipment, supplies and services on a purchase order basis, do not
carry significant inventories and generally do not have long-term supply contracts with these vendors. Our
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requirements are relatively small compared to silicon semiconductor manufacturers. Because we often do
not account for a significant part of our vendors’ business, we may not have access to sufficient capacity
from these vendors in periods of high demand. If we were to change any of our sole or limited source
vendors, we would be required to requalify each new vendor. Requalification could prevent or delay
product shipments, which could negatively affect our results of operations. In some cases, it would be
difficult to replace these suppliers and requalification could take up to 12 months.

Our reliance on a limited number of suppliers for certain raw materials and parts may impair our ability
to produce our products on time and with acceptable yields. For example, at times in the past, we have
experienced difficulties in obtaining ceramic packages and lids used in the production of bandpass filters. At
other times, the acquisition of relatively simple devices, such as capacitors, has been problematic because of
the large demand swings that can occur in the cellular handset market for such components. The success of
these products is critical to the overall success of our business. The primary risk to our source of supply to
manufacture these products is the possible bankruptcy or inability to meet delivery schedules. In addition,
our reliance on these vendors may negatively affect our production if the components, equipment or
services vary in reliability or quality. If we are unable to obtain timely deliveries of sufficient quantities of
acceptable quality or if the prices increase, our results of operations could be harmed.

QOur operating results could be harmed if our subcontractors and partners are unable to fulfill our
requirements.

We currently utilize subcontractors for the majority of our integrated circuit and module assemblies, as
well as final test. Approximately 30% of our revenues are derived from components in which we utilize
subcontractors for some portion of the production process. We expect this percentage to grow as module
products become a larger portion of our product revenue. There are certain risks associated with dependence
on third party providers, such as minimal control over delivery scheduling, adequate capacity during demand
peaks, warranty issues and protection of intellectual property. Additionally, if these subcontractors are unable
to meet our needs, it could prevent or delay production shipments that could negatively affect our results of
operations and our customer relationships. If we were to change any of our subcontractors, we would be
required to re-qualify each new subcontractor, which could also prevent or delay product shipments that could
negatively affect our results of operations. In addition, our reliance on these subcontractors may negatively
affect our production if the services vary in reliability or quality. If we are unable to obtain timely service of
acceptable quality or if the prices increase, our results of operations could be harmed.

g / If our products fail to perform or meet customer requirements, we could incur significant additional costs.

The fabrication of integrated circnits and SAW filters from substrate materials and the modules
containing these components is a highly complex and precise process. Our customers specify quality,
performance and reliability standards that we must meet. If our products do not meet these standards, we
may be required to rework or replace the products. Our products may contain undetected defects or failures
that only become evident after we commence volume shipments which we experience from time to time.
Other defects or failures may also occur in the future. If such failures or defects occur, we could:

* lose revenues;
« incur increased costs such as warranty expense and costs associated with customer support;
» experience delays, cancellations or rescheduling of orders for our products; or

*» experience increased product returns or discounts.

We may face fines or our facilities could be closed if we fail to comply with environmental regulations.

Federal, state and local regulations impose various environmental controls on the storage, handling,
discharge and disposal of chemicals and gases used in our manufacturing process. For our manufacturing
facilities, we generally provide our own manufacturing waste treatment and contract for disposal of some
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materials. We are required to report usage of environmentally hazardous materials. The failure to comply
with present or future regulations could result in fines being imposed on us and we could be required to
suspend production or cease our operations. These regulations could require us to acquire significant
equipment or to incur substantial other expenses to comply with environmental regulations. Any failure by
us to control the use of, or to adequately restrict the discharge of, hazardous substances could subject us to
future liabilities and harm our results of operations. Further, new environmental initiatives could affect the
materials we currently use in production.

New environmental regulations such as the Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment (“WEEE”) and the
Reduction of the use of certain Hazardous Substances in electrical and electronic equipment (“RoHS”)
directives may require us to redesign our products and to develop compliance administration systems.

In ‘August 2005, companies selling a broad range of electrical equipment in European countries began
to be required to conform to the WEEE directives. Further, as of July 2006, those same companies, as well
as component suppliers to those companies, will also need to conform to the RoHS directive. New
environmental standards such as these could require us to redesign our products to comply with the
standards, and require the development of compliance administration systems. We may incur significant
costs to redesign our products and to develop compliance administration systems. Further, alternative
designs,; may have an adverse effect on our gross profit margin. If we cannot develop compliant products
timely or properly administer our compliance programs, our revenues may also decline due to lower sales,
which would adversely affect our operating results.

We have substantial indebtedness.

We have $218.8 million of indebtedness remaining in the form of our convertible subordinated notes
due in 2007. The level of our indebtedness, among other things, could:

* make it difficult for us to obtain any necessary future financing for working capital, capital
expenditures, debt service requirements or other purposes;

* require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our expected cash flow from operations to service our
indebtedness, which would reduce the amount of our expected cash flow available for other
purposes, including working capital and capital expenditures;

* limit our flexibility in planning for or reacting to, changes in our business; and
» make us more vulnerable in the event of a downturn in our business.

There can be no assurance that we will be able to meet our debt service obligations, including our
obligation under the notes.

We may not be able to pay our debt and other obligations.

If our cash balance and cash flow are inadequate to meet our obligations, we could face substantial
liquidity problems. If we are unable to generate sufficient cash flow or otherwise obtain funds necessary to
make required payments on the notes or our other obligations, we would be in default under the terms
thereof. Default under the indenture would permit the holders of the notes to accelerate the maturity of the
notes and could cause defaults under future indebtedness we may incur. Any such default could have a
material adverse effect on our business, prospects, financial condition and operating results. In addition, we
can not .assure you that we would be able to repay amounts due in respect of the notes if payment of the
notes were to be accelerated following the occurrence of an event of default as defined in the indenture.

Customers may delay or cancel orders due to regulatory delays.

The increasing significance of electronic communications products has increased pressure on
regulatory bodies worldwide to adopt new standards for electronic communications, generally following
extensive investigation of and deliberation over competing technologies. The delays inherent in the
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regulatory approval process may in the future cause the cancellation, postponement or rescheduling of the
installation of communications systems by our customers. These delays have in the past had, and may in the
future have, a negative effect on our sales and our results of operations.

We must improve our products and processes to remain competitive.

If technologies or standards supported by our or our customers’ products become obsolete or fail to
gain widespread commercial acceptance, our results of operations may be materially impacted. Because of
continual improvements in semiconductor technology, including those in high performance silicon
technologies such as CMOS (complementary metal oxide semiconductor) where substantially more
resources are invested than in other technologies such as GaAs and SAW products, we believe that our
future success will depend, in part, on our ability to continue to improve our product and process
technologies. We must also develop new technologies in a timely manner and be able to adapt our products
and processes to technological changes to support emerging and established industry standards. We have
and must continue to perform significant research and development into advanced material development
such as GaN, and silicon carbide (“SiC”) to compete with future technologies of our competitors. These
research and development efforts may not be accepted by our customers, and therefore may not achieve
sustained production in the future. Further, we may not be able to improve our existing products and process
technologies, develop new technologies in a timely manner or effectively support industry standards. If we
fail to do so, our customers may select another GaAs, SAW or BAW product or move to an alternative
technology.

Our results of operations may suffer if we do not compete successfully.

The markets for our products are characterized by price competition, rapid technological change, short
product life cycles, and heightened global competition. Many of our competitors have significantly greater
financial, technical, manufacturing and marketing resources. We expect intensified competition from
existing integrated circuit, SAW and BAW device suppliers, as well as from the entry of new competitors to
our target markets and from the internal operations of some companies producing products similar to ours
for their internal requirements.

Competition from existing or potential competitors may increase due to a number of factors including,
but not limited to, the following:

+ offering of new or emerging technologies in integrated circuit design using alternative materials;

+ offering of new or emerging technologies such as digital filtering direct conversion as alternatives to
SAW filters;

» mergers and acquisitions of our customers with our competitors or other entities;
* longer operating histories and presence in key markets;
» development of strategic relationships between our competitors;

» ability to obtain raw materials at lower costs due to larger purchasing volumes or other advantageous
supply relationships;

¢ access to a wider customer base; and
* access to greater financial, technical, manufacturing and marketing resources.

Competition is primarily based on performance elements such as speed, complexity and power
dissipation, as well as price, product quality and ability to deliver products in a timely fashion. Due to the
proprietary nature of our products, competition occurs almost exclusively at the system design stage. As a
result, a design win by our competitors or by us typically limits further competition with respect to
manufacturing a given design. Additionally, manufacturers of high performance silicon integrated circuits
have achieved greater market acceptance of their existing products and technologies in some applications, as
compared to GaAs. Further, we compete with both GaAs and silicon suppliers in all of our target markets.
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If we fail to integrate any future acquisitions or successfully invest in privately held companies, our business
will be harmed.

We face risks from any future acquisitions or investments, including the following:

we may fail to merge and coordinate the operations and personnel of newly acquired companies with
our existing business;

we may fail to retain the key employees required to make the operation successful;

additional complexity may affect our flexibility and ability to respond quickly to market and
management issues;

we may experience difficulties integrating our financial and operating systems and maintaining
effective internal controls over financial reporting;

we may experience additional financial and accounting challenges and complexities in areas such as
tax planning, treasury management, financial reporting and risk management;

our ongoing business may be disrupted or receive insufficient management attention;
we may not cost-effectively and rapidly incorporate the technologies we acquire;

we may not be able to cost-effectively develop commercial products using the newly acquired
technology;

we may not be able to recognize the cost savings or other financial benefits we anticipated;
we may not be able to retain the existing customers of newly acquired operations;

existing customers of the acquired operations may demand significant price reductions or other
detrimental term changes as a result of the change in ownership;

] ) . .
our corporate culture may clash with that of the acquired businesses; and

we may incur unknown labilities associated with acquired businesses.

Wé face risks from equity investments in privately held companies, such as:

we may not realize the expected benefits associated with the investment resulting in a partial or total
write-off of this investment;

additional rounds of funding may substantially dilute our position if we do not participate in the
subsequent funding;

we may need to provide additional funding to support the privately held company; or

if their value of the equity investment decreases, we may realize losses on our holdings.

We will continue to evaluate strategic opportunities available to us and we may pursue product,
technology or business acquisitions or investmments in strategic partners. However, we may not successfully
address 'these risks or any other problems that arise in connection with future acquisitions or equity
investments in privately held companies.

In addition to the risks above in connection with any future acquisitions, we may issue equity securities
that could dilute the percentage ownership of our existing stockholders, we may incur additional debt and
we may be required to amortize expenses related to other intangible assets or record impairment of
goodwill, all of which may negatively affect our results of operations.

If we do ‘not hire and retain key employees, our business will suffer.

Our future success depends in large part on the continued service of our key technical, marketing and
management personnel. We also depend on our ability to continue to identify, attract and retain qualified
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technical employees, particularly highly skilled design, process and test engineers involved in the
manufacture and development of our products and processes. We must also recruit and frain employees to
manufacture our products without a substantial reduction in manufacturing yields. There are many other
semiconductor companies located in the communities near our facilities and, as the economy improves, it
may become increasingly difficult for us to attract and retain employees. The competition for key
employees is intense, and the loss of key employees could negatively affect us.

Increases in salaries of technical, sales and administrative personnel may outpace productivity gains, which
could result in our expenses growing at a rate that exceeds our revenue growth rate.

The U.S. economy has improved in recent months, which has lead to increased production volumes
and a higher absorption of fixed costs and operating expenses for our company. In addition, this economic
recovery may lead to increases in the salaries of our technical, sales and administrative personnel as we try
to maintain competitive and retain our employees. These increases in salaries may outpace our productivity
gains and result in our expenses growing at a rate that exceeds our revenue growth rate, which could have
an adverse effect on our gross profit margin.

Qur business may be harmed if we fail to protect our proprietary technology.

We rely on a combination of patents, trademarks, trade secret laws, confidentiality procedures and
licensing arrangements to protect our intellectual property rights. We cannot be certain that patents will be
issued from any of our pending applications or that patents will be issued in all countries where our
products can be sold. Further, we cannot be certain that any claims allowed from pending applications will
be of sufficient scope or strength to provide meaningful protection or any commercial advantage. Our
competitors may also be able to design around our patents. The laws of some countries in which our
products are or may be developed, manufactured or sold, may not protect our products or intellectual
property rights to the same extent as do the laws of the U.S., increasing the possibility of piracy of our
technology and products. Although we intend to vigorously defend our intellectual property rights, we may
not be able to prevent misappropriation of our technology. Our competitors may also independently develop
technologies that are substantially equivalent or superior to our technology.

Our involvement in any patent dispute or other intellectual property dispute or action to protect trade
secrets and know-how could have a material adverse effect on our business. Adverse determinations in any
litigation could subject us to significant liabilities to third parties, require us to seek licenses from third
parties and prevent us from manufacturing and selling our products. Any of these situations could have a
material adverse effect on our business.

Our ability to produce our products may suffer if someone claims we infringe on their intellectual property.

The integrated circuit, SAW and BAW device industries are characterized by vigorous protection and
pursuit of intellectual property rights or positions, which have resulted in significant and often protracted
and expensive litigation. If it is necessary or desirable, we may seek licenses under such patents or other
intellectual property rights. However, we cannot be certain that licenses will be offered or that we would
find the terms of licenses that are offered acceptable or commercially reasonable. Our failure to obtain a
license from a third party for technology used by us could cause us to incur substantial liabilities and to
suspend the manufacture of products. Furthermore, we may initiate claims or litigation against third parties
for infringement of our proprietary rights or to establish the validity of our proprietary rights. Litigation by
or against us could result in significant expense and divert the efforts of our technical personnel and
management, whether or not the litigation results in a favorable determination. In the event of an adverse
result in any litigation, we could be required to:

* pay substantial damages;

* indemnify our customers;
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. siop the manufacture, use and sale of the infringing products;

. éxpend significant resources to develop non-infringing technology;
« discontinue the use of certain processes; or

. éurchase licenses to the technology and/or pay royalties.

We may be unsuccessful in developing non-infringing products, negotiating licenses upon reasonable
terms, or either of the two solutions. These problems might not be resolved in time to avoid harming our
results of operations. Further, if any third party makes a successful claim against our customers or us and a
license is not made available to us on commercially reasonable terms, our business could be harmed.

Our ability to accurately predict revenues and inventory needs could deteriorate if we generate additional sales
through inventory hubbing distribution facilities.

Several of our larger customers have requested that we send our products to independent warehouses
known as inventory hubbing distribution facilities to assist them in inventory control. We do not recognize
revenues from these hubbing arrangements until the customer takes delivery of the inventory and title of the
goods passes to the customer. As a result, increased shipments to these facilities make it more difficult for
us to predict short-term revenues and inventory consumption as customers can take delivery of the products
with little lead-time. In addition, stocking requirements at hubbing facilities tends to reduce inventory turns
and increase working capital requirements.

Our business may suffer due to risks associated with international sales.

Our sales outside of the U.S. during the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 were
approximately 68%, 58% and 56%, respectively. As a result of having a significant amount of sales outside
of the U.S., we face inherent risks from these sales, including:

* imposition of government controls;
* currency exchange rate fluctuations;

* longer payment cycles and difficulties related to the collection of receivables from international
customers;

. réduced protection for intellectual property rights in some countries;
« unfavorable tax consequences;

» difficulty obtaining distribution and support;

+ political instability; and

+ tariffs and other trade barriers.

In addition, due to the technological advantages provided by GaAs integrated circuits in many military
applications, the Office of Export Administration of the U.S. Department of Commerce must license all of
our sales outside of North America. We are alsc required to obtain licenses from that agency for sales of our
SAW products to customers in certain countries. If we fail to obtain these licenses or experience delays in
obtaining these licenses in the future, our results of operations could be harmed. Also, because a majority of
our foreign sales are denominated in U.S. dollars, increases in the value of the dollar would increase the
price in local currencies of our products and make our products less price competitive.

We may be subject to a securities class action suit if our stock price falls.

Following periods of volatility in the market price of a company’s stock, some stockholders may file
securities class action litigation. For example, in 1994, a stockholder class action lawsuit was filed against
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us, our underwriters and some of our officers, directors and investors, which alleged that we, our
underwriters and certain of our officers, directors and investors intentionally misled the investing public
regarding our financial prospects. We settled the action and recorded a special charge of $1.4 million
associated with the settlement of this lawsuit and related legal expenses, net of accruals, in 1998.
Additionally, in 2003, a class action complaint was purportedly filed on behalf of purchasers of Sawtek’s
stock between January 2000 and May 24, 2001, against Sawtek, Inc., our wholly owned subsidiary, and
former officers of Sawtek and the Company. Although the claim was dismissed with prejudice in October
2005, we incurred legal fees and our management spent time defending the claims. Future claims, if any,
could harm our operating results and further distract our management from running our business.

Our stock will likely be subject to substantial price and volume fluctuations due to a number of factors, many
of which are beyond our control and may prevent our stockholders from reselling our common stock at a
profit.

The securities markets have experienced significant price and volume fluctuations and the market
prices of the securities of semiconductor companies have been especially volatile. The market price of our
common stock may experience significant fluctuations in the future. For example, our common stock price
has fluctuated from a high of approximately $5.10 to a low of approximately $2.88 during 2005. This
market volatility, as well as general economic, market or political conditions could reduce the market price
of our common stock in spite of our operating performance. In addition, our operating results could be
below the expectations of public market analysts and investors, and in response, the market price of our
common stock could decrease significantly. Further, high stock price volatility could result in a higher
stock-based compensation expense charge.

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws include anti-takeover provisions, which may deter or prevent a
takeover attempt.

Some provisions of our certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws and provisions of
Delaware law may deter or prevent a takeover attempt, including a takeover that might result in a premium
over the market price for our common stock. These provisions include:

Cumulative voting.  Our stockholders are entitled to cumulate their votes for directors.

Stockholder proposals and rominations. Our stockholders must give advance notice, generally
120 days prior to the relevant meeting, to nominate a candidate for director or present a proposal to our
stockholders at a meeting. These notice requirements could inhibit a takeover by delaying stockholder
action.

Stockholder rights plan. We may trigger our stockholder rights plan in the event our board of
directors does not agree to an acquisition proposal. The rights plan may make it more difficult and costly to
acquire our company.

Preferred stock. Our certificate of incorporation authorizes our board of directors to issue up to five
million shares of preferred stock and to determine what rights, preferences and privileges such shares have.
No action by our stockholders is necessary before our board of directors can issue the preferred stock. Our
board of directors could use the preferred stock to make it more difficult and costly to acquire our company.

Delaware anti-takeover statute. The Delaware anti-takeover law restricts business combinations with
some stockholders once the stockholder acquires 15% or more of our common stock. The Delaware statute
makes it harder for our company to be acquired without the consent of our board of directors and
management.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
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Item 2.: Properties

! Approximate  Approximate

Building Size in Land

Location Purpose Square Feet in Acres Leased or Owned

Hilisboro, Oregon ........... Headquarters, administration, 254,000 50 Owned
: test, technical, wafer
: fabrication, engineering
Richardson, Texas ........... Wafer fabrication, 540,000 38 Owned
engineering, administration,
test, technical
Apopka, Florida ............ Wafer fabrication, 92,100 16 Owned
; engineering, administration,
test, technical
San Jose, CostaRica ......... Test and assembly 61,300 2 Owned
Bend, Oregon .............. Wafer fabrication, assembly 14,100 — Leased
; engineering, administration,
test, technical

i

Munich, Germany ........... Engineering, marketing 21,054 — Leased
Taipei, Taiwan ............. Engineering, marketing 11,000 — Leased
Lowell, Massachusetts ....... Sublet 9,141 — Leased
Seoul,Korea ............... Engineering, marketing 5,307 — Leased
Chelmsford, Massachusetts . . .. Engineering 14,100 — Leased

Various field offices each less than 1,000 sq ft

We believe these properties are suitable for our current operations. Our Texas facility is currently
running significantly below capacity and we are exploring ways to reduce costs and utilize the excess space.

Ttem 3. Legal Proceedings

In February 2003, several nearly identical putative civil class action lawsuits were filed in the United
States District Court for the Middle District of Florida against Sawtek. The lawsuits also named as
defendants former officers of Sawtek and our company. The cases were consolidated into one action, and an
amended complaint was filed in this action on July 21, 2003. The amended class action complaint was
purportedly filed on behalf of purchasers of Sawtek’s stock between January 2000 and May 24, 2001, and
alleged that the defendants violated Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act, as well as
Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 10b-5, by making false and misleading statements and/or
omissions to inflate Sawtek’s stock price and conceal the downward trend in revenues disclosed in Sawtek’s
May 23, 2001 press release. On October 6, 2005, the Middle District of Florida dismissed the complaint
with prejudice.

On January 18, 2006, we received notice that a suit had been filed against us for patent infringement in
the United States District Court, Southern District of California on December 9, 2005. The plaintiff,
Stratedge Corporation, contends that we violated the patent laws of the United States by manufacturing,
marketing and selling power amplifiers in packages that infringe upon patents held by the plaintiff. We filed
an answer on February 7, 2006 denying the plaintiff’s allegations. The plaintiff seeks a preliminary and
permanent injunction against further infringement, full compensation for all damages attributable to the
infringement in an amount according to proof at trial but not less than a reasonable royalty, the destruction
of all products that the plaintiff believes infringes upon its patent, reasonable attorney’s fees, costs of the
suit, and assessment of interest among other items. We deny infringing upon the plaintiff’s patent and
intend to vigorously defend ourselves in this action.

On February 13, 2006, we received notice that a complaint had been filed pursuant to a breach of
fiduciary duty under ERISA statutes, filed in the U.S. District Court, Middle District of Florida against us,
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our wholly-owned subsidiary Sawtek, Inc., The Sawtek, Inc. Employee Stock Ownership and 401(k) Plan
(the “Plan”) and The Sawtek, Inc. Employee Stock Ownership and 401(k) Plan Administrative Committee.
The complainant, a participant in the Sawtek retirement plan and former employee of Sawtek, contends that
we failed to act in his best interest in exercising the appropriate and requisite skill, care, prudence and
diligence in administering the Plan and the distribution of Plan benefits to the complainant. The complainant
seeks full restitution and damages, plus interest, reasonable attorney’s fees and other equitable and remedial
relief. We deny any wrongdoing and intend to vigorously defend ourselves in this action.

In addition, from time to time we are involved in judicial and administrative proceedings incidental to
our business. Although occasional adverse decisions (or settlements) may occur, we believe that the final
disposition of such matters will not have a material adverse effect on our financial position or results of

operations.

Item 4.  Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.
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PART II

Item 5.  Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

Our common stock is listed on the NASDAQ National Market under the symbol “TQNT”. As of
February 25, 2006, there were 140,980,897 shares of common stock outstanding held by approximately
500 stockholders of record. Many stockholders hold their shares in street name. We believe that there are
more than 52,000 beneficial owners of our common stock. The following table sets forth the high and low
price per share of our common stock for the periods indicated as reported on the NASDAQ National
Market:;

Years Ended December 31,

B 2005 2004
Period: High Low High Low
FirSt QUarter .. ........ivtiit it e $4.50 $3.21 $9.93 $6.52
Second QUATTEr ... ...ttt $3.59 $2.88 $791 $4.96
ThirdQuarter . . ... . i e $4.01 $3.26 $5.07 83.20
Fourth Quarter . ....... ... oo $5.10 $350 $4.71 $3.43

The closing price of our common stock on the NASDAQ National Market on December 31, 2005 was
$4.45 per share.

We have never declared or paid cash dividends on our common stock and do not anticipate paying cash
dividends in the foreseeable future. We have subordinated convertible debt which contains restrictive
covenants which could limit our ability to pay cash dividends. Any future determination to pay cash
dividends will also be at the discretion of our Board of Directors and will be dependent upon our financial
condition, results of operations, capital requirements, general business conditions and other such factors as
our Board of Directors deems relevant.

In December 2005, we announced that our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to
$25.0 million of the Company’s Common Stock beginning after our December 31, 2005 earnings release in
the first' quarter of 2006. Repurchases will be made under a plan that is intended to qualify for the safe
harbors set forth in Rule 10b5-1 and 10b-18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The
timing of purchases and the exact number of shares to be purchased will depend on market conditions.
Repurchased shares of Common Stock will be retired upon purchase and result in the reduction of
stockholders’ equity.

The information required by this item regarding equity compensation plans is incorporated by
reference under the section entitled Executive Compensation and Other Matters contained in our Proxy
Statement for our 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

Item 6. . Selected Financial Data

The following statements of operations data and balance sheet data for the five years ended
December 31, 2005 were derived from our audited consolidated financial statements. Audited consolidated
balance sheets at December 31, 2005 and 2004 and the related consolidated statements of operations and of
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2005 and notes thereto appear
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The historical selected consolidated financial data has been
derived from the audited historical financial statements. Financial information in 2004 and 2003 has been
reclassified to reflect our InP optical networking business as discontinued operations for all periods in
which We operated the business. In 2005, we also reclassified certain expenses for 2004, 2003, 2002 and
2001 previously classified as selling, general and administrative expenses to conform to current period
presentation. The reclassification was done to better align certain costs with their functional classification.
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The data should be read in conjunction with the annual consolidated financial statements, related notes
and other financial information appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(In thousands, except per share data) Years Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Statement of Operations Data:
Revenues . ...t $294,787  $312,971 $275,820 $ 267,313 § 334,972
Costofgoodssold ......... ... .00 iiiiiiiniiin..n 210,446 213,416 188,162 177,418 203,907
Grossprofit .......... ... ... ... ... 84,341 99,555 87,658 89,895 131,065
Research, development and engineering . ............... 46,706 47,746 51,272 59,613 52,678
Selling, general and administrative .................... 46,565 40,523 37,542 36,602 40,355
In-process research and development .................. — — — 8,575 7,546
Reductioninworkforce . .......... ... .. ... ... ...... 341 429 1,763 1,011 1,077
Impairment of long-lived assets and goodwill ........... 31 710 — 94,740 76,933
Gain on disposal of equipment ....................... (505) (13) — — —
Acquisition related charges ................ ... ...... 1,654 — — — —
Lease termination CoStS .. ... oo vt ie it it — — 41,962 — —
Income (loss) from operations ... ............... (10,451) 10,160 (44,881) (110,646) (47,524)
Interest and other income (expense), net . ............... 1,595 (3,604) (5,874) (815) 12,792
Foreign currency gain (10ss) ......................... 4 2,125 (205) @7 —
B Impairment charge—investments in other companies .. ... (155) (1,189) (2,387) (23,778) (15,057)
\ Gain on recovery of previously impaired investment .. . . .. 954 — 8,450 — —
S Gain on retirementofdebt . ............. ... ... .. ..., 114 539 — 6,009 9,401
 ', Other,net .. ... e e 163 187 (183) 4,948 (155)
e Income (loss) from continuing operations before
5 INCOMETAX .\ vttt nann s (7,776) 8,218 (45,085) (124,319) (40,543)
= Income tax expense (benefit) . ........................ (3,573) 397 (1,694) 34,241 (14,332)
ﬁ’:’é Income (loss) from continuing operations . .......... (4,203) 7,821 (43,391)  (158,560) (26,211)
BT Income (loss) from discontinued operations ......... 8,183 (36,875)  (29,587) — _
' ,: Netincome (10SS) . ..o vttt $ 3980 $(29,054) $(72,978) $(158,560) $ (26,211)
S5 Earnings (loss) per common share data:
‘ Basic—
a ) Income (loss) from continuing operations . .......... $ ©03) $ 006 $ ©32) $ 1200 § (0.20)
/ Income (loss) from discontinued operations ......... 0.06 0.27) (0.22) — —
Net income (loss) Basic . ...................... $ 003 $ (@21 $ (054 $ Q200 $ (0.20)
Diluted—
Income (loss) from continuing operations . .......... $ (003 $ 006 $ (032) $ (1200 $ (0.20)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations ......... 0.06 (0.27) 0.22) — —
Netincome (loss) Basic . ..., $ 003 $ @©2h $ @©s54 $ (120 $ (0.20)
(In thousands) : As of December 31,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Balance Sheet Data:
Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities .. ... .. $406,722  $388,052 $401,206 $ 467,040 $ 581,531
Accounts receivable,net . ...... .. .. .. $ 51,28 $ 35654 $ 35499 $ 34977 $ 34,532
Inventories, el . ......... vt $ 40384 §$ 49,619 $ 52886 $ 36,283 $ 34,836
Total assets . ... $728,741  $722,400 $792,800 $ 840,666 $1,020,873
Working capital ............. . e $358,060 $271,018 $375,191 $371,636 $ 560,613
Long-term liabilities ................... ... ...... $221,730  $226,150 $270,519 $269,836 $ 296,859
Total stockholders’ equity ......................... $450,610 $441,387 $460,121 $525,672 $ 682,774
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Item 7.  Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements,
the related notes and the “Important Notice to Investors” that appear elsewhere in this report.

Overview

We are a supplier of high performance modules, components and foundry services for communications
applications. Our focus is on the specialized expertise, materials and know-how of RF and other high and
intermediate frequency applications. We enjoy diversity in our markets, applications, products, technology
and customer base. Our products are designed on various wafer substrates including compound
semiconductor materials such as GaAs and piezoelectric crystals such as LiTaO3. We use a variety of
process technologies using GaAs substrates including HBT and pHEMT. Using various other substrates we
also manufacture SAW and BAW products. Using these materials and our proprietary technology, we
believe our products can overcome the performance barriers of competing devices in a variety of
applications and offer other key advantages such as steeper selectivity, lower distortion, higher power and
power-added efficiency, reduced size and weight and more precise frequency control. For example, GaAs
has inherent physical properties that allow its electrons to move up to five times faster than those of silicon.
This higher electron mobility permits the manufacture of GaAs integrated circuits that operate at higher
levels of performance than silicon devices. Our customers include major communication companies
worldwide.

Strategy and Industry Considerations

Our business strategy is to provide our customers with high-performance, low-cost solutions to
applications in the wireless handset, base station, broadband, and military markets. Our mission is,
“Connecting the Digital World to the Global Network,” and we accomplish this through a diversified
product portfolic within the communications and military industries. In wireless handset market, we provide
high performance devices such as RF filters, duplexers, receivers, small signal components, power
amplifiers, switches and passive components. We have also developed integrated RF modules with the goal
of maximizing content and minimizing stacked margins, by offering complete module solutions with almost
all subcomponents sourced from our own technologies and manufacturing facilities. In broadband
communications and wireless base station markets, we are a supplier of both active GaAs and passive SAW
components. We also provide the military market with phased-array radar antenna components and in 2005
were chosen to be the prime contractor on a DARPA contract to develop high power wide band amplifiers
in gallium nitride (“GaN”), a next generation GaAs derived technology.

The semiconductor industry in general has been subject to slumping demand and excess capacity since
2001, however demand began to grow in 2005. This was the case for our business as well although we have
not seen a return to our peak demand levels. Wafer and semiconductor manufacturing facilities represent a
very high level of fixed cost due to investments in plant and equipment, labor costs, and repair and
maintenance costs. During periods of low demand, selling prices also tend to decrease which, when
combined with high fixed manufacturing costs, can create a material adverse impact on operating results. In
2005 we were able to increase the utilization at our facilities; however, we continued to experience
significant pressure on our selling prices, which had a negative impact on our financial results.

Specifically, the wireless handset market continued to gain general strength in 2005, continuing a trend
that began in 2003. The second half of the year was particularly strong which we believe gives us a positive
start to 2006. The total global unit shipments for the entire market grew by more than 15%, resulting in
projected shipments of over 800 million handsets in 2005, up from approximately 680 million units in 2004.
We believe we are positioned well for sustained demand in the wireless phone market for 2006 due to
continued strength in China, India and other emerging countries along with high phone replacement rates
due to new features such as digital cameras, video recorders, music players, GPS, Bluetooth, internet access,
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mobile television and other video standards. However, in 2005, we experienced significant selling price
pressure on some of our highest volume products. In addition, we were negatively affected by the continued
acceptance of direct conversion architecture which reduces the number of SAW IF filter products needed in
the receiver portion of wireless phones.

As the handset market expands, we expect this to also create increased demand in the base station
market, particularly in demand for point-to-point radios for base station backhaul. Base stations are critical
to the success of any mobile network and the increased demands on networks from new technology rollouts
has increased demand in this market. In addition, the continued deployment of base stations in Asia and
other emerging markets such as India are major drivers of demand. In 2005, our revenue from this market
increased 2% from 2004. Although we saw cost-cutting efforts in this market, we believe we will be able to
maintain favorable margins by reducing our manufacturing costs and increasing the functionality of our
products. Additionally, as the wireless infrastructure networks build out in developing countries and remote
areas, we expect that we will benefit from point-to-point radio product demand for back haul.

The revenue we generated from our broadband products, which includes WLAN, satellite, cable and
other standard products, declined approximately 13% in 2005 as compared to 2004. However, revenues
from this market were up approximately 32% in the fourth quarter of 2005 compared to the fourth quarter of
2004 and approximately 15% from the third quarter of 2005. This current strength has been primarily driven
by our dual LNA product and increased penetration in the cordless phone segment.

Revenues from military market products decreased approximately 5% in 2005 from 2004 and
accounted for approximately 15% of our revenues in 2005, as compared to approximately 15% in 2004 and
18% in 2003. We are actively engaged with multiple military industry contractors in the development of
next-generation phased-array systems. We have key design wins in major projects such as the Joint Strike
Fighter and F-22, and expect to participate in other large projects such as the B-2 radar upgrade. In addition,
in 2005 we entered into a multi-year contract from the DARPA to develop high power wide band amplifiers
in gallium nitride. We hope to expand these programs 2006 and beyond. We do not expect our revenues to
increase materially as a result of any near-term conflicts with foreign nations. The current conflict in the
Middle East is consuming a significant portion of the military budget that may have otherwise been
available for advanced aircraft upgrades and deployments and there is some risk that programs such as the
F-22 Raptor and JSF could be delayed. Our products are used in long lead-time, large scale programs. Once
a component has been designed into an end-use product for a military application, the same component is
generally used during the entire production life of the end-use product. As a result, we tend to produce large
volumes of these components.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (“GAAP”) requires us to make certain estimates, judgments and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Some of our accounting policies require us to make difficult and subjective judgments, often as a
result of the need to make estimates of matters that are inherently uncertain. The following accounting
policies involve critical accounting estimates because they are particularly dependent on estimates and
assumptions made by management about matters that are highly uncertain at the time the accounting
estimates are made. In addition, while we have used our best estimates based on facts and circumstances
available to us at the time, different estimates reasonably could have been used. Changes in the accounting
estimates we use are reasonably likely to occur from period to period, which may have a material impact on
the presentation of our financial condition and results of operations.

Our most critical accounting estimates include revenue recognition; the valuation of inventory, which
impacts gross margin; assessment of recoverability of long-lived assets, which primarily impacts operating
expense when we impair assets or accelerate depreciation; valuation of investments in privately held
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companies, which impacts net income when we record impairments; deferred income tax assets and
11ab111t1es which impacts our tax provision; and stock-based compensation which impacts inventory, cost of
goods sold and operating expenses. We also have other policies that we consider to be key accounting
policies, such as our policies for the valuation of accounts receivable, reserves for sales returns and
allowances, and reserves for commitments and contingencies; however, these policies either do not meet the
definition of critical accounting estimates described above or are not currently material items in our
financial statements. We review our estimates, judgments, and assumptions periodically and reflect the
effects of revisions in the period that they are deemed to be necessary. We believe that these estimates are
reasonable; however, actual results could differ from these estimates.

Recognition of Revenue

We derive revenues primarily from the sale of standard and customer-specific products and services in
the wireless handset, broadband, base station and military markets. We also receive revenues from foundry
services, non-recurring engineering fees and cost-plus contracts for research and development work, which
collectively have been less than 5% of consolidated revenues for any period. Our markets during these
comparable periods include wireless handsets, base stations, military and broadband which includes
WLAN, satellite, optical networking, automotive and other standard products. Our distribution channels
include our direct sales staff, manufacturers’ representatives and one distributor. Sales of our products are
generally made through either our sales force and independent manufacturers’ representatives or through
our distributor. The majority of our shipments are made directly to our customers, with shipments to our
buy/sell representatives and our distribution network accounting for less than 15% of total revenues during
2005 and 2004.

Revenues from the sale of standard and customer-specific products are recognized when title to the
products pass to the buyer. Revenues from foundry services and non-recurring engineering fees are recorded
when the service is completed or upon certain milestones as provided for in the agreements. Revenues from
cost plus contracts are recognized in a manner so that the fees will reasonably reflect assured realization as
the production is completed. Revenues from our distributor are recognized when the product is sold to the
distributor. Our distributor agreement provides for selling prices that are fixed at the date of sale, although
we occasionally offer price protections, which are specific, of a fixed duration and for which we reserve.
Further, the distributor is obligated to pay the amount and the price or payment obligation is not contingent
on reselling the product; the distributor takes title to the product and bears substantially all of the risks of
ownership; the distributor has economic substance; we have no significant obligations for future
performance to bring about resale; and the amount of future returns can be reasonably estimated. We allow
our distributor to return products for warranty reasons; and stock rotation rights, within certain limitations,
and reserve for such instances. Customers can only return products for warranty reasons. If we are unable to
repair or replace products returned under warranty, we will issue a credit for a warranty return.

Inventories

We state our inventories at the lower of cost or market. We use a combination of standard cost and
moving average cost methodologies to determine our cost basis for our inventories. This methodology
approximates actual cost on a first-in, first-out basis. In addition to stating our inventory at a lower of cost
or market valuation, we also evaluate it each period for excess quantities and obsolescence. This evaluation,
based on historical experience and our judgment of economic conditions, includes identifying those parts
specifically identified as obsolete and reserving for them, analyzing forecasted demand versus quantities on
hand and!reserving for the excess, and identifying and recording other specific reserves. If future demand or
market conditions are less favorable than our projections and we fail to reduce manufacturing output
accordingly, additional inventory reserves may be required and would have a negative impact on our gross
margin in the period the adjustment is made.

37




o ﬂi /

el

I

N

Long-Lived Assets

We evaluate long-lived assets for impairment of their carrying value when events or circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Factors we consider in deciding when to perform an
impaijrment review include significant negative industry or economic trends, significant changes or planned
changes in our use of the assets, plant closure or production line discontinuance, technological
obsolescence, or other changes in circumstances which indicate the carrying value of the assets may not be
recoverable. If such an event occurs, we evaluate whether the sum of the estimated undiscounted cash flows
attributable to the assets in question is less than their carrying value. If this is the case, we recognize an
impairment loss to the extent that carrying value exceeds fair value. Fair value is determined based on
market prices or discounted cash flow analysis, depending on the nature of the asset. Any estimate of future
cash flows is inherently uncertain. The factors we take into consideration in making estimates of future cash
flows include product life cycles, pricing trends, future capital needs, cost trends, product development
costs, competitive factors and technology trends as they each affect cash inflows and outflows. Technology
markets are highly cyclical and are characterized by rapid shifts in demand that are difficult to predict in
terms of direction and severity. If an asset is written down to fair value, that value becomes the asset’s new
carrying value and is depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asset.

Investments in Privately Held Companies

In previous years, we made a number of investments in small, privately held technology companies in
which we held less than 20% of the capital stock or hold notes receivable. However, at December 31, 2005,
we had impaired the value of these investments to a zero book value based upon an evaluation of each of
the company’s financial condition. In addition, as a result of the sale of our former optoelectronics
operations, we received as partial consideration $4.5 million of preferred stock in CyOptics, Inc.
(“CyOptics”) and an unsecured promissory note from CyOptics for $5.6 million, that was discounted
$2.3 million to reflect the current market rate for similar debt of comparable companies. We account for all
of these investments at cost unless their value has been determined to be other than temporarily impaired, in
which case we write the investment down to its impaired value. We review these investments periodically
for impairment and make appropriate reductions in carrying value when an other-than-temporary decline is
evident; however, for non-marketable equity securities, the impairment analysis requires significant
judgment. During our review, we evaluate the financial condition of the issuer, market conditions, and other
factors providing an indication of the fair value of the investments. Adverse changes in market conditions or
operating results of the issuer that differ from expectation, could result in additional other-than-temporary
losses in future periods.

During 2005, we reduced the value of three investments by a total of $0.2 million, net. Additionally
during 2005, we sold $1.9 million of assets received from the liquidation of an investment we held in
another privately held company including $1.0 million of intellectual property received from the liquidation.
The intellectual property was held at a zero book value and we recorded a gain for the entire amount of
proceeds received. The remaining assets received from the liquidation the investment resulted in a gain of
less than $0.1 million. During 2004 and 2003, we reduced the value of multiple investments by $1.2 million
and $2.4 million, respectively. As of December 31, 20053, our total investment in privately held companies
was $7.8 million, compared to $1.1 million as of December 31, 2004.

Income Taxes

We are subject to taxation from federal, state and international jurisdictions. A significant amount of
management judgment is involved in preparing our annual provision for income taxes and the calculation of
resulting deferred tax assets and liabilities. We evaluate liabilities for estimated tax exposures in
jurisdictions of operation. These tax jurisdictions include federal, state and international tax jurisdictions.
Significant income tax exposures include potential challenges on foreign entities, merger, acquisition and
disposition transactions and intercompany pricing. Exposures are settled primarily through the completion
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of audits within these tax jurisdictions, but can also be affected by other factors. Changes could cause
management to find a revision of past estimates appropriate. The liabilities are frequently reviewed by
management for their adequacy and appropriateness. As of December 31, 2005, we were not currently
under aundit by the U.S. income taxing authorities. We concluded federal income tax audits for the U.S.
consolidated tax group on earlier years, most recently for the years 2000 and 2001. A 2001-2003 German
tax audit of our subsidiary, TriQuint Semiconductor GmbH, was completed during the third quarter of 2005.
No significant adjustments were required as a result of the resolution of the audit. Tax periods within the
statutory period of limitations not previously audited are potentially open for examination by the taxing
authorities. Potential liabilities associated with these years will be resolved when an event occurs to warrant
closure, primarily through the completion of audits by the taxing jurisdictions and/or the expiration of the
statutes 'of limitation. To the extent audits or other events result in a material adjustment to the accrued
estimates, the effect would be recognized during the period of the event. Management believes that an
appropriate estimated liability has been established for potential exposures.

In 2002, we determined that a valuation allowance should be recorded against all of our deferred tax
assets based on the criteria of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 109, Accounting
for Income Taxes. We record the valuation allowance to reduce deferred tax assets when it is more likely
than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets may not be realized. We consider future taxable
income and prudent and feasible tax planning strategies in determining the need for a valuation allowance
and evaluate the need for a valuation allowance on a regular basis. Adjustments are made as needed and
these adjustments have an impact on our financial statements in the periods in which they are recorded.

In 20035, our optoelectronics operations were classified as discontinued operations. During the year, we
recorded income from the operations during the period in which we operated it, as well as a gain from the
sale of the operations in the second quarter and the sale of the building in the third quarter. We had net
operating losses from prior periods which we applied to these gains to offset the tax impact from these
gains. However, SFAS No. 109 requires the income tax effects related to these transactions be allocated
among continuing and discontinued operations and as a result we recorded tax expense on our discontinued
operations of $4.8 million which was offset by a tax benefit recorded on our continuing operations for the
same amount.

Stock-Based Compensation

During the periods presented we accounted for compensation cost related to employee stock options
and other forms of employee stock-based compensation plans other than ESOP in accordance with the
provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion (“APB”) No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees, and related interpretations. As such, compensation expense would be recorded on the date of
grant only if the current market prices of the underlying stock exceeded the exercise price. We applied
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation, which allows entities to continue to apply the provision of APB No. 25 and provide pro
forma net income and pro forma earnings per share disclosures for employee stock option grants as if the
fair value based method defined in SFAS No. 123 had been applied. We are required to account for stock-
based cdmpensation under SFAS No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment, in our financial statements in the first
quarter of 2006.

The accounting for stock-based compensation involves a number of estimates about the expected lives
of stock options, interest rates, stock volatility, and assumptions as well as the selection of a valuation
model. We have elected to use the Black-Scholes option valuation model to value our stock-based
compensation. A change in any of the estimates used in the model, or the selection of a different option
pricing model, could have a material impact on our pro forma net income (loss) disclosures in the periods
presented and on our financial statements in future periods. For further discussion regarding the
implementation of SFAS No. 123(R), see “Recent Accounting Pronouncements” below. We are currently
estimating the impact of the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) to be between $7 million to $10 million
(unaudited) in 2006.
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Acquisitions and Divestitures
TFR Technologies, Inc.

On January 5§, 2005, we successfully completed the acquisition of TFR, a manufacturer and developer
of thin film resonator filters for communication applications using BAW technology. We believe that BAW
technology is critical to developing higher frequency filters for next generation wireless communication
products and is a natural complement to our SAW technology. On the acquisition date, we paid $2.9 million
and paid an additional $2.3 million in January 2006. Additionally, we are obligated to pay royalties on
revenues we recognize from sales of TFR technology based products over the four year period subsequent
to the acquisition date, up to a maximum of $3.0 million. As of December, 2005, we had recognized
$1.7 million of employee retention charges as a result of the acquisition and had recognized less than
$0.1 million of revenue from products qualifying for royalties.

The TFR acquisition was accounted for as a purchase in accordance with SFAS No. 141, Business
Combinations. Details of the purchase price are as follows:

(in millions)

Cash paid at CIOSING . . . ..\t v ottt ettt $ 29
Cashduewithinoneyear ......... ... i inienneiannenn. 23
ACQUISIHON COSES .« v\ vttt et et e e e e e 0.1

Total . .. $§ 53

The purchase price was allocated to the assets and liabilities based upon fair values as follows:

(in millions)

Cash ... e e $ 04
Accounts receivables and other assets) ... ... ... o il 0.7
Inventory( .o 0.4
Property, plant and equipment . . . ....... ... 0.7
Intangible assets ......... . 0.9
Goodwillt) L e e 2.7
Payables and other liabilities™ ... ... ... .. .. ... . .. . 0.5)
Total . L $ 53

M During the third and fourth quarters of 2005, and in accordance with SFAS No. 141, we adjusted the
purchase price allocation to correct the beginning balance of TFR’s assets and liabilities on the date of
purchase. The adjustments are reflected as an adjustment to goodwill.

Agere’s Optoelectronics Business

On Januvary 2, 2003, we completed an acquisition of a substantial portion of the optoelectronics
business of Agere for $40.0 million in cash plus acquisition costs and certain assumed liabilities. The
transaction included the products, technology and some facilities related to Agere’s optoelectronics
business, which includes active and passive optical components, optical amplifiers, optical transceivers and
other optical products. As part of the acquisition, we also assumed operation of the back-end assembly and
test operations associated with these products at a leased facility in Matamoros, Mexico. We acquired this
business to expand our market and product offerings in the optical networks market. Through a transition
services agreement, Agere provided some business infrastructure services to us for a short period following
the close of the transaction to ensure seamless transition of the business operations. On May 6, 2003, we
sold a portion of the assets acquired in this transaction for $6.6 million in cash. Further, during the fourth
quarter of 2004, we initiated a restructuring of our optoelectronics operation strategy and incurred charges
of $3.4 million related to the restructuring.

40




During the first quarter of 2005, we concluded that the optoelectronics operations we purchased were
not going to meet the revenue projections we made when we initially acquired the operations from Agere.
Significant reductions in average selling prices combined with reduced demand and valuation for new
technologies in the optoelectronic market resulted in continued losses from these operations. As a result, we
announced the sale of these operations on April 14, 2005 and entered into an agreement to sell our
optoelectronics operations in Breinigsville, Pennsylvania and our optoelectronics subsidiary in Matamoros,
Mexico to CyOptics. With the sale, we believe we will benefit from focusing our attention on our growing
wireless handset, base station, military and broadband markets and build upon our successful portfolio of
GaAs semiconductor and filter products. The transaction allowed us to exit our optoelectronics operations
that manufacture InP optical components; however, we will continue to manufacture and sell GaAs based
semiconductor products for optoelectronics equipment market produced and originally developed at our
Oregon and Texas facilities. Revenues from GaAs products for optical systems accounted for less than 5%
our revenues in 2005 and 2004, respectively. The sale, completed on April 29, 2005, was an asset sale
including the products, manufacturing equipment, inventory, the Mexican entity, related intellectual
property rights and other assets that constitute the operations that manufacture InP optical chips and
components for the optical networking market. CyOptics paid us the following consideration: $13.5 million
cash at closing, $4.5 million of CyOptics’ preferred stock and a promissory note in the amount of
approximately $5.6 million, which was recorded net of a $2.3 million discount to record the note at current
market rates. CyOptics also assumed certain liabilities associated with the optoelectronics operations, such
as warranty obligations to customers.

Separately, on March 7, 2005, TriQuint Optoelectronics, a wholly-owned subsidiary, entered into a
purchase and sale agreement to sell the land and building and related facilities occupied by our
optoelectronics operations in Breinigsville, Pennsylvania. On July 13, 2005, we completed the sale to
Hamilton TEK Partners, LP (“Hamilton”) for $9.3 million, less commissions, fees, and other costs to sell
the facility. Pursuant to the agreement, we assigned to Hamilton our lease to CyOptics for approximately
90,000 square feet of the 849,000 square foot facility. The lease was executed on April 29, 2005 and was
for a period of two years, with an option to renew. In association with the sale, we have provided Hamilton
with a guarantee on CyOptics’ obligation under the original lease term. At December 31, 2005, the lease
guarantée was valued at $0.2 million.

Our consolidated financial statements have been reclassified for all periods presented to reflect the
Breinigsville, Pennsylvania and Matamoros, Mexico optoelectronics operations as discontinued operations.

Assets ahd Liabilities Held for Sale

As noted above, we accounted for our optoelectronics operations in Breinigsville, Pennsylvania and
Matamoros, Mexico as discontinued operations, in accordance with GAAP. As a result, we classified the
assets and liabilities associated with these operations as held for sale. As of December 31, 2004, we
classified $32.4 million of assets and $15.1 million of liabilities as held for sale relating to these operations.
As of December 31, 2005, we had disposed of all of the assets and liabilities of the operations and had no
assets or liabilities classified as held for sale.

Additionally, during 2004 we determined that we would sell excess equipment associated with our
semiconductor manufacturing operations in Texas and Oregon and assets obtained from the liquidation of
an investment we had in a privately held company. As of December 31, 2004, $1.5 million of these assets
remained as held for sale. During the first quarter of 2005, we transferred $0.7 million of the excess
equipment located at our Texas facility back into production at its fair market value in accordance with
GAAP. As a result of the transaction, we recorded an impairment charge of less than $0.1 million. Also
during the first quarter of 2005, we sold $0.7 million of the assets we obtained from the liquidation of an
investment we had in a privately held company and disposed of approximately $0.1 million of the assets. As
a result of the transaction, we recorded a gain of less than $0.1 million. As of December 31, 2005, none of
these assets remained classified as held for sale.
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Results of Operations

The following management discussion and analysis of operations addresses continuing operations
only, unless otherwise noted. In addition, because our remaining revenues from GaAs-based products for
the optical networking end markets account for less than 5% of our consolidated revenues, we are now
presenting our revenues based on the following end markets: wireless handsets, broadband, base stations
and military. In addition, in the third quarter of 2005, we reclassified certain expenses previously classified
as selling, general and administrative expenses to conform to cumrent period presentation. The
reclassification was done to better align certain costs with their functional classification. None of these
reclassifications had an effect on net income or loss, or on stockholders’ equity as previously reported.

The following table sets forth the results of our operations expressed as a percentage of revenues. Our
historical operating results are not necessarily indicative of the results for any future period.
Years Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
REVENUES . ..ottt e 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Costofgoodssold .. ..ot 71.4% 682% 68.2%
Gross profit .. ...t 28.6% 31.8% 31.8%
Operating expenses:
Research, development and engineering .. .................. 158% 153% 18.6%
1 Selling, general and administrative . ....................... 158% 13.0% 13.6%
i Reductionin workforce . ......... ... . . 0.1% 0.1% 0.7%
i Impairment of long-lived assets .................. ... .... 0.0% 0.2% —
o (Gain) loss on disposal of equipment ...................... 0.2)% 0.0% —
% Acquisition related charges . .......... ... ... .. o oL 0.6% — —
R Lease termination COSES . .. . oo vvrn e re e e — — 15.2%
i Total operating €Xpenses . .. .....vvureiuennnrnnennen... 321% 28.6% 48.1%
Cfij Gain (loss) from operations . .......c.voiivineiiann.. (3.9)% 32% (16.3)%
' %2 Other income (expense):
. = Interest inCOME .. ... .ottt i i e 3.9% 2.3% 2.2%
' Interest expense . ........... vt e B33)% GBH% “4.3)%
Foreign currency gain (1oss) ......... .. ... . . i 0.0% 0.7% (0.1)%
Impairment charge—investments of other companies ........... O0.D)% O04% 0.9%
Gain on recovery of previously impaired investment . ........... — — 3.1%
Gain onretirementofdebt ......... ... ... ... ... ... ... 0.0% 0.2% —
Gain on sale of intellectual property ......................... 0.3% — —
Other, net . . ... 0.1% 0.0% (0.D)%
Total other income (expenses), net ..............cooevven... 0.9% 0.6)% (0.1D)%
Income (loss) from continuing operations, before income tax . .. (2.6)% 26% (16.H)%
Income tax expense (benefit) ....... R I (1.2)% 0.1% (0.6)%
Income (loss) from continuing operations .................. (1.4)% 25% (15.8)%
Discontinued operations:
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, netof tax ........ 28% (11.8)% (10.7%
Netincome (10S8) . ... .o 1.4% (9.3)% (26.5)%
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Years E:nded December 31, 2005 and 2004
Revenues from Continuing Operations

Our revenues from continuing operations decreased $18.2 million (6%) to $294.8 million in 2005,
compared to $313.0 million in 2004. This decrease was primarily due to significantly lower revenue in the
wireless handset market, as handset manufacturers continued to migrate towards direct conversion
architecture and sales of our IF filter products declined. Declines were also seen in our broadband and
military markets. However, our revenues in the fourth quarter of 2005 increased $17.6 million (26%) to
$84.7 million, as compared to $67.0 million in the fourth quarter of 2004. Further, our fourth quarter
revenue increased $9.4 million (13%) as compared to the third quarter of 2005 which we believe is an
indication of our strong traction in the wireless handset and broadband markets.

The demand for our products began to strengthen in the second quarter of 2005 and remained strong at
year end. Our overall book-to-bill ratio for the quarter ended December 31, 2005 was 1.05 to 1 due
primarily to strength in the broadband, military and other markets. The ratio at December 31, 2005 was a
substantial increase from the 0.89 to 1 ratio at December 31, 2004.

In the third quarter of 2005 we began assigning our digital radio revenue, including point-to-point
revenue; to the base station market to better reflect the end use of these products. We have reclassified
historical data to reflect this change. Incorporating this classification change for point-to-point radios, our
revenues by end market for 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

: Years Ended December 31,

‘ 2005 2004
Revenues:

Wireless handsets . ...t 43% 44%

Broadband . ... 21% 22%

Base StalIONS . .ot e e e 21% 19%

Military ... e _E% ﬂ%
100%  100%

Wirel‘éss Handsets

Our revenues from products for the wircless handset market decreased approximately 8% in 2005,
compared to 2004. The decline in revenue was primarily due to a decline in our shipments of products for
CDMA phones as a result of the impact of direct conversion architectures which reduces the demand for IF
filters, LNAs and mixers. Shipments of IF filters declined approximately 82% in 2005 as compared to 2004,
largely due to the use of direct conversion architecture in CDMA phones. Further, we experienced a decline
in revenue of approximately 25% from our duplexer and receiver products in 2005 as compared to 2004,
Other factors affecting the overall decline in handset revenue in 2005 as compared to 2004 included average
selling price (“ASP”) pressure on our duplexer products which experienced an ASP decline of 34%.
Offsetting these declines were year over year increases in revenue from our power amplifiers, power
amplifier modules and transmit modules (67%), RF filters and front-end modules (15%) and switches
(280%). Compared to the fourth quarter of 2004, our wireless handset revenue in the fourth quarter of 2005
increased approximately 47%. Further, as compared to the third quarter of 2005, our wireless handset
revenue increased 26% which we believe is an indication of our strong traction in this market and positions
us well for growth in 2006.

Overall, our wireless revenues from GSM products increased from 20% in 2004 to 37% in 2005. The
increase was more prevalent in the fourth quarter of 2005 where our GSM products accounted for 48% of
our wireless handset revenue, compared to 22% in the fourth quarter of 2004. Our largest growth in this
standard came from integrated filter and PAM products. Specifically, our revenues from GSM integrated
products, dominated by our quad-filter-bank-module, grew from approximately $7.3 million in 2004 to
approximately $19.5 million in 2005 while our GSM PA and PAM revenue grew to approximately
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$25.3 million in 2005, compared to approximately $15.0 million in 2004, At the same time, our revenue
from CDMA applications declined in 2005 to 63% of our wireless handset revenue, from 79% in 2004. This
decline was anticipated due to the decline in revenue from IF filters, mixers and LNAs as a result of the
direct conversion architecture. We experienced growth from our CDMA PA and PAM products which
increased 66% to revenues of approximately $7.3 million in 2005 as compared to revenues of $4.4 million
in 2004.

Broadband

Revenues from the broadband market and other products included in this segment, which include
WLAN, satellite, cable and other standard products, decreased 13% in 2005 as compared to 2004. However,
revenues in the fourth quarter of 2005 increased 32% from the fourth quarter of 2004 and 15% from the
third quarter of 2005. The decline in revenue in 2005 as compared to 2004 was primarily due to a decline in
our optical, WLAN, satellite and other products. These declines were partially offset by increases in revenue
from our GPS and ground station products.

Base station

Revenues from the base station products, including point-to-point radios, increased approximately 2%
in 2005 as compared to 2004, The increase was primarily due to an increase in revenues from digital radio
products, partially offset by lower revenue from CDMA products. In 2005, approximately 43% of our base
station revenue was derived from point-to-point radio products compared to approximately 32% in 2004.
Our revenue from GSM/GPRS/EDGE base station products declined approximately 4% in 2003, as
compared to 2004, and accounted for approximately 34% of the base station revenue. Our CDMA and
wideband CDMA base station product revenue declined approximately 42% in 2005 as compared to 2004
and accounted for approximately 11% of the base station revenue in 2005. The decline for CDMA was due
to CDMA build-out softness as EVDO build-outs in Korea, Japan and the US have predominantly been
completed combined with a the delay of 3G licensing in China which postponed both CDMA and WCDMA
build-outs in that region.

Military

Revenues from our military-related products decreased approximately 5% in 2005 as compared to
2004. The decline was primarily due to decreases in revenue from IF filters, HPAs (High Power Amplifiers)
and other products. These decreases were mostly offset by increases in revenue from research and
development and RF filters. The increase in research and development revenue was primarily due to the
execution of a DARPA contract in the first quarter of 2005 for the development of a gallium nitride process
and products, in which we are the prime contractor.

Domestic and International Revenues

Revenues from domestic customers were $95.6 million in 2005, compared to $131.2 million in 2004,
Revenues from international customers were $199.2 million in 2005 compared to $181.8 million in 2004.
Our revenues from international customers continued to grow due to the increasing demand for wireless
phones and infrastructure products from countries in Asia, India and other developing countries where
wireless subscriber penetration rates are significantly lower than penetration rates in the U.S. Revenues
from China was the only foreign region which represented 10% or more of revenues in 2005 with
approximately $67.4 million. In 2004, China and Korea were the only foreign regions which represented
10% or more of revenues with approximately $47.9 million and $37.7 million, respectively.

Revenues generated from our U.S. operations were $294.8 million in 2005 and $270.0 million in 2004,
respectively. Revenues generated from our international operations were $23.6 million in 2005 and
$80.6 million in 2004, respectively. Transfers between these operations were $23.6 million in 2005 and
$37.6 million in 2004, respectively. Our U.S. operations accounted for $171.7 million of our long-lived
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assets in 2005 and $174.0 million in 2004. Our international operations accounted for $23.7 million of our
long-lived assets in 2005 and $27.8 million in 2004.

Gross Profit

Gross profit is defined as revenues less cost of goods sold. Cost of goods sold includes direct material,
labor and overhead expenses and certain production costs related to non-recurring engineering revenues. In
general, we derive a higher gross profit margin on lower volume products for the base station and
broadband market, such as point-to-point radios and satellite systems, whereas products for wireless
handsets are higher volume, more price sensitive and generally lower margin products. Our gross profit
margin as a percentage of revenues decreased to 28.6% in 2005, compared to 31.8% in 2004. The decrease
was primarily due to lower overall sales in 2005, resulting in less absorption of fixed overhead costs,
combined with lower ASPs on products such as SAW filters and duplexers and lower yields from some of
our new products. The effect was most evident in the in the fourth quarter of 2005 as we reported a gross
profit margin of 28.7% during the quarter, compared to 31.4% in the third quarter of 2005 and 29.8% in the
fourth quarter of 2004. However, we are taking the corrective action required to 1mpr0ve our yields and
expect improvements in 2006.

Research, development and engineering expenses

Research, development and engineering expenses include the costs incurred in the design of new
products, as well as ongoing product research and development expenses. Our research, development and
engineering expenses in 2005 decreased $1.0 million (2%) to $46.7 million in 2005, as compared to
$47.7 million in 2004. As a percentage of revenue our research, development and engineering increased to
15.8% in 2005 as compared to 15.3% in 2004. The decrease in overall spending 2005 was primarily a result
of the timing of our design cycles.

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses include commissions, labor expenses for marketing and
administrative personnel, and other corporate administrative expenses. Selling, general and administrative
expenses for 2005 increased $6.1 million (15%) to $46.6 million, as compared to $40.5 million for 2004.
The increase was primarily due increased marketing expenses and labor costs and increased costs to comply
with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. As a percentage of revenue our selling, general and
administrative expenses increased to 15.8% in 2005 as compared to 13.0% in 2004.

Reduction in workforce

In 2003, we recorded a charge of $0.3 million associated with a reduction in force of approximately
130 employees assigned to our operations in Apopka, Florida and San Jose, Costa Rica. The charge was a
result of our ongoing efforts to align costs and capacity with the reduced levels of production and revenues
at these’ facilities. In 2004, we recorded net severance costs of $0.4 million related to reductions in our
workforce of approximately 30 employees assigned to our Texas operations.

Impairment of long-lived assets and goodwill

In 2004, we recorded impairments to long-lived assets of $0.7 million. The impairments recorded in
2004 include impairments of excess six-inch wafer fabrication equipment ($0.3 million), and a charge
associated with the closing of our Tianjin, China facility ($0.4 million). The six-inch wafer fabrication
equipment was in excess of our needs and had been classified as held for sale. The Tianjin, China facility
was closed as our primary customer in the region no longer required a manufacturing presence in the region.
Impairments in 2005 were less than $0.1 million and were associated with the write down of certain
fabricatibn equipment held for sale to its fair market value.
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Gain on disposal of equipment

In 2005, we recorded a $0.5 million gain on the disposal of equipment, primarily related to the sale of
equipment at our Oregon facility. Gains recorded on the disposal of equipment in 2004 were less than
$0.1 million.

Acquisition related charges

In 2005, we recorded a $1.7 million of charges related to the TFR anticipated earn-out payment and
retention bonuses, payable in 2006. There were no similar charges in 2004.

Interest income (expense), net

Net interest income increased $5.2 million in 2005 to a net interest income of $1.6 million, compared to a
net interest expense of $3.6 million in 2004. This change was attributable to higher interest rates earned on our
short and long-term investments as interest rates on these investments rose in 2005 as compared to 2004. For
example, in 2005 the average commercial paper interest rate was 3.42% compared to 1.41% in 2004. We
repurchased $5.0 million of our subordinated debt in the second quarter of 2005 and $45.0 million in the
second quarter of 2004, both of which reduced our interest expense in 2005.

Foreign currency gain (loss)

In 2004, we recorded a foreign currency gain of $2.1 million. The gain was primarily attributable to
foreign currency receivables of €13.0 million (approximately $13.4 million at the exchange rate in effect at
the time of the transactions) that were reclassified as short-term monetary asset in the third quarter of 2004.
As a result of the reclassification, we recorded a foreign currency gain of $2.5 million on the remeasurement
of the receivables as the euro strengthened relative to the U.S. dollar. In November 2004, we received
payment on the receivable. Foreign currency gains in 2005 were less than $0.1 million.

Impairment charge—Investment in other companies

A
2%

In 2005, we reduced the value of three investments by a total of $0.2 million, net. The reductions in
value were determined from analysis of the deteriorating financial condition of the companies or the
reduction in our pro-rata ownership of the privately held company in which we had invested. In 2004, we
recorded impairment losses of $1.2 million as a result of either cessation of operations, deteriorating
financial condition or a reduction in our pro-rata ownership of the privately held company in which we had
invested.

Gain on retirement of debt

In 2005, we recorded a gain on the retirement of debt resulting from our repurchase of $5.0 million
principal amount of our convertible subordinated notes at the then current market prices resulting in a gain
of $0.1 million, net of the write off of associated capitalized bond issuance costs of less than $0.1 million. In
2004, we recorded a gain on the retirement of debt resulting from our repurchase of $45.0 million principal
amount of our convertible subordinated notes at the then current market prices resulting in a gain of
$0.5 million, net of the write off of associated capitalized bond issuance costs of $0.6 million.

Gain on sale of intellectual property

In 2005, we recorded a gain of $1.0 million from the sale of intellectual property acquired from the
liguidation of an investment in a privately held company. The intellectual property was held at a zero book
value and we recorded a gain for the entire amount of proceeds received. We had no similar sales in 2004.
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Income tax expense (benefit)

In 2005, we recorded an income tax benefit from continuing operations of $3.6 million as compared to
a 2004/ income tax expense of $0.4 million. The 2005 tax benefit was primarily due to the result of the
reduction in the prior year valuation allowance caused by income generated from discontinued operations
that, under SFAS No. 109 are allocated to continuing operations. This tax benefit was partially reduced by
tax expenses from our foreign operations in Germany, Costa Rica, Sweden and Japan. In 2004, we recorded
income tax expense of $0.4 million, primarily from the income taxes in foreign jurisdictions.

Income (loss) from discontinued operations

We recorded a net gain from discontinued operations of $8.2 million in 2005 compared to a net loss of
$36.9 million in 2004. The gain recorded in 2005 included a gain of $11.6 million from the disposal of the
operations in the second quarter of 2005 and the sale of the facility in the third quarter of 2005, combined
with gains on the sale of excess assets of the optoelectronics business of $4.1 million. These gains were
partially offset by losses from the optoelectronic operations of approximately $2.7 million and the tax
expense from the discontinued operations of $4.8 million. The results of the discontinued operations in 2005
reflected only four months of full operations as we completed the sale on April 29, 2005.

Years Ended December 31, 2004 and 2003
Reveﬁues from Continuing Operations

Our revenues increased $37.2 million (13%) to $313.0 million in 2004 compared to $275.8 million in
2003. This increase in revenues was primarily due to increased shipments of products for the base station,
wireless. handset and broadband markets, specifically for applications for base stations for wireless
communications, WLAN, point-to-point radios, and satellite, and increased revenue for products for
wireless phones. The increase in revenues more than offsets declines in military related products.

The overall demand for our products was strong in the first six months of 2004, but started to diminish
in the latter part of the third quarter of 2004, and continued at a lower level in the fourth quarter of 2004,
specifically in products for wireless phones, satellite communications, base stations and WLAN. Our
revenues by end market for 2004 and 2003 were as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003
Revenues:
Wireless handsets ............ i 44% 46%
Broadband . ......... . . ... e 22% 22%
Base Station .. ... . i e e 19% 14%
Military ... ... 15% 18%

100%  100%

Wireless Handsets

Our revenues from products for wireless phones increased approximately 7% in 2004 as compared to
2003, due to the overall strength in end market demand for wireless phones, especially in Asia. We
experienced an increase in revenues from new products, specifically PAs and PAMs for wireless phones,
which grew from approximately $8.1 million in revenues in 2003, to approximately $19.5 million in 2004.
Our new, integrated RF front end module also experienced a significant increase in revenues in 2004
compared to 2003 as did our duplexer products for CDMA phones and our RF filter products for both
CDMA and GSM applications. Revenues from IF filters, LNAs and mixers declined in 2004 compared to
2003. as these products were older products and were being phased out by direct conversion architectures in
newer phone models. Overall, revenues for CDMA based applications accounted for about 79% of our
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revenues from wireless phones in 2004, compared to 83% in 2003, but our GSM based products are grew
and accounted for 20% of our wireless phone revenues in 2004, up from 9% in 2003. Revenues from
TDMA based phones are declined rapidly and accounted for only about 1% of our wireless phone revenues
in 2004, compared to approximately 7% in 2003. Pricing, which at times may be under severe competitive
pressure, was relatively stable and our ASPs for products for wireless phones were flat overall in 2004
compared to 2003. We shipped more higher dollar value module based products such as GSM power
amplifier and RF front-end modules, which offset price declines for our other wireless phone products.

Broadband

Overall, our revenues in broadband market increased by approximately 12% in 2004 compared to
2003. As a portion of our overall revenue, this market provided remained consistent at 22% of total
revenues in 2004 and 2003. The primary applications that experienced growth in this market in 2004
include WLAN, ground station and optical systems. Applications that experienced a decline in revenue
include satellite and other products.

Base station

Revenues in base station market increased by approximately 55% in 2004 compared to 2003. As a
portion of our total revenue, this market increased to approximately 19% of our revenue in 2004 as
compared to approximately 14% in 2003. Revenue in this market increased primarily as a result of an
increase in the volume of filters and other devices.

Military

Revenues from our military related market decreased by approximately 8% in 2004 compared to 2003,
due to the timing and roll out of large scale military programs and the negative impact that the war in Iraq
had on military related spending for fighter jets and research and development.

Domestic and International Revenues

Revenues from domestic customers were $131.2 million in 2004, compared to $120.5 million in 2003,
Revenues from international customers were $181.8 million in 2004 compared to $155.3 million in 2003.
Revenues from international customers continued to grow due to the increasing demand for wireless phones
and infrastructure products from countries in Asia, South America, and Eastern Europe where wireless
subscriber penetration rates are significantly lower than penetration rates in the U.S. and Western Europe.
Revenue from China were approximately $47.9 million in 2004 and $42.2 million in 2003, respectively.
Revenues from Korea, were approximately $37.7 million in 2004 and $35.2 million in 2003, respectively.
There were no other foreign countries which represented 10% or more of our revenues in 2004 and 2003.

Revenues generated from U.S. operations were $270.1 million in 2004 and $222.1 million in 2003,
respectively. Revenues generated from our international operations were $80.5 million in 2004 and
$84.4 million in 2003, respectively. Transfers between these operations were $37.6 million in 2004 and
$30.7 million in 2003, respectively. Our U.S. operations accounted for $174.0 million of our long-lived
assets in 2004 and $189.2 million in 2003. Our international operations accounted for $27.8 million of our
long-lived assets in 2004 and $24.7 million in 2003.

Gross Profit

Our gross profit margin as a percentage of revenues remained flat in 2004 at 31.8% as compared to
2003. Our margins were partially improved by increased sales of products for the base station market which
had higher gross profit margins than our consumer driven products such as wireless phones. This increase
was offset by higher fixed costs in 2004 as compared to 2003, including the amortization of intangible
assets acquired in the Infineon acquisition.




Research, development and engineering expenses

Our research, development and engineering expenses for 2004 decreased $3.6 million (7%) to
$47.7 million, as compared to $51.3 million for 2003. This decrease was primarily the result of our cost
reduction programs implemented during 2003, which included reductions in our workforce, a change in our
procedures on development of wafers, a consolidation of vendors for certain purchases, use of common
computer aided design tools and reduced work hours.

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses for 2004 increased $3.0 million (8%) to $40.5 million, as
compared to $37.5 million for 2003. The increase was primarily due to the commission and sales related
expenses associated with our higher revenues in 2004, as well as increased administrative costs to comply
with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Reduction in workforce

In 2004, we recorded net severance costs of $0.4 million related to reductions in our workforce of
approximately 30 employees assigned to our Texas operations. During 2003, we recorded severance costs
of $1.8 million. These costs related to reductions in our workforce, resulting from our efforts to align our
costs and capacity with our levels of production and revenues. These reductions primarily impacted the our
German engineering and marketing operations.

Impai}ment of long-lived assets and goodwill

In 2004, we recorded impairments to long-lived assets of $0.7 million. The impairments recorded in
2004 included impairments of excess six-inch wafer fabrication equipment ($0.3 million), and a charge
associated with the closing of our Tianjin, China facility ($0.4 million). The six-inch wafer fabrication
equipment was in excess of our needs and had been classified as held for sale. The Tianjin, China facility
was closed as our primary customer in the region no longer required a manufacturing presence in the region.
There were no similar charges in 2003.

Lease termination costs

In 2003, we recorded a charge of $42.0 million for costs associated with the termination of the lease on
our wafer fabrication facility located in Richardson, Texas. Under the original lease agreement sponsored by
a financial institution, we were required to make lease payments through August 2005 or purchase the
property: at that time. In June 2003, we notified the lender of our intention to terminate the lease and
purchase the property. The purchase was completed in July 2003. We incurred no similar costs in 2004 and
had no similar lease agreements in place at December 31, 2004.

Interest expense, net

Interest expense, net decreased $2.3 million (39%) to $3.6 million for 2004, as compared to $5.9 million
in 2003. This change was attributable to higher interest rates earned on our short and long-term investments as
interest rates on these investments rose in 2004 as compared to 2003. For example, in 2004 the average
commercial paper interest rate was 1.41% compared to 1.11% in 2003. Further, we repurchased $45.0 million
of our subordinated debt in 2004 which also reduced our interest expense.

Foreign currency gain (loss)

In 2004, we recorded a foreign currency gain of $2.1 million, as compared to a foreign currency loss of
$0.2 million for in 2003. The gain in 2004 was primarily attributable to foreign currency receivables of
€13.0 million (approximately $13.4 million at the exchange rate in effect at the time of the transactions) that
were reclassified as short-term monetary asset in 2004. As a result of the reclassification, we recorded a
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foreign currency gain of $2.5 million on the remeasurement of the receivables as the euro strengthened
relative to the U.S. dollar. In November 2004, we received payment on the receivable.

Impairment charge—lInvestment in other companies

In 2004, we recorded impairment losses of $1.2 million as a result of either cessation of operations,
deteriorating financial condition or a reduction in our pro-rata ownership of the privately held company in
which we had invested. In 2003, we recorded impairment losses of $2.4 million, respectively, as a result of
either deteriorating financial condition or cessation of operations of the privately held company in which we
had invested. Additionally in 2003, we received a cash settlement on a previously impaired promissory note
from one of the privately held investment, resulting in a gain of $8.5 million.

Gain on retirement of debt

In 2004, we recorded a gain on the retirement of debt resulting from our repurchase of $45.0 million
principal amount of our convertible subordinated notes at the then current market prices resulting in a gain
of $0.5 million, net of the write off of associated capitalized bond issuance costs of $0.6 million. We
recorded no similar benefit in 2003 as we did not repurchase any debt during that year.

Income tax expense (benefit)

In 2004, we recorded income tax expense of $0.4 million as compared to an income tax benefit of
$1.7 million in 2003. The income tax expense in 2004 was primarily the result of income taxes in foreign
jurisdictions. The income tax benefit in 2003 was primarily the result of the settlement of certain prior year
tax accruals and refunds.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2005, our cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities increased $18.7 million
(5%) to $406.7 million, from $388.1 million at December 31, 2004. The net increase in cash, cash
equivalents, and marketable securities was primarily due to the cash received from the sale of our
optoelectronics operations and our Breinigsville, Pennsylvania facility, less certain fees ($22.5 million),
combined with cash provided by continuing operations ($17.7 million), cash received from the issuance of
our common stock ($6.7 million) and proceeds from the sale of assets, including the proceeds from the sale
of assets ($2.2 million). These increases were partially offset by decreases in cash related to capital
expenditures ($22.3 million), the repurchase of our 4% convertible subordinated notes ($4.8 million), the
acquisition of TFR ($2.7 million) and the net purchase of available-for-sale securities ($5.7 million).

The $17.7 million of cash provided by continuing operations in 2005 represented a $38.4 million decline
from the $56.1 million of cash provided by operations in 2004. In 2005, we recorded a net loss from
continuing operations of $4.2 million, which included a tax benefit allocated to our continuing operations of
$4.8 million; as compared to a net gain from continuing operations in 2004 of $7.8 million. In addition, in
2005 we recorded a gain on the disposal of equipment of $0.5 million and a gain on the sale of a previously
impaired investment of $1.0 million. Further, as of December 31, 2005, our accounts receivable increased
$15.1 million from December 31, 2004 and our other assets decreased $6.3 million. These negative effects on
cash flows were partially offset by an increase in our accounts payable and accrued expenses of $13.9 million.
During 2005, our cash used in discontinued operations was approximately $3.3 million, an $12.5 million
reduction from the $15.8 million used in our discontinued operations in 2004,

Our net short and long-term investments increased $4.7 million to $303.0 million as if December 31,
2005, as compared to $298.3 million as of December 31, 2004. The increase was primarily due to the net
purchases we made of available-for-sale securities in 2005. In 2005, we began to increase the proportion of
our short-term investments, in anticipation of the maturity of our 4% convertible subordinated notes due on
March 1, 2007.
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At December 31, 2005, our net accounts receivable increased $15.6 million (44%) to $51.3 million,
from $35.7 million at December 31, 2004. The increase was primarily due to increased in sales during the
fourth quarter of 2005 as compared to the fourth quarter of 2004 combined with an increase in our days
sales outstanding as of December 31, 2005 of 54 days, compared to 48 days as of December 31, 2004.

At December 31, 2003, our net inventory balance decreased slightly by $0.2 million to $49.4 million,
from $49.6 million at December 31, 2004. At December 31, 2005, our inventory turnover ratio had
increased to 4.8 times, as compared to 3.7 times at December 31, 2004,

At December 31, 2005, our net property, plant and equipment balance decreased by $8.7 million
{4%) t0:$190.8 million, from $199.5 million at December 31, 2004. This decrease was primarily due to
depreciation expense of $32.6 million and disposals of equipment, partially offset by capital expenditures of
$22.3 million and assets acquired from TFR.

Recent Transactions Affecting Liquidity

On “July 13, 2005, we completed the sale of the land, building and related facilities previously occupied
by our optoelectronic operations in Breinigsville, Pennsylvania to Hamilton. The facility was sold for
$9.3 million in cash, less commissions, fees, and other costs related to the facility sale.

On:May 17, 2005, we completed the repurchase of $5.0 million face value of our convertible
subordinated notes for $4.8 million before accrued interest. Additionally, on May 18, 2004, we completed
the repurchase of $45.0 million face value of our convertible subordinated notes for $43.9 million before
accrued interest. We regularly evaluate the market pricing of these notes in comparison to our cash flow
forecast to determine the value to our company of repurchasing a portion of them. Since 2001, we have
repurchased $126.2 million face value of the original $345.0 million issuance.

On ' April 29, 2005, we completed the sale of our optoelectronics operations in Breinigsville,
Pennsylvania and our optoelectronics subsidiary in Matamoros, Mexico to CyOptics. As part of the
transaction, we received cash consideration of $13.5 million.

On Hanuary 5, 2005, we completed the acquisition of TFR and paid $2.7 million on the closing date,
net of $0.4 million of cash acquired. We paid an additional $2.3 million in January 2006 and may pay
royalties, on revenues we recognize from TFR technology based products over the four year period
subsequent to the closing date, up to 2 maximum of $3.0 million. We also paid employee retention benefits
of $1.7 million in the first quarter of 2006.

Sources of Liquidity

Our: current cash, cash equivalent and short-term investment balances, together with cash generated
from continuing operations are currently our principal sources of liquidity and we believe these will satisfy
our projected working capital, capital expenditure, and possible investment needs, through the next
12 months. The principal risks to these sources of liquidity are capital expenditures or investment needs in
excess of our expectations, in which case we may be required to finance any additional requirements
through additional equity offerings, debt financings or credit facilities. We may not be able to obtain
additional financings or credit facilities, or if these funds are available, they may not be available on
satisfactory terms. Our subordinated notes will become due on March 1, 2007 and at that time we will need
to either pay the balance due or refinance the notes.

We expect our need for capital expenditures in 2006 to be between $33.0 million and $39.0 million. In
addition, in the first quarter of 2006, we began to execute our plan to repurchase up to $25.0 million of the
Company’s Common Stock. The timing of purchases and the exact number of shares to be purchased will
depend on market conditions.
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Other Significant Cash Obligations

The following table summarizes our scheduled contractual commitments that will affect our future

liquidity as of December 31, 2005:
Payments Due By Period

Less than After 5
(In millions) Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years Years
Convertible subordinated notes, including
INTEIESt . o\ttt $2319 $ 8.8 $223.1 $— $—
Operating Leases) ....................... 4.1 1.5 2.1 0.4 0.1
Deferred Compensation® .................. 0.5 — — — 0.5
Other Obligations® ...................... 2.1 — — — 2.1
Total ........ . . $238.6  $10.3 $225.2 $0.4 $2.7

M The amounts presented represent leases of certain equipment, office and manufacturing space under
operating leases. The amounts presented in this line item represent commitments for minimum lease
payments under non-cancelable operating leases.

@ The amount presented represents the liability for our Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan (the
“Plan”) established in October 2004. The Plan provides employees who are eligible to participate and
the members of the Board of Directors with the opportunity to defer a specified percentage of their
cash compensation. The deferred earnings are invested at the discretion of each participating employee
or director and the deferred compensation we are obligated to deliver is adjusted for increases or
decreases in the deferred amount due to such investment. We include the asset deferred by the
participants ($0.5 million) in the “Other noncurrent assets, net” line item of our consolidated balance
sheet and our obligation to deliver the deferred compensation in the “Other long-term liabilities” line
item on our consolidated balance sheet.

@) The balance represents the pension liability of our German subsidiary ($2.1 million). The pension
liability is associated with our German subsidiary, which becomes payable when the covered
employees reach the age of 60 or 65. The liability was acquired through our purchase of the GaAs
business of Infineon in 2002. We elected to secure the liability through a reinsurance program
supported by us. We have included the reinsurance receivables ($2.0 million) in the “Other noncurrent
assets, net” line item on our consolidated balance sheet and our obligation to deliver the pension
obligation in the “Other long-term liabilities” line item on our consolidated balance sheet.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

On December 16, 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 123(R),
Share-Based Payment, which replaces SFAS No. 123, supersedes APB No. 25, and amends SFAS No. 95,
Statement of Cash Flow. Currently, we use the Black-Scholes model for option expense calculation and
presents pro forma disclosure of the statements of operations effect in financial statement footnotes only under
APB No. 25. However, under SFAS No. 123(R), pro forma disclosure of the statements of operations effects
of share-based payments will no longer be an alternative and all share-based payments to employees, including
grants of employee stock options, will be recognized in the financial statements based on their fair values. In
addition, companies must also recognize compensation expense related to any awards that are not fully vested
as of the effective date. Compensation expense for the unvested awards will be measured based on the fair
value of the awards previously calculated in developing the pro forma disclosures in accordance with the
provisions of SFAS No. 123. SFAS 123(R) was effective for us for the period commencing January 1, 2006.
In response to the new accounting guidance under SFAS 123(R) and SAB No. 107, we have begun to
reevaluate our assumptions used in estimating the fair value of employee options granted. In addition, we will
begin to analyze the holding patterns of employees based upon rank to better access the expected term of the
options. These revised assumptions will be incorporated in the first quarter of 2006. Also in anticipation of the
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effective date, we accelerated the vesting of options, excluding option grants to our board members and chief
executive officer, with an option price equal or greater to $5.35 per share. The acceleration was done in two
phases, with the first acceleration in the fourth quarter of 2004 for all options with an option price equal to or
greater than $9.00 per share. The second acceleration was done in the fourth quarter of 2005 for all options
with an option price equal to or greater than $5.35 per share. Both of the accelerations were done as part of a
comprehensive review of our entire benefits program and the decision to accelerate some of our options was
made after review of the our current stock price, the competitive benefits and costs from the options, the
benefit of the options to the employees and the potential effects of SFAS No. 123(R). The closing price of our
stock, as reported on the NASDAQ National Market, on the date of the first option acceleration was $4.00 per
share and $4.59 per share on the date of the second option acceleration. Currently, we are forecasting the effect
of SFAS 123(R) and SAB No. 107 (see below) to be approximately $2 million (unaudited) in the first quarter
of 2006 and between $7 million and $10 million (unaudited) for the full year.

In March 2005, the Securities and Exchange Commission released Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”)
No. 107, to provide guidance on SFAS No. 123(R). SAB No. 107 provides the Staff’s view regarding the
valuation of share-based payment arrangements for public companies. In particular, this SAB provides
guidance related to share-based payment transactions with non-employees, the transition from non-public to
public éntity status, valuation methods (including assumptions such as expected volatility and expected
term), the accounting for certain redeemable financial instruments issued under share-based payment
arrangements, the classification of compensation expense, non-GAAP financial measures, first time
adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), the modification of employee share options prior to the adoption of SFAS
No. 123(R) and disclosure in Management’s Discussion and Analysis subsequent to adoption of SFAS
No. 123(R). SAB No. 107 was effective March 29, 2005. Currently, we are forecasting the effect of SFAS
123(R) and SAB No. 107 to be approximately $2 million (unaudited) in the first quarter of 2006 and
between $7 million and $10 million (unaudited) for the full year. However the forecasted effect require
significant estimates as the full effect is dependant upon future grant activity, future forfeiture and exercise
rates, our stock price at grant date, our future stock price volatility, and other variables. These factors could
change substantially and have a material effect on our estimates.

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, Inventory Costs—an amendment of ARB No. 43,
in an effort to converge U.S. accounting standards for inventories with International Accounting Standards.
FAS No. 151 requires idle facility expenses, freight, handling costs, and wasted material (spoilage) costs to
be recognized as current-period charges. It also requires that allocation of fixed production overheads to the
costs of conversion be based on the normal capacity of the production facilities. FAS No. 151 will be
effective for inventory costs incurred during fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. We believe our
current accounting policy complies with the requirements of the new standard and as such the adoption of
this standard is not expected to have a material impact on our financial statements.

In November 2004, the FASB ratified a consensus reached by the Emerging Issues Task Force
(“EITF”) with respect to EITF Issue No. 03-13, Applying the Conditions in Paragraph 42 of FASB
Statement No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, in Determining
Whether to Report Discontinued Operations. A number of issues have arisen in practice in applying the
criteria in paragraph 42, and the following broad categories of issues related to the application of both
criteria in that paragraph have been identified: (a) whether the intent of the paragraph is that all operations
and cash flows of the disposal component be eliminated from the ongoeing operations of the entity or
whether, some minor level of operations or cash flow may remain; (b) if some insignificant level of
operations or cash flows of the disposal component can continue without precluding discontinued
operations reporting, the level at which “significance” should be measured; and (c) in applying the
paragraph, the factors to consider in determining whether the selling entity has retained “significant
continuing involvement” in the disposed component. In the first quarter of 2005, we identified the
optoelectronics operations as a discontinued operation pursuant to EITF No. 03-13 and have presented the
consolidated financial statements accordingly for all periods presented.
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In addition, the EITF is currently discussing Issue No. 06-C, Accounting for Sabbatical Leave and
Other Similar Benefits Pursuant to FASB Statement No. 43, Accounting for Compensated Absences.
Statement No. 43 provides guidance for accounting for compensated absences and states that an employer
shall accrue a liability for employees’ compensation for future absences if certain conditions are met.
However, since certain compensated absences such as sabbatical leave do not typically vest, there is
uncertainty whether employee rights to the compensated absence accumulate and meet the conditions of
Statement No. 43. Currently, we do not accrue for sabbatical leave until the employee vests; and do not
believe the resolution of the issue will have a material impact on our financial statements.

Impact of Inflation

We believe that inflation has not had a material impact on operating costs and expenses.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about Market Risk
Cash Equivalents, Short-term and Long-term Investments

Our investments in cash equivalents, short-term investments and long-term investments are classified
as available-for-sale securities and are comprised of highly rated, short and long-term investments, such as
U.S. government agencies, corporate debt securities, commercial paper and other such low risk investments,
in accordance with an investment policy approved by our board of directors. All of these investments are
held at fair value. Although we manage investments under an investment policy, economic, market and
other events may occur which we cannot control. Although the risks are minimal, fixed rate securities may
have their fair value adversely impacted because of changes in interest rates and credit ratings. Due in part
to these factors, our future investment income may fall short of expectations because of changes in interest
rates or we may suffer principal losses if we were to sell securities that have declined in value because of
changes in interest rates or issuer credit ratings. We do not hold or issue derivatives, derivative commodity
instruments or other financial instruments for trading speculative purposes. We do not believe that our
results of operations would be materially impacted by an immediate 10% change in interest rates.

Debt

Our convertible subordinated notes due in 2007 have a fixed interest rate of 4%. Consequently, we do
not have significant interest rate cash flow exposure on our long-term debt. However, the fair value of the
convertible subordinated notes is subject to significant fluctuations due to their convertibility into shares of
our stock and other market conditions. The fair value of these convertible subordinated notes is also
sensitive to fluctuations in the general level of the U.S. interest rates. The notes do not contain significant
restrictive covenants.

We would also be exposed to interest rate risk, if we used additional financing to fund capital
expenditures. The interest rate that we may be able to obtain on financings will depend on market conditions
at that time and may differ from the rates we have secured in the past.

The following table shows the fair values of our investments and convertible subordinated notes as of
December 31, 2005:

(in thousands) Cost Fair Value
Cash and cash equivalents (including unrealized gains of $76) .. ........ $103,654 $103,730
Auvailable-for-sale investments (including unrealized losses of $3,120) ... 306,112 302,992
Convertible subordinated notes . .......... .ottt 218,755 212,192
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Foreign‘ Currency Risk

We are exposed to currency exchange rate fluctuations, as we sell our products internationally and
have operations in Costa Rica and Germany. We manage the sensitivity of our international sales, purchases
of raw materials and equipment and our Costa Rican operations by denominating most transactions in
U.S. dollars. We engage in limited foreign currency hedging transactions, principally to lock in the cost of
purchase commitments and to hedge material cash flows that are not denominated in U.S. dollars, in
accordance with a foreign exchange risk management policy approved by our board of directors. We
primarily use currency forward contracts for this purpose. This hedging activity will reduce, but may not
always entirely eliminate, the impact of currency exchange movements. As of December 31, 2005 and
2004, the notional amounts of forward currency exchange contracts outstanding of approximately
$3.4 million and $39.0 million, respectively. The notional amounts of the contracts designated as cash flow
hedges at Decemnber 31, 2005 and 2004, was approximately $3.4 million and $7.0 million, respectively. The
contracts designated as balance sheet hedges ar December 31, 2004, were approximately $32.0 million. We
had no contracts designated as balance sheet hedges at December 31, 2005.

Item 8. . Financial Statements and Supplementary Financial Data

Ouf consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2005 and 2004 and for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2005, together with the reports of our independent registered public
accounting firm, are included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K on pages F-1 through F-38.

Item 9. . Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A.‘: Controls and Procedures

Our management evaluated, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and cur Chief
Financial Officer, the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period
covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and
our Chief Financial Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective to
ensure that information we are required to disclose in reports that we file or submit under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal
executive and principal financial officers, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure, and that such information is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time
periods specified in Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms.

There was no change to our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended
December 31, 2005 that has materially effected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal
control over financial reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an adequate system of
internal control over financial reporting for the Company pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002 (Section 404) and as implemented in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act. The Company’s
internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have
inherent limitations. Internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

 pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
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» provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and

+ provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Management has adopted the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(“COSO”) framework to evaluate the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting. Management’s evaluation of the results of testing included consideration of susceptibility to loss
or fraud, subjectivity, complexity, the extent of judgment, the amount and volume of the transactions
exposed to the deficiency, the existence of mitigating controls, the cause of detected exceptions, how the
exception was detected, the pervasiveness of the exception, the significance of the deviation from policy,
and the frequency of exceptions relative to the frequency of operation.

Indicators of deficiencies that may be material weaknesses and are at least significant include
restatement, material misstatement in the current period, ineffective Audit Committee oversight, ineffective
internal audit function, identification of fraud of any magnitude by management, significant deficiencies
that remain uncorrected for some period of time, ineffective control environment, and the aggregate effect
of all deficiencies.

As of December 31, 2005, management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting, and concluded that such control over financial reporting was effective. There were
no material weaknesses in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that have been identified
by management. The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm, KPMG LLP has issued an
audit report on management’s assessment of our internal control over financial reporting. Their report on the
effectiveness of internal controls over financial reporting is included below.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Boérd of Directors and Stockholders
TriQuint Semiconductor, Inc.:

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on
Internal.Control Over Financial Reporting, that TriQuint Semiconductor, Inc. maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Infernal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO). TriQuint Semiconductor, Inc.’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all
material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external ‘purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that TriQuint Semiconductor, Inc. maintained effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, is fairly stated, in all material respects,
based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQ). Also, in our opinion, TriQuint
Semiconductor, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of TriQuint Semiconductor, Inc. and subsidiaries as
of December 31, 2005, and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’
equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2005, and our
report dated March 14, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Portland, Qregon
March 14, 2006
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Item 9B. Other Information

None
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| PART II1
ITEM 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant
Executfve Officers

Biographical information concerning our executive officers and their ages as of March 14, 2006 is set
forth below:

i Position Held
Name - Age Current Position(s) with Company Since
Ralph G. Quinsey .............. 50 President and Chief Executive Officer 2002
Stephanie J. Welty ............. 50 Vice President, Finance and Administration, 2005

? Chief Financial Officer and Secretary
BrianP;Balut................. 40  Vice President, Sawtek Inc. 2004
Thomas V. Cordner ............ 61  Vice President, TriQuint Texas 1998
Todd A DeBonis . ............. 41  Vice President, Worldwide Sales 2004
Bruce R. Fournier .. ............ 49  Vice President, TriQuint Oregon 2002
J.DavidPye .................. 55  Vice President, TriQuint Oregon: 2002
GlenA.Riley ................. 43  Vice President, Business Development 2005
J. Michael Sanna .............. 53 Vice President, TriQuint Texas 2002
AzharWaseem ................ 52  Vice President, Sawtek Inc. 2002

Ralph G. Quinsey joined TriQuint in July 2002 as President and Chief Executive Officer. From
September 1999 to January 2002, Mr. Quinsey was with ON Semiconductor, a manufacturer of
semiconductors for a wide array of applications, as Vice President and General Manager of the Analog
Division. From 1979 to September 1999, Mr. Quinsey was with Motorola, a manufacturer of
semiconductors and communications equipment holding various positions including Vice President and
General Manager of the RF/IF Circuits Division, which developed both silicon and GaAs technologies for
wireless:phone applications. Mr. Quinsey received a B.S. degree in Electrical Engineering from Marquette
University.

Stephanie J. Welty joined TriQuint in 1994. In May 2005, Ms. Welty was appointed Vice President,
Finance and Administration, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary. From September 1999 to May 2000,
Ms. Welty served as TriQuint’s Vice President, Finance and Controller. Ms. Welty also served as the
Company’s Accounting Manager from 1994 to 1996 and as Director of Information Systems from 1996 to
September 1999. Prior to joining TriQuint, Ms. Welty held accounting and controller positions at other high
technology firms. Ms. Welty holds a B.S. degree from the University of Washington and she is a Certified
Public Accountant.

Brian P. Balut joined TriQuint in July 2001 as Vice President, Sales and Marketing, Sawtek Inc. as a
result of TriQuint’s merger with Sawtek and served as Vice President, Sales and Marketing of TriQuint
from 2002 to May 2004. In May 2004, Mr. Balut was promoted to Vice President of Sawtek. Mr. Balut
joined Sawtek in October 1994 as Sales Manager. He was promoted to Director of Sales and Marketing in
November 1996 and to Vice President Sales and Marketing in September 1998 and assumed overall
corporate responsibility for this function in July 2002. From 1987 to 1994, Mr. Balut held various positions
in sales, marketing and engineering with REMEC, a manufacturer of electronic components, Mr. Balut
received a B.S. degree in Electrical Engineering from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology and a
M.B.A. from Rollins College.

Thomas V. Cordner joined TriQuint in January 1998 as Vice President and General Manager,
Millimeter Wave Communications as a result of TriQuint’s acquisition of Raytheon’s MMIC operations and
was promoted to Vice President, TriQuint Texas in May 2002. From July 1997 to January 1998,
Mr. Cordner served as Operations Manager for Raytheon, heading its GaAs MMIC operations. Prior to that
time, Mr. Cordner was an employee of Texas Instruments, a semiconductor and communications equipment
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manufacturer, for 32 years, most recently as the Operations Manager for its GaAs Operations Group from
January 1991 to July 1997. Mr. Cordner received a B.S. degree in Mathematics from the University of
Texas at Arlington.

Todd A. DeBonis joined TriQuint in April 2004 as Vice President, Worldwide Sales. From February
2002 to April 2004, Mr. DeBonis held the position of Vice President, Worldwide Sales and Marketing at
Centillium Communications. Mr. DeBonis also served as the Vice President, Worldwide Sales for Ishoni
Networks and Vice President, Sales & Marketing for the Communications Division of Infineon
Technologies North America. Mr. DeBonis has a B.S degree in electrical engineering from the University
of Nevada.

Bruce R. Fournier joined TriQuint in June 1987 as Area Sales Manager. Since that time, he has held a
variety of positions including National Sales Manager, Wireless Products from 1991 to 1994, Director of
Worldwide Sales from early 1994 to September 1994 and Vice President, Worldwide Sales from September
1994 to June 1998. From June 1998 until May 2002, Mr. Fournier held the position of Vice President and
General Manager, Foundry Services. He currently holds the position of Vice President, TriQuint Oregon.
Prior to joining TriQuint, Mr. Fournier held engineering, sales and marketing management positions with
Fairchild Semiconductor, Weitek Corporation and Honeywell, Inc. Mr. Fournier received an A.S. degree in
Electrical Engineering and a B.S. degree in Business Administration from the University of Maine and a
M.B.A. from the University of Southern Maine.

J. David Pye joined TriQuint in May 1996 as Vice President, Manufacturing and in May 2002 was
named Vice President, TriQuint Oregon. From 1983 until 1996, Mr. Pye was Vice President and General
Manager at VLSI Technology, Inc., a semiconductor company, where he served in various capacities. From
1973 to 1983, Mr. Pye served in various roles in process engineering and process development at Texas
Instruments. Mr. Pye received a B.A. degree from Napier College of Science and Technology, Edinburgh,
Scotland.

Glen A. Riley joined TriQuint in January 2003 as Vice President of the Company’s former
optoelectronics business and in June 2005 was named Vice President, Business Development. From
December 2001 to August 2002, Mr. Riley served as the President and CEO of Opticalis, a venture-funded
start-up company developing optical communication sub-systems. Mr. Riley also spent six years with Agere
Systems, a semiconductor and optical component manufacturer, as Vice President of Optical Core
Networks, Vice President of Sales for the Asia-Pacific region, and as General Manager of the Storage
Products group. Before Agere, Mr. Riley held general management, marketing and sales positions at Philips
Semiconductors, AT&T Microelectronics and Texas Instruments. Mr. Riley holds a B.S. degree in
Electrical Engineering from the University of Maine and completed the General Manager Program at
Harvard Business School.

J. Michael Sanna joined TriQuint in January 1998 as Director of Business Development for the Texas
operation as a result of TriQuint’s acquisition of Raytheon’s MMIC operations. In May 2002 he was
promoted to Vice President, TriQuint Texas. From July 1997 to Janvary 1998, Mr. Sanna served as the
Wafer Fabrication Operations Manager for Raytheon, heading its GaAs MMIC manufacturing operations.
Prior to that time, Mr. Sanna was an employee of Texas Instruments for 17 years, most recently as the
Wafer Fabrication Operations manager for its GaAs Operations Group from January 1994 to July 1997.
Mr. Sanna received B.S. and M.S. degrees in Electrical Engineering from the University of Wisconsin and
Southern Methodist University, respectively, and a Masters Degree in Administrative Studies from
Southeastern Oklahoma State University.

Azhar Waseem joined TriQuint in July 2001 as Vice President, Sawtek Inc. as a result of TriQuint’s
merger with Sawtek. Mr. Waseem joined Sawtek in March 1995 as Director of Wafer Fabrication and was
promoted to Vice President of Manufacturing in April 1998 and to Vice President of Operations in October
1999. In May 2002 he was promoted to Vice President, Sawtek, Inc. From 1989 to 1994, Mr. Waseem held
various operations and engineering positions with Siliconix, Inc., a microelectronics manufacturer based in
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Santa Clara, California. From 1986 to 1989, Mr. Waseem held various engineering positions with General
Electric. Mr. Waseem received B.S. and M.S. degrees in Electrical Engineering and a M.B.A., all from the
University of Minnesota.

Information required by this item is included in our definitive Proxy Statement under the captions
Election of Directors, Section [6(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance and Corporate
Governance and Other Matters, to be filed with the Commission within 120 days after the conclusion of our
fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 (April 30, 2006) pursuant to General Instructions G(3) of Form 10-K
and is incorporated herein by this reference.

ITEM 11. Executive Compensation

We maintain employee benefit plans and programs in which our executive officers are participants.
Copies of certain of these plans and programs are set forth or incorporated by reference as Exhibits to this
report. Information required by Item 11 is included in our definitive Proxy Statement under the caption
Executive Compensation and Other Matters, Aggregated Option Exercises in Last Fiscal Year and Fiscal
Year-End Option Values, Employment Contracts and Termination of Employment and Change-of-Control
Arrangements, Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation, Report of the Compensation
Committee and Stock Performance Graph, to be filed with the Commission within 120 days after the
conclusion of our fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 (April 30, 2006) pursuant to Regulation 144, which
information is incorporated herein by this reference.

ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

Information required by this item is included under the caption Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management contained in our definitive Proxy Statement to be filed with the
Commission within 120 days after the conclusion of our fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 (April 30,
2006) pursuant to Regulation 14A, which information is incorporated herein by this reference.

ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Information required by this item is included under the caption Certain Relationships and Related
Transactions contained in our definitive Proxy Statement to be filed with the Commission within 120 days
after the conclusion of our fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 (April 30, 2006) pursuant to Regulation
14A, which information is incorporated herein by this reference.

ITEM 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Information required by this item is included under the caption Ratification of Independent Auditors
contained in our definitive Proxy Statement to be filed with the Commission within 120 days after the
conclusion of our fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 (April 30, 2006) pursuant to Regulation 14A, which
information is incorporated herein by this reference.

61

v
¥

7 \

piodatilienuiiy

-



PART IV
ITEM 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) Documents filed as part of this report:

1. Consolidated Financial Statements. The following consolidated financial statements of TriQuint
Semiconductor and its subsidiaries, together with the report thereon of KPMG LLP, required to be filed
pursuant to Part II, Item 8§ of this Form 10-K, are included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K on
pages F-1 through F-38:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm;

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003;
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2005 and 2004;

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003;

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004
and 2003; and

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

2. Consolidated Financial Statement Schedule. The following consolidated financial statement
schedule of TriQuint Semiconductor and its subsidiaries required to be filed pursuant to Part IV, Item 15 of
this Form 10-K, is included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K on pages S-1 and S-2:

Schedule II—Consolidated Valuation and Qualifying Accounts; and

Report and Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

All other schedules are omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is shown in
the Consolidated Financial Statements or notes thereto.

3. Exhibits.

Exhibit No. Description

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation, incorporated herein by reference to the corresponding exhibit to
the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 8-B (File No. 000-22660) as declared
effective by the SEC on February 18, 1997.

3.1.1 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation, incorporated herein by reference to
the corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File
No. 000-22660) for the period ended September 30, 2000 filed with the SEC on
November 13, 2000.

312 Certificate of Correction to Certificate of Incorporation, incorporated herein by reference to
the corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File
No. 333-62062) declared effective by the SEC on June 13, 2001.

3.13 Certificate of Designation of Series A Participating Preferred Stock, incorporated herein by
reference to the corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-4
(File No. 333-62062) declared effective by the SEC on June 13, 2001.

314 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation, incorporated herein by reference to
the corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File
No. 333-62062) declared effective by the SEC on June 13, 2001.
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Exhibit No.

Description

32

4.1

42"

10.18

10.19.

1022

10.23

1033

Bylaws of Registrant, incorporated herein by this reference to the corresponding exhibit to the
Registrant’s Registration Stateraent on Form 8-B (File No. 000-22660) as declared effective
by the SEC on February 18, 1997.

Preferred Shares Rights Agreement, dated as of June 30, 1998 between Registrant and
ChaseMellon Shareholder Services, L.L.C., including the Certificate of Determination, the
form of Rights Certificate and the Summary of Rights attached thereto as Exhibits A, B, and
C, respectively, incorporated herein by reference to the corresponding exhibit to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-A (File No. 000-22660) as declared effective by the
SEC on July 24, 1998.

Indenture dated February 24, 2000 between the Registrant and State Street Bank and Trust
Company of California, N.A., incorporated herein by reference to the corresponding exhibit to
the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (File No. 333-36112) as declared
effective by the SEC on May 16, 2000.

1996 Stock Incentive Program and forms of agreement thereunder, incorporated herein by this
reference to the corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8
(File No. 333-81273) as declared effective by the SEC on June 22, 1999, as amended by the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-39730), as declared effective
by the SEC on June 20, 2000, as amended by the Registrant’s Registration Statement on
Form S-8 (File No. 333-61582), as declared effective by the SEC on May 24, 2001, as
amended by the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-105701), as
declared effective by the SEC on May 30, 2003 and incorporated by reference to the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 000-22660) for the period ended
September 30, 2003 filed with the SEC on November 4, 2003, as amended and restated
effective February 2005 by the Registrant’'s Current Report on Form 8-K (File
No. 000-22660) filed with the SEC on May 17, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference to
Appendix A to the Registrant’s definitive proxy statement on Schedule 14A for the 2005
Annual Meeting of Stockholders, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
April 6, 2005.

Form of Indemnification Agreement executed by Registrant and its officers and directors
pursuant to Delaware reincorporation, incorporated herein by this reference to the
corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 8-B (File
No. 000-22660) as declared effective by the SEC on February 18, 1997.

1998 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan and forms of agreement thereunder, incorporated herein
by reference to the corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form
S-8 (File No. 333-102085) as declared effective by the SEC on December 20, 2002 and
incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No.
000-22660) for the period ended September 30, 2003 filed with the SEC on November 4,
2003.

1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plan and forms of agreement thereunder, incorporated herein
by reference to the corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on
Form S-8 (File No. 333-66707) as declared effective by the SEC on November 3, 1998, as
amended by the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-39732), as
declared effective by the SEC on June 20, 2000, and by the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-61582), as declared effective by the SEC on May 24,
2001.

Sawtek Inc. Employee Stock Ownership and 401(k) Plan, incorporated herein by reference to
the corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File
No. 000-22660) for the period ended June 30, 2002 filed with the SEC on August 13, 2002.
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Exhibit No,

Description

10.34

10.35

10.36

10.37

10.38

10.40"

10.41

10.42

10.42.1

10.42.2

10.42.3

10.43.4

10.43.5

Sawtek Inc. 2000 Implementation Agreement, incorporated herein by reference to the
corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File
No. 333-65850) as declared effective by the SEC on July 25, 2001.

Sawtek Inc. 2000 Modified ESOP Loan Agreement, incorporated herein by reference to the
corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File
No. 333-65850) as declared effective by the SEC on July 25, 2001.

Sawtek Inc. 2000 Renewed ESOP Note, incorporated herein by reference to the
corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File
No. 333-65850) as declared effective by the SEC on July 25, 2001.

Sawtek Inc. Second Stock Option Plan, incorporated herein by reference to the corresponding
exhibit to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-65850) as
declared effective by the SEC on July 25, 2001.

Sawtek Inc. Stock Option Plan for Acquired Companies, incorporated herein by reference to
the corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File
No. 333-65850) as declared effective by the SEC on July 25, 2001.

Amended Sale and Transfer Agreement between Infineon Technologies AG, Infineon
Technologies North America Corp., Registrant and TriQuint GmbH dated as of April 29,
2002, incorporated herein by reference to the corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 000-22660) filed with the SEC on July 15, 2002.

Letter Agreement dated June 28, 2002 between Registrant and Ralph G. Quinsey,
incorporated herein by reference to the corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 000-22660) for the period ended June 30, 2002 filed with the
SEC on August 13, 2002.

Asset Purchase Agreement by and between Agere Systems Inc. and Registrant dated as of
October 21, 2002, incorporated herein by reference to the corresponding exhibit to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 000-22660) filed with the SEC on
January 17, 2003.

Amendment No. 1 to Asset Purchase Agreement by and between Agere Systems Inc. and
Registrant dated as of January 2, 2003, incorporated herein by reference to the corresponding
exhibit to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 000-22660) filed with the
SEC on January 17, 2003.

Assignment and Bill of Sale and Assumption Agreement by and between Agere Systems Inc.
and TriQuint Optoelectronics, Inc. dated as of January 2, 2003, incorporated herein by
reference to the corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File
No. 000-22660) filed with the SEC on January 17, 2003.

Assignment and Bill of Sale and Assumption Agreement by and between Agere Systems Inc.
and TriQuint Technology Holding Co. dated as of January 2, 2003, incorporated herein by
reference to the corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form §-K (File
No. 000-22660) filed with the SEC on January 17, 2003.

Intellectual Property Agreement by and between Agere Systems Inc. and Registrant dated as
of January 2, 2003, incorporated herein by reference to the corresponding exhibit to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 000-22660) filed with the SEC on
January 17, 2003.

Purchase Agreement by and between Agere Systems Inc. and Registrant dated as of
January 2, 2003, incorporated herein by reference. to the corresponding exhibit to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 000-22660) filed with the SEC on
January 17, 2003.
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Exhibit No.

Description

10.43.7

10.45

10.46

10.47

10.47.1,

10.48%

10.49

10.50

10.51
12.1
21.1
23.1
24.1
311

31.2

321

Equity Purchase Agreement by and among Agere Systems Inc., Agere Systems International,
LLC, Registrant, TriQuint International Holding Co., TriQuint International Holding LLC and
Agere Systems de Mexico, S. DE R.L.. DE C.V. dated as of January 2, 2003, incorporated
herein by reference to the corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form
8-K (File No. 000-22660) filed with the SEC on January 17, 2003.

Letter Agreement dated April 9, 2004 between Registrant and Todd A. DeBonis, incorporated
herein by reference to the corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q (File No. 000-22660) for the period ended March 31, 2004 filed with the SEC on May
10, 2004,

TriQuint Semiconductor, Inc. Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan, incorporated herein
by reference to the corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K
(File No. 000-22660) filed with the SEC on November 2, 2004.

Agreement and Plan of Reorganization by and among Sawtek Inc., TFR Acquisition, Inc., and
TFR Technologies, Inc., dated as of December 14, 2004, incorporated herein by reference to
the corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 000-
22660) for the year ended December 31, 2005 filed with the SEC on March 15, 2005.
Amendment No. 1 to Agreement and Plan of Reorganization by and among Sawtek Inc., TFR
Acquisition, Inc., and TFR Technologies, Inc., dated as of January 6, 2005, incorporated
herein by reference to the corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form
10-K (File No. 000-22660) for the year ended December 31, 2005 filed with the SEC on
March 15, 2005.

Purchase and Sale Agreement by and between TriQuint Optoelectronics, Inc. and Anthem
Partners, LLC, dated as of March 7, 2005, incorporated herein by reference to the
corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 000-22660)
for the year ended December 31, 2005 filed with the SEC on March 15, 2005.

Asset Purchase Agreement by and between Registrant and CyOptics, Inc., incorporated herein
by reference to the corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
(File No. 000-22660) for the period ended March 31, 2005 filed with the SEC on May 11,
2005.

Letter Agreement dated July 20, 2005 between Registrant and Stephanie J. Welty,
incorporated herein by reference to the corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K (File No. 000-22660) filed with the SEC on July 25, 2005.

TriQuint Semiconductor, Inc. Marnagement Incentive Plan, dated as of March 2, 2006.+
Computation of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges+

Subsidiaries of the Registrant+

Report and Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm=+

Power of Attorney+

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act, as amended=+

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act, as amended+

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley act of 2002+

*  Confidential treatment has been granted with respect to certain portions of this exhibit. Omitted
portions have been filed separately with the SEC.

+  Included in this Report
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly

authorized.
TRIQUINT SEMICONDUCTOR, INC.
Dated: March 16, 2006 By: /s/ RALPH G. QUINSEY
Ralph G. Quinsey
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)
Dated: March 16, 2006 By: /s/ STEPHANIE J. WELTY

Stephanie J. Welty
Vice President of Finance and Administration,
Chief Financial Officer and Secretary
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)




POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below
constitutes and appoints Ralph Quinsey and Stephanie Welty, jointly and severally, his or her
attorneys-in-fact, each with the power of substitution, for him or her in any and all capacities, to sign any
amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K and to file the same, with exhibits thereto and other
documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and
confirming all that each of said attorneys-in-fact, or his or her substitute or substitutes, may do or cause to
be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this Registration Statement has been
signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
' /s/ RALPH G. QUINSEY President and Chief Executive Officer March 16, 2006
‘ Ralph G. Quinsey (Principal Executive Officer)
i/s/ STEPHANIE J. WELTY Vice President, Finance and March 16, 2006
~ Stephanie I. Welty Administration,

Chief Financial Officer and Secretary
(Principal Financial and Accounting

Officer)
/s/ STEVEN J. SHARP Chairman of the Board March 16, 2006 ,
Steven J. Sharp g
/sf PAUL A. GARY Director March 16, 2006 =
| Paul A. Gary ‘
“ )
/s/ CHARLES SCOTT GIBSON Director March 16, 2006 ““b
Charles Scott Gibson
¢ /s/ NICOLAS KAUSER Director March 16, 2006
Nicolas Kauser
- /s/ WALDEN C. RHINES Director March 16, 2006
' Walden C. Rhines
. /s/ EDWARD F. TUCK Director March 16, 2006
Edward F. Tuck
| /s/f WILLIS C. YOUNG Director March 16, 2006

Willis C. Young
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CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Ralph G. Quinsey, certify that:

1. T have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of TriQuint Semiconductor, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in
the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability
to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s RALPH G. QUINSEY

Ralph G. Quinsey
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: March 16, 2006
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CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

L Stephlanie J. Welty, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of TriQuint Semiconductor, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

© (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure contrels and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

. (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

! (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in
the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability
to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

_(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ STEPHANIE J. WELTY

Stephanie J. Welty
Vice President, Finance and Administration,
Chief Financial Officer and Secretary
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Date: March 16, 2006
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CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION
1350 OF CHAPTER 63 OF TITLE 18
OF THE UNITED STATES CODE AS
ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the filing of the Annual Report on Form 10-K of TriQuint Semiconductor, Inc.
(“TriQuint”) for the year ended December 31, 20035, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on the date hereof (“the Report”), each of the undersigned officers of TriQuint, hereby certifies, pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of TriQuint.

The undersigned have executed this Certification effective as of March 16, 2006.

/s/ RALPH G. QUINSEY

Ralph G. Quinsey
President and Chief Executive Officer
— (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ STEPHANIE J. WELTY

=
f’% Stephanie J. Welty
5T | Vice President, Finance and Administration,
@ Chief Financial Officer and Secretary
= (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

|
il b

|
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
TriQuint Semiconductor, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying the consolidated balance sheets of TriQuint Semiconductor, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005, and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2005.
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of TriQuint Semiconductor, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2004,
and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the each of the years in the three-years period
ending December 31, 2005, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of TriQuint Semiconductor, Inc.’s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our
report dated March 14, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of, and the
effective operation of, internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ KPMG LLP
Portland, Oregon
March 14, 2006




TRIQUINT SEMICONDUCTOR, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share data)

Years Ended December 31,

: 2005 2004 2003
ReVeNUES ... i e e e $294,787 $312,971 $275,820
Costofgoodssold ....... ... i 210,446 213,416 188,162

Gross profit .. ... .. .. 84.341 99,555 87,658
Operating expenses:
Research, development and engineering ....................... 46,706 47,746 51,272
Selling, general and administrative ............. ... ... ... ..... 46,565 40,523 37,542
Reductioninworkforce ........ .o 341 429 1,763
Impairment of long-lived assets and goodwill .. ................. 31 710 —
Gain on disposal of equipment ............. ... ... i in.... (505) (13) —
Acquisition related charges ............. e 1,654 — —
Lease termination COSIS . ... v vttt et e — — 41,962
Total Operating eXpenses .. ... . ..........eureeeneneanonn. 94,792 89,395 132,539
Income (10ss) from Operations . . ..............o.veeureonr. s (10,451) 10,160 (44,881)
Other income (expense):
INterest INCOMIE . . . . oot e e e 11,441 7,126 6,135
IntereSt EXPEIISE 4 . v vttt e (9,846)  (10,730) (12,009)
Foreign currency gain (10ss) . ............ .. i, 4 2,125 (205)
Impairment charge—investments in other companies ............. (155) (1,189) (2,387)
Gain on recovery of previously impaired investment ............. 954 — 8,450
Gainonretirementofdebt ........... ... ... ... . .. 114 539 —
Other, met ... e e e e 163 187 (188)
Total other income (expense), net ...............c.coove.n.. 2,675 (1,942) (204)
Income (loss) from continuing operations, before income tax . ... (7,776) 8,218 (45,085)
Income tax expense (benefit) ................... e (3,573) 397 (1,694)
Income (loss) from continuing operations .. .................. (4,203) 7,821 (43,391)
Discontinued operations: ‘
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax ... .. ..... 8,183 (36,875) (29,587)
Netincome (10SS) .. ... ovvii i $ 3,980 $(29,054) $(72,978)
Basic per‘share net income (loss):
Income (loss) from continuing operations ...................... $ (0.03) $ 006 $ (0.32)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations .................... 0.06 0.27) (0.22)

$§ 003 §$ (021) $ (0.54)

Diluted per share net income (loss):
Income (loss) from continuing operations ...................... $ (©03) $ 006 $ (0.32)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations .................... 0.06 0.27) 0.22)

$ 003 $ (021) $ (0.54)

Common equivalent shares:
BaSIC « o 139,566 136,936 133,920
Diluted ... .. e 139,566 138,960 133,920

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TRIQUINT SEMICONDUCTOR, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except share and per share data)

December 31,
2005 2004
ASSETS '
Current assets: S
Cashand cashequivalents . ............. vt $103,730  $ 89,719
Investments in marketable securities . ... ... . . v i e 197,377 108,778
Accounts receivable, net . ... e 51,286 35,654
Inventories, net . . ... o 49,384 49,619
Prepaid eXpenses .. ... .ot e 5,170 2,653
Other CUITENE @SSEES .« . . o vttt et et e et et e e e 7,514 5,568
Assetsheld forsale ... ... i e — 1,524
Assets of disposal group heldforsale ............ ... ... . ... ... oL — 32,366
Total CUITENt @SSELS . .\t ittt et ettt e e e 414,461 325,881
Long-term investments in marketable securities .. .............. . ... . .. 105,615 189,555
Property, plant and equipment, net ............. . i e 190,789 199,518
Goodwill and intangible assets, net .. ... e 4,652 2,261
Other NONCUITENT @SSELS, NEL . . ..ttt ettt ittt et ettt et e et a 13,224 5,185
TOtal ASSBES . . v ittt e $728,741 $722,400
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
ACCOUNLS Payable . . ... $ 23,680 $ 10,527
Accrued payroll ... ... 9,423 7,928
Income tax Hability . ... ... . . e 7,201 7,607
Other accrued Habilities . . ..o ot i 16,088 13,469
Capital leases, Current portion .. ..o ieriu i it — 275
Liabilities held forsale . ........... 0.t — 15,057
Total current liabilities ... ... i 56,401 54,863
Long-term liabilities: :
Convertible subordinated nOtes . ... ... ..ot 218,755 223,755
Other long-term liabilities . ....... .. ... . ... . 2,975 2,395
Total lHabilities . ... ... 278,131 281,013
Commitments and contingencies (Note 15)
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, $.001 par value, 600,000,000 shares authorized, 141,080,236
shares and 138,773,680 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2005
and December 31, 2004, respectively ......... .. ... . i - 141 139
Additional paid-in capital ......... ... ... 479,344 472,675
Accumulated other comprehensive loss ......... ... .. .. . i (3,135) (1,707)
Accumulated deficit . . .. ... (25,740)  (29,720)
Total stockholders’ equity ......... ... oot 450,610 441,387
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ............. ... ..., $728,741  $722,400

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Balance, December 31, 2002 .

Issuance of common stock

under plans ............
ESOPallocation ..........

Accumulated other

comprehensive income . ..

Net loss

Balance, December 31, 2003
Issuance of common stock

underplans ............

Accumulated other

comprehensive income . . .

Net loss

Balance, December 31, 2004 .

Issuance of common stock

underplans ............

Accumulated other

comprehensive income . ..

Net loss

Balance, December 31, 2005 ..

TRIQUINT SEMICONDUCTOR, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(In thousands)
Accumulated Retained
Additional Other Unearned Earnings Total
_Common Stock . Paid-in  Comprehensive ESOP (Accumulated Stockholders’
Shares Amount Capital Income (Loss) Compensation Deficit) Equity
. 133,163 133 452,761 661 (195) 72,312 525,672
2,240 2 7,832 — — — 7,834
—  — — —_ 195 — 195
— - — (602) — — (602)
— — — _ — (72,978) (72,978)
.. 135,403 135 460,393 39 — (666) 460,121
3,371 4 12,082 — — — 12,086
- = —  (1,766) — — (1,766)
— — — — — (29,054) (29,054)
. 138,774 139 472,675 (1,707) — (29,720) 441,387
2,306 2 6,669 — — — 6,671
- — (1,428 — — (1,428)
_—  — — — — 3,980 3,980
141,080 $141 $479,344  $(3,135) 5 — $(25,740) $450,610

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TRIQUINT SEMICONDUCTOR, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

Years Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
Cash flows from operating activities:
Netineome (10SS) « . v ot vttt ettt ettt $ 3980 $ (29054) $ (72,978)
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations, netoftax ................ (8,183) 36,875 29,587
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization . ... ......... ... i 34,860 37,879 36,017
Tax benefit allocated to continuing operations ...................cc...... (4.8106) — —
Impairment of long-lived assets and goodwill ......... ... . ... .. ....... 1 710 —
Gainonretirementof debt ... .. ... . ... (114 (539) —
Impairment charge—investments in other companies .................... 155 1,189 2,387
(Gain) loss on disposal of assets . ...............c.. i, (505) (13) -—
Lease termination costs .................... P — — 41,962
Gain on recovery of previonsly impaired investment ................. .... (954) — (8,450)
Unrealized ESOP compensation . .................ooiiiiiiiiainin... — — 195
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of assets acquired:
Accounts receivable, net ... ... .. (15,065) (155) (630)
Inventories, et .. ... ... .. 654 3,267 (16,603)
Other @SSEES . .. ot ittt (6,273) 9,220 6,987
Accounts payable and accrued eXpenses ... ... ... 13,902 (3,317) (737)
Net cash provided by continuing operations ............................ 17,672 56,062 17,737
Net cash used in discontinued operations ....................c....o.... (3,262) (15,839) (44,565)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities ........................ 14,410 40,223 (26,828)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of available-for-sale investments ............... .. ..., (501,883)  (526,695) (1,271,527)
Maturity / sale of available-for-sale investments .......................... 496,165 500,985 1,279,817
 Business acquisitions, net of cashacquired .. .......... ... ... ... ... (2,716) — —
Proceeds fromsaleof assets ...............co i 2,224 60 —
Proceeds fromnotereceivable . ... ... ... . .. ... — — 11,250
Capital expenditures . ... ... i e (22,334) (24,317) (27,112)
Net cash used in continuing Operations . ..............vierveneerrnnnn.. (28,544) (49,967) (7,572)
Proceeds from the sale of discontinued operations, netof fees .............. 22,520 — —
Business acquisitions, netof cashacquired .. ......................... .. — — 40,151)
Net cash provided by discontinued operations .......................... 4,073 4,761 10,073
Net cash used in investing aCtVIties . .............cooviiuneeinanennnoan., (1,951 (45,206) (37,650)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Principal payments under capital lease and installment note obligations ........ (275) — (341)
Repurchase of convertible subordinatednotes ............. ... . ... . .... (4,844) (43,875) —_
Issuance of common stock, net ......... .. . . e 6,671 12,086 7,834
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ........................ 1,552 (31,789) 7,493
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ......................... 14,011 (36,772) (56,985)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period . . . ................ ... ... ... 89,719 126,491 183,476
Cash and cash equivalents atend of period ... .............................. $103,730 $ 89,719 $ 126,491
Supplemental disclosures:
Cash paid forinterest . ............ ... $ 8898 §$ 10225 $ 10,762
Cash paid for inCOME 1aXes .. ..o ettt $ 620 3 655 % 654
Preferred stock received in sale of discontinued operations .................. $ 4500 — 3 —
Fair value of note receivable from sale of discontinued operations ............ $ 3341 § — —
Payable due from business acquisition .......................c.eiiiiia... $§ 2263 % — 3 —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TRIQUINT SEMICONDUCTOR, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(In thousands unless otherwise noted, except share and per share amounts)

Note 1. ' The Company

TriQuint Semiconductor, Inc. (the “Company”) is a supplier of high performance modules and
components for communications applications. The Company’s focus is on the specialized expertise, materials
and know-how of radio frequency (“RF”) arnd other high and intermediate frequency applications. The
Company’s primary markets include wireless handsets, broadband communications, wireless base stations and
military systems. The Company provides customers with standard and custom products as well as foundry
services. The Company’s products are designed on various wafer substrates including compound
semiconductor materials such as gallium arsenide (“GaAs”) and piezoelectric crystals such as lithium tantalate
(“LiTa03”) and use a variety of process technologies including hetrojunction bipolar transistor (“HBT”),
pseudomophic high electron mobility transistor (“pHEMT”), surface acoustic wave (“SAW”) and bulk
acoustic wave (“BAW?”). The Company’s customers include major communication companies worldwide.

The Company’s products are designed on various wafer substrates including compound semiconductor
materials such as gallium arsenide (“GaAs”) and piezoelectric crystals such as lithium tantalate (“LiTa03”).
The Company uses a variety of process technologies using GaAs substrates including hetrojunction bipolar
transistor (“HBT”), pseudomophic high electron mobility transistor (“pHEMT”). Using piezoelectric
materials the Company manufactures surface acoustic wave (“SAW?”) and bulk acoustic wave (“BAW”).

On April 29, 2005, the Company completed the sale of its optoelectronics operations in Pennsylvania and
its optoelectronics subsidiary in Mexico. On July 13, 2005, the Company completed the sale of the land and
building and related facilities occupied by the Company’s former optoelectronics operations in Pennsylvania.
In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP”), the balance sheet
at December 31, 2004 has been adjusted to reflect the assets and liabilities of the operations in Pennsylvania
and Mexico optoelectronics operations as held for sale. Additionally, the statements of operations and cash
flows for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 have been adjusted to reflect the resuits of these
optoelectronics operations as discontinued operations for the periods presented. As of December 31, 2005, no
assets or liabilities associated with the sales of the operations and facility remained.

Note 2. Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements for the periods presented include the accounts of the Company
and its wholly owned subsidiaries, TFR Technologies, Inc., TriQuint Semiconductor Texas LP, TriQuint
Semiconductor GmbH, Sawtek, Inc. and Sawtek SRL. Investments in which the Company does not exercise
significant influence are recorded at cost (generally less than a 20% interest). The Company has no
investments in which it exercises significant influence but which it does not control (20% to 50% ownership
interest). All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated.

Reclassiﬁcations

Certain amounts in the December 31, 2004 and 2003 financial statements have been reclassified to
conform to the December 31, 2005 presentation. Reclassifications made to the 2004 and 2003 financial
statements include adjustments to reclassify certain expenses previously classified as selling, general and
administrative expenses to better align with their functional classification. The adjustments were as follows:

* For 2004, the Company reclassified $4,590 and $753, respectively, of expenses previously classified
as selling, general and administrative to cost of goods sold and research, development and
engineering.
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« For 2003, the Company reclassified $5,015 and $723, respectively, of expenses previously classified
as selling, general and administrative to cost of goods sold and research, development and
engineering.

These reclassifications had no effect on net income or loss or stockholders’ equity as previously
reported.

Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The
Company bases its estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances. Examples of such estimates include, but are not limited to,
allowance for doubtful accounts, sales returns reserves, inventory reserves, income tax valuation allowance,
warranty reserves, investment impairments, impairments of goodwill and long-lived assets and
commitments and contingencies. On a regular basis, the Company reviews its estimates to ensure the
estimates appropriately reflect changes in its business or as new information becomes available.
Management believes that these estimates are reasonable; however, actual results could materially differ
from these estimates.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues are primarily derived from the sale of standard and customer-specific products. The
Company also receives revenue from foundry services, non-recurring engineering fees and cost-plus
contracts for research and development Work, which collectively are less than 5% of consolidated revenue
for any period. The Company’s distribution channels include its direct sales staff, manufacturers’
representative firms, and distributors. Sales of products are generally made through either the Company’s
sales force and independent buy/sell representatives or through a distributor. Revenues from the Company’s
distributors in 2005, 2004 and 2003 were approximately $3,900, $4,300 and $4,600, respectively.

Revenues from standard and customer-specific products are recognized when title to the products pass
to the buyer. Revenues from foundry services and non-recurring engineering fees are recorded when the
service is completed or upon certain milestones as provided for in the agreements. Revenues from cost plus
contracts are recognized in a manner so that the fees will reasonably reflect assured realization as the
production is completed. Revenues from distributor sales are recognized when the product is sold to the
distributor. The Company’s distribution agreements provide for selling prices that are fixed at the date of
sale, although the Company occasionally offers price protections which are specific, of a fixed duration and
reserved for by the Company. Further, the distributor is obligated to pay the amount and the price or
payment obligation is not contingent on reselling the product; the distributor takes title to the product and
bears substantially all of the risks of ownership; the distributor has economic substance; the Company has
no significant obligations for future performance to bring about resale; and the amount of future returns can
be reasonably estimated. The Company allows its distributor to return products for warranty reasons, and
stock rotation rights, within certain limitations, and reserve for such instances. Customers can only return
product for warranty reasons. If the Company is unable to repair or replace products returned under
warranty, the Company will issue a credit for a warranty return.

Product Warranty

The Company sells products with warranties that the product will be free of faulty workmanship or
defective materials and that that products will conform to the Company’s published specifications or other
specifications mutually agreed to with the customer. The Company estimates the potential liability
associated with these warranties based on a combination of factors including historical product return
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experience, known product warranty issues with specific customers, and judgment of expected levels of
returns based on economic and other factors. An accrual for expected warranty costs results in a charge to
the financial results in the period recorded. This liability can be difficult to estimate and, if the Company
experiences warranty claims in excess of projections, the Company may need to record additional accruals
which would adversely affect the financial results.

Thé liability for product warranties is included in “Other accrued liabilities” on the Company’s
consolidated balance sheet. The following table provides a reconciliation of the activity related to the
Company’s reserve for warranty:

Years Ended December 31,

| 2005 2004 2003
Beginning balance .. ... ... . . i i e $806 $1.636 $2,159

AddItioNs . ... ... 584 1,047 555

Deductions . ...t (688) (1,877) (1,078)
Ending balance . . ........oouiiii $702 $ 806 $1,636

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities, trade
receivables and payables and forward cumrency contracts. The Company also has 4% convertible
subordinated notes due in 2007. The fair value of the convertible subordinated notes is subject to significant
fluctuations due to their convertibility into shares of the Company’s stock and other market conditions. The
fair value of these notes is also sensitive to fluctuations in the general level of the U.S. interest rates.

Fair'value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on relevant market information about
the financial instrument. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of
significant judgment and therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could
significantly affect the estimates. See Note 6 for further discussion.

Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid debt and other instruments purchased with an original
maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. These investments include obligations of U.S.
government agencies, corporate debt securities, commercial paper and money market funds. At December
31, 2005 and 2004, the Company’s cash equivalents were $78,009 and $69,401, respectively.

Marketable Securities and Other Investments

The Company determines the appropriate classification of its investments at the time of acquisition and
reevaluates such determination at each balance sheet date. The Company’s investment policy sets minimum
credit quality criteria and maximum maturity limits on its investment to provide for safety of principal,
liquidity and a reasonable rate of return. Investments for which maturity from the balance sheet date is
greater than one year are classified as long-term investments in marketable securities. Available-for-sale
securities ‘are recorded at fair value, based on current market valuations. Unrealized holding gains and
losses, net of the related tax effect, on available-for-sale securities are excluded from earnings and are
reported as 'a‘ separate component of other comprehensive income until realized. Realized gains and losses
are included in earnings and are derived using the specific identification method for determining the cost of
the securities sold. Held-to-maturity securities are recorded at amortized cost, adjusted for the amortization
or accretion of premiums or discounts.

At December 31, 2005 and 2004 the Company’s investments consisted of U.S. treasury securities and
obligations of U.S. government agencies, municipal notes and bonds, corporate debt securities, auction rate
preferred s‘ecurities and other investments. All were classified as available-for-sale.

[
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Trade Accounts Receivable

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. The Company
establishes an allowance for the trade accounts receivable which represents the Company’s best estimate of
the amount of probable credit losses in the Company’s existing accounts receivable. The Company
determines the allowance by performing on-going evaluations of its customers and their ability to make
payments. The Company determines the adequacy of the allowance based on length of time past due,
historical experience and judgment of economic conditions. Additionally, the Company has a credit policy
that is applied to potential customers. Account balances are charged off against the allowance after all
means of collection have been exhausted and the potential for recovery is considered remote. The Company
does not have any off-balance sheet credit exposure related to its customers.

Inventories

The Company states its inventories at the lower of cost or market. The Company uses a combination of
standard cost and moving average cost methodologies to determine its cost basis for its inventories. This
methodology approximates actual cost on a first-in, first-out basis. In addition to stating inventory at a lower
of cost or market valuation, the Company also evaluates it each period for excess quantities and
obsolescence. This evaluation, based on historical experience and the Company’s judgment of economic
conditions, includes identifying those parts specifically identified as obsolete and reserving for them,
analyzing forecasted demand versus quantities on hand and reserving for the excess, and identifying and
recording other specific reserves. If future demand or market conditions are less favorable than projections
and the Company fails to reduce manufacturing output accordingly, additional inventory reserves may be
required and would have a negative impact on the Company’s gross margin in the period the adjustment is
made.

Property, Plant & Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is recorded at cost. Machinery and equipment under capital leases is
stated at the lower of the present value of the minimum lease payments at the beginning of the lease term or
the fair value of the leased assets at the inception of the lease.

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets,
which are as follows: three to seven years for machinery and equipment, furniture and fixtures and
computer equipment and software; fifteen years land improvements; twenty years for building equipment;
and 39 years for buildings. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the estimated life of
the asset or the term of the related lease, generally three to seven years. Asset lives are reviewed
periodically to determine if appropriate and adjustments are made as necessary. Depreciation begins at the
time assets are placed in service. Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. For 2005, 2004 and
2003, the Company incurred depreciation expense of $32,613, $34,944 and $32,250, respectively.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of casts over fair value of assets of business acquired. Other intangible
assets consists primarily of patents, developed technology and other intangibles with estimable useful lives,
ranging from two to 10 years at the time of acquisition. Goodwill and intangible assets acquired in a
purchase business combination and determined to have an indefinite useful life are not amortized, but
instead reviewed at least annually for impairment. Intangible assets with estimable useful lives are
amortized over their respective estimated lives to their estimated residual values, and reviewed for
impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets.

The Company performs its annual goodwill impairment tests in the fourth quarter of the year, or more
frequently if circumstances indicate it might be impaired. The amount of impairment, if any, is recognized
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to the extent that the carrying amount exceeds the asset’s fair value. Financing costs related to the issuance
of debt are capitalized as other noncurrent assets, net and amortized to interest expense over the term of the
related debt using the straight-line method, which approximates the effective interest method. Intangible
assets are included in other non-current assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. See Note 8 for additional
discussién of goodwill and other intangible assets.

Investments in Privately Held Companies

The Company accounts for these investments at cost unless their value has been determined to be other
than temporarily impaired, in which case the investment is impaired to its current value. The investments
are included in other noncurrent assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The Company reviews the
investments periodically for impairment and makes appropriate reductions in carrying value when an other-
than-temporary decline is evident; however, for non-marketable equity securities, the impairment analysis
requires significant judgment. The Company evaluates the financial condition of the investee, market
conditions, and other factors providing an indication of the fair value of the investments. Adverse changes
in market conditions or poor operating results of the investees could result in additional other-than-
temporary losses in future periods. See Note 14 for further discussion of impairments that have been
recorded by the Company.

Assets Held for Sale

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,
the Company has classified as held for sale at December 31, 2004 and 2003, certain buildings, land,
machinery and equipment, and intangible assets that the Company was marketing and expected to sell
within one year. In addition, due to the sale of its optoelectronics operations in 2005, the balance sheets at
December 31, 2004 and 2003 were adjusted to reflect the assets and liabilities of this operation as held for
sale. There were no assets or liabilities remaining as of December 31, 2005. See Note 9 for further
discussion.

Research and Development Costs

The: Company charges research and development costs associated with the development of new
products .to expense when incurred. Engineering and design costs related to revenues on nonrecurring
engineering services billed to customers are classified as cost of goods sold.

Advertising Costs

The :Company expenses advertising costs as incurred.
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Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The Company has adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 130, Reporting Comprehensive Income. The
objective of SFAS No. 130 is to report all changes in equity that result from transactions and economic
events other than transactions with owners. The components of comprehensive income include unrealized
holding gains and losses on available-for-sale investments and unrealized gains and losses on cash flow
hedges which are included as a separate component of stockholders’ equity until realized. For the years
presented, other comprehensive loss approximates net income or net loss. The components of
comprehensive income (loss) were as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003
Netincome (I0SS) . .. oottt e $ 3,980 $(29,054) $(72,978)
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Net unrealized gain (loss) on cash flow hedges .......... (372) 326 “43)
Net unrealized loss on available for sale investments ..... (1,056) (2,092) (559)
Comprehensive income (1088) . ......... .. ... oo $ 2,552 $(30,820) $(73,580)

Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Basic earnings (loss) per share is calculated by dividing the net income (loss) for the period by the
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings (loss) per
share is calculated by dividing net income or net loss for the period by the weighted-average number of
common shares outstanding during the period, increased by potentially dilutive common shares (“dilutive
securities”) that were outstanding during the period. Dilutive securities include options granted pursuant to
the Company’s stock option plans and potential shares related to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan and
convertible subordinated debt. A reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted
earnings (loss) per share calculations for 2005, 2004 and 2003 is presented in Note 7.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method. This approach requires
the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for expected future tax consequences of temporary
differences between the financial statement carrying value and the tax bases of assets and liabilities.
Valuation allowances are established in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, to
reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to “more likely than not” be realized in future tax returns.
Tax law and rate changes are reflected in the period such changes are enacted.

The Company is subject to taxation from federal, state and international jurisdictions. A significant
amount of management judgment is involved with our annual provision for income taxes and the calculation
of resulting deferred tax assets and liabilities. The Company evaluates liabilities for estimated tax exposures
in jurisdictions of operation. These tax jurisdictions include federal, state and international tax jurisdictions.
Significant income tax exposures include potential challenges on foreign entities, merger, acquisition and
disposition transactions and intercompany pricing. Exposures are settled primarily through the completion
of audits within these tax jurisdictions, but can also be affected by other factors. Changes could cause
management to find a revision of past estimates appropriate. The liabilities are frequently reviewed by
management for their adequacy and appropriateness. As of December 31, 2005, the Company was not under
audit by the U.S. income taxing authorities. The Company concluded federal income tax audits for the U.S.
consolidated tax group on earlier years, most recently for 2000 and 2001. A 2001-2003 German tax audit of
our subsidiary, TriQuint Semiconductor GmbH, was completed during the third quarter of 2005. No
significant adjustments were required as a result of the resolution of the audit. Tax periods within the
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statutofy period of limitations not previously audited are potentially open for examination by the taxing
authorities. Potential liabilities associated with these years will be resolved when an event occurs to warrant
closure, primarily through the completion of audits by the taxing jurisdictions and/or the expiration of the
statutes of limitation. To the extent audits or other events result in a material adjustment to the accrued
estimates, the effect would be recognized during the period of the event. Management believes that an
appropriate liability has been established for estimated exposures.

The Company records a valuation allowance to reduce deferred tax assets when it is more likely than
not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets may not be realized. The Company considers future
taxable income and prudent and feasible tax planning strategies in determining the need for a valuation
allowance. The Company evaluates the need for a valuation allowance on a regular basis and adjusts the
balance as needed. These adjustments have an impact on the Company’s financial statements in the periods
in which they are recorded. In 2002, the Company determined that a valuation allowance should be recorded
against all of the Company’s deferred tax assets based on the criteria of SFAS No. 109, Accounting for
Income Taxes. As December 31, 2003, this valuation allowance was still in place.

Foreign Currency Remeasurement

The Company’s functional currency for all operations worldwide is the U.S. dollar. For foreign
operations with the U.S. dollar as the functional currency, monetary assets and liabilities are remeasured at
the period-end exchange rates. Certain non-monetary assets and liabilities are remeasured using historical
rates. Statements of operations are remeasured at an average exchange rate for the year. See Note 12 for
additional information about the Company’s foreign currency remeasurement activity.

Derivatives and Hedging

The Company enters into forward currency contracts for hedging purposes and accounts for derivatives
and hedging activities in accordance with SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Certain Hedging Activities, as amended, which requires that all derivative instruments be recorded on the
balance sheet at their respective fair values. The purpose of the forward currency hedges is to minimize the
variability of cash flows associated with the anticipated transactions being hedged. As changes in foreign
currency exchange rates impact the U.S. dollar value transactions, the fair value of the forward contracts
also changes, offsetting the foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations. Changes in the fair value of
derivatives are recorded in each period in income or other comprehensive income, depending on the types
and effectiveness of the hedges.

On ithe date the derivative contract is entered into, the Company designates the derivative as either a
hedge of: the fair value of a recognized asset or liability or of an unrecognized firm commitment (fair value
hedge), a hedge of a forecasted transaction or the variability of cash flows to be received or paid related to a
recognized asset or liability (cash flow hedge), a foreign currency fair value or cash flow hedge (foreign
currency hedge), or a hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation. For all hedging relationships, the
Company formally documents the hedging relationship and its risk-management objective and strategy for
undertaking the hedge, the hedging instrument, the item, the nature of the risk being hedged, how the
hedging instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting the hedged risk will be assessed, and a description of the
method of measuring ineffectiveness. This process includes linking all derivatives that are designated as fair
value, cash flow, or foreign currency hedges to specific assets and liabilities on the balance sheet or to
specific firm commitments or forecasted transactions. The Company also formally assesses, both at the
hedge’s inception and on an ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items. Changes in the fair-value
of a derivative that is highly effective and that is designated and qualifies as a fair-value hedge, along with
the loss or gain on the hedged asset or liability or unrecognized firm commitment of the hedged item that is
attributable to the hedged risk, are recorded in earnings. Changes in the fair value of a derivative that is
highly effective and that is designated and qualifies as a cash flow hedge are recorded in other
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comprehensive income to the extent that the derivative is effective as a hedge, until earnings are affected by
the variability in cash flows of the designated hedged item. Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
highly effective as hedges and that are designated and qualify foreign-currency hedges are recorded in either
earnings or other comprehensive income, depending on whether the hedge transaction is a fair-value hedge
or cash flow hedge.

Additional information about the Company’s use of derivative instruments is presented in Note 12.

Impairments of Long-lived Assets to be Disposed of

Long-lived assets, such as property, plant, and equipment, and purchased intangibles subject to
amortization, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is
measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows
expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash
flows, an impairment charge is recognized in the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds
the fair value of the asset. Fair value is determined by reference to market prices or through discounted cash
flow analysis, depending on the asset. Assets to be disposed of are separately presented in the balance sheet
and reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell, and are no longer
depreciated. The assets and liabilities of a disposed group classified as held for sale are presented separately
in the appropriate asset and liability sections of the balance sheet.

ESOP Compensation Expense

The Company has an employee stock ownership plan (“ESOP”), which is described in Note 17. The
Company accounts for the ESOP shares acquired prior to January 1, 1993 in accordance with Statement of
Position (“SOP”) 76-3, Accounting Practices for Certain Employee Stock Ownership Plans, which requires
compensation expense to be measured using the cost basis of the shares when the shares are committed to
be released to employees. Compensation expense associated with the allocation of the ESOP shares was
$195 for 2003. There was no allocated compensation expense for 2005 and 2004, as all shares were
allocated as of December 31, 2003.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has stock-based employee compensation plans, which are described in Note 17. During
the periods presented, the Company accounted for compensation cost related to employee stock options and
other forms of employee stock-based compensation plans other than ESOP in accordance with the
provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion (“APB”) No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees, and related interpretations. As such, compensation expense would be recorded on the date of
grant only if the current market price of the underlying stock exceeded the exercise price. During the
periods, the Company also applied SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, which
allowed entities to continue to apply the provisions of APB No. 25 and provide pro forma net income (loss)
and pro forma earnings (loss) per share disclosures for employee stock option grants as if the fair value
based method defined in SFAS No. 123 had been applied. Beginning in the first quarter of 2006, the
Company will be required to account for stock-based compensation under SFAS No. 123(R), Share-Based
Payment, which will require the Company to recognize the cost on its financial statements. See “Recent
Accounting Pronouncements” below for further discussion.
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The Company has applied the provisions of APB No. 25 in accounting for its plans through

December 31, 2005. As the fair value was equal to the grant price on the date of grant, no compensation
cost were recognized for its stock-based compensation awards in the financial statements. Had the Company
determined compensation cost based on the fair value at the date of grant for its stock-based compensation
awards under SFAS No. 123, the Company’s net loss would have been adjusted to the pro forma amounts
indicated in the following table:

;
i

Years Ended December 31,

) 2005 2004 2003
Net income (foss) asreported . ..............cvivnnn.... $ 3,980 $(29,054) $ (72,978
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense

determined under fair value based methods for all awards,

net oftax® . L (19,306) (37,042) (53,559)
Pro formanetloss ..........cc i $(15.326) $(66,096) $(126,537)
Earhings (loss) per share:

Basic—asreported .......... .. ... i $ 003 $§ (021 $ (0.54)

Diluted—asreported . . .......... . i $ 003 $ 2 $ (0.54)

Basic—proforma ............. ... ... . o $ (0.11) $ (048 $ (0.94)

Diluted—pro forma ...............ccciiirrniinn.... $ (0.11) $ (048 $ (0.94)

(0]

On November 11, 2004, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors approved the
acceleration of the vesting of those employee stock options, excluding option grants to the Company’s
board members and chief executive officer, with an option price equal to or greater than $9.0¢ per
share. As a result, approximately 832,793 options with varying remaining vesting schedules were
subject to the acceleration provision and became immediately exercisable. In addition, on
November 10, 2005, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors approved the acceleration
of the vesting of those employee stock options, excluding option grants to the Company’s board
members and chief executive officer, with an option price equal to or greater than $5.35 per share. As a
result of this acceleration, approximately 2,041,587 options with varying remaining vesting schedules
were subject to the acceleration provision and became immediately exercisable. The accelerations were
doné as part of a comprehensive review of the Company’s entire benefits program. The decision to
accelerate some of the Company’s options was made after review of the Company’s current stock
price, the competitive standpoint for the Company from the options, the benefit of the options to the
ernployees and the potential effects of SFAS No. 123(R). The Company’s stock price was $4.00 on
November 11, 2004 and $4.59 on November 10, 2005, as reported on the NASDAQ National Market.
The .total pro-forma stock-based employee compensation expense of $37,042 for 2004 included
approx1mately $4,223 of expense resulting from the November 11, 2004 acceleration. The total
pro-forma stock-based employee compensation expense of $19,306 for 2005 included approximately
$5,720 of expense resulting from the November 10, 2005 acceleration.
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The pro forma amounts reflected above may not be reflective of future disclosures since the estimated
fair value of stock options is amortized to expense as the options vest and additional options may be granted
in future years. The fair value of employee stock options and employee stock purchase plans was estimated
on the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following average
assumptions:

Years Ended December 31,
Stock Option Plans 2005 2004 2003
Risk free interestrates . . ... vttt 4.05% 3.43% 3.52%
Expected lifeinyears ........ ... . ... ... i 4-5 years 4-5years 5-6 years
Expected volatility . .......... .. . 76% 87% 93%
Per share weighted-average grant-date fair value ........... $1.96 $4.09 $3.19

Years Ended December 31,
Employee Stock Purchase Plans 2005 2004 2003
Risk free interestrates . ... ot 3.65% 1.89% 1.24%
Expected lifeinyears .......... ... .. oo 0-2 years 0-2years 0-2 years
Expected volatility .. ........... ... i 59% 60% 71%

Per share weighted-average grant-date fair value ........... $1.30 $1.84 $2.56

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

On December 16, 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS
No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment, which replaces SFAS No. 123, supersedes APB No. 25, and amends
SFAS No. 95, Statement of Cash Flow. Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company used the Black-Scholes
model for option expense calculation and presented pro forma disclosure of the statements of operations
effect in financial statement footnotes only under APB No. 25. However, under SFAS No. 123(R), effective
January 1, 2006 for the Company, pro forma disclosure of the statements of operations effects of share-
based payments will no longer be an alternative and all share-based payments to employees, including
grants of employee stock options, will be recognized in the financial statements based on their fair values.
In addition, companies must also recognize compensation expense related to any awards that are not fully
vested as of the effective date.

In March 2005, the Securities and Exchange Commission released Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB™)
No. 107, to provide guidance on SFAS No. 123(R). SAB No. 107 provides the Staff’s view regarding the
valuation of share-based payment arrangements for public companies. In particular, this SAB provides
guidance related to share-based payment transactions with non-employees, the transition from non-public to
public entity status, valuation methods (including assumptions such as expected volatility and expected
term), the accounting for certain redeemable financial instruments issued under share-based payment
arrangements, the classification of compensation expense, non-GAAP financial measures, first time
adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), the modification of employee share options prior to the adoption of SFAS
No. 123(R) and disclosure in Management’s Discussion and Analysis subsequent to adoption of SFAS
No. 123(R). SAB No. 107 was effective March 29, 2005. Compensation expense for the unvested awards
will be measured based on the fair value of the awards previously calculated in developing the pro forma
disclosures in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123. Currently, the Company expects the effect
of SFAS 123(R) and SAB No. 107 to be approximately $2 million (unaudited) in the first quarter of 2006
and between $7 million and $10 million (unaudited) for the full year. However the forecasted effect require
significant estimates as the full effect is dependant upon future grant activity, future forfeiture and exercise
rates, the Company’s stock price at grant date, the Company’s future stock price volatility, and other
variables. These factors could change substantially and have a material effect on the Company’s estimates.




In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, Inventory Costs—an amendment of ARB No. 43,
in an effort to converge U.S. accounting standards for inventories with International Accounting Standards.
FAS No. 151 requires idle facility expenses, freight, handling costs, and wasted material (spoilage) costs to
be recognized as current-period charges. It also requires that allocation of fixed production overheads to the
costs of conversion be based on the normal capacity of the production facilities. FAS No. 151 will be
effective for inventory costs incurred during fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. The Company
believes its current accounting policy complies with the requirements of the new standard and the adoption
of this standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

In addition, the EITF is currently discussing Issue No. 06-C, Accounting for Sabbatical Leave and
Other Similar Benefits Pursuant to FASB Statement No. 43, Accounting for Compensated Absences.
Statement No. 43 provides guidance for accounting for compensated absences and states that an employer
shall accrue a liability for employees’ compensation for future absences if certain conditions are met.
However, since certain compensated absences such as sabbatical leave do not typically vest, there is
uncertainty whether employee rights to the compensated absence accumulate and meet the conditions of
Statement No. 43. Currently, the Company does not accrue for sabbatical leave until the employee vests.
The Company does not believe the resolution of the issue will have a material impact on our financial
statements.

Note 3. 'Business Combinations

On Januvary 5, 2005, the Company completed the acquisition of TFR Technologies, Inc. (“TFR™), a
manufacturer and developer of thin film resonator filters for communication applications using bulk
acoustic wave (“BAW”) technology. The Company paid $2,920 in cash on the closing date and paid an
additional $2,263 in January 2006. The Company is also obligated to pay royalties on revenues it recognizes
from sales of TFR technology based products over the four year period subsequent to the closing date, up to
a maximum of $3,000. Additionally, the Company expects to incur employee retention charges of up to
$1,738, which will be expensed over a period of up to 18 months after the closing date. During 2005, the
Company incurred and expensed $1,654 of these employee retention charges.

The ‘Company accounted for the TFR acquisition as a purchase in accordance with SFAS No. 141,
Business Combinations. Details of the purchase price are as follows:

Cash paid at CloSING . . . ..o ittt et e $2,920
Cashdue withinone year .......... ...ttt oo, 2,263
ACQUISITION COSES . .\ v\ttt ettt ettt e e e e 166

TOtal . o e $5,349

The f)urchase price was allocated to TFR’s assets and liabilities based upon fair values as follows:

Cash . .. e

$ 370
Accounts receivables and other assetstt .......... ... . o oo 678
INVentOry(D L. e 419
Property, plant and equipment . . . ... ..ottt e 716
Intangible assets (NOte 8) . .. ot i i e 936
Goodwill (Note 8)1) L . .. e 2,689
Payables and other liabilities) ...... .. ... ... ... i (459)
101 $5,349

<1) Duririg the third and fourth quarters of 2005 and in accordance with SFAS No. 141, the Company
adjusted the purchase price allocation to correct the beginning balance of TFR’s assets and liabilities
on the date of purchase. The adjustments are reflected as an adjustment to goodwill.
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The results of operations for the TFR business are included in the Company’s consolidated statements
of operations for 2005. Pro forma results of operations have not been presented for this acquisition because
its effect was not material to the Company on either an individual or aggregate basis.

Note 4. Discontinued Operations

On January 2, 2003, the Company completed an acquisition of a substantial portion of the
optoelectronics business of Agere Systems Inc. (“Agere”) for $40,000 in cash plus acquisition costs and
certain assumed liabilities. The transaction included the products, technology and some facilities related to
Agere’s optoelectronics business, which includes optical active and passive components, optical amplifiers,
optical transceivers and other optical products. As part of the acquisition, the Company has also assumed
operation of the back-end assembly and test operations associated with these components at a leased facility
in Matamoros, Mexico. The Company acquired this business to expand its market and product offerings in
its optical networks business.

During the first quarter of 2005, the Company concluded that its optoelectronics operations were not
going to meet the revenue projections it made when the Company initially acquired the operations from
Agere in January 2003. Further, significant reductions in average selling prices combined with reduced
valuation for new technologies resulted in continued losses from these operations for the Company. As a
result, the Company announced the sale of these operations on April 14, 2005 and entered into an agreement
to sell its optoelectronics operations in Breinigsville, Pennsylvania and its optoelectronics subsidiary in
Matamoros, Mexico to CyOptics. With the sale, the Company believes it will benefit from focusing its
attention on its wireless handset, broadband communications, wireless base station, military system markets
and build upon its portfolio of GaAs semiconductor and filter products. The transaction allowed the
Company to exit its optoelectronics operation that manufactured indium phosphide (“InP”) optical
components. The sale, completed on April 29, 2005, was an asset sale including the products,
manufacturing equipment, inventory, the Mexican entity, related intellectual property rights and other assets
that constitute the operations that manufacture InP optical chips and components for the optical networking
market. CyOptics paid the Company the following consideration: $13,500 cash at closing, $4,500 of
CyOptics’ preferred stock (representing approximately 10% of the voting shares of CyOptics) and a
promissory note in the amount of $5,633, which was recorded net of a $2,292 discount to record the note at
current market rates. The value of the preferred stock was objectively determined based on the cash paid by
unrelated investors for the same series of preferred stock that the Company received in the transaction.
These investors contributed cash for their shares around the same time the Company completed its
transaction. The promissory note, which is senior to the preferred stock, was valued by considering a
number of factors, including a third-party appraisal. CyOptics also assumed certain liabilities associated
with the optoelectronics operations, such as warranty obligations to customers.

Separately, on July 13, 2005, TriQuint Optoelectronics, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
completed the sale of the land and building and related facilities occupied by the Company’s former
optoelectronics operations in Breinigsville, Pennsylvania to Hamilton TEK Partners, LP (“Hamilton”) for
$9,300. Pursuant to the sale, the Company assigned to Hamilton a lease it had executed with CyOptics for
approximately 90,000 square feet of the 849,000 square foot facility. The lease was executed on April 29,
2005 and was for a period of two years, with an option to renew. In association with the sale, the Company has
provided Hamilton with a guarantee on CyOptics’ obligation under the original lease term. The financial
impact of the sale, including the lease guarantee, and the sale of the operations resulted in a gain of $11,6201in

2005.

The Company’s consolidated financial statements have been reclassified for all periods presented to
reflect the Breinigsville, Pennsylvania and Matamoros, Mexico optoelectronics operations as discontinued
operations. The Company first reflected these operations as discontinued operations in the first quarter of
2005 when the Company decided to discontinue the operations. In accordance with GAAP, the revenues,
costs and expenses directly associated with the optoelectronics business have been reclassified as
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discontinued operations on the consolidated statements of operations for all periods presented. Corporate
expenses such as general corporate overhead and interest have not been allocated to discontinued
operations. Additionally, assets and liabilities of the Breinigsville, Pennsylvania and Matamoros, Mexico
operations have been reclassified as held for sale on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets for all
periods presented, and the Company’s consolidated statements of cash flows have been reclassified to
reflect the operations in Breinigsville, Pennsylvania and Matamoros, Mexico as discontinued operations for

all periods presented.

Operating results of the discontinued optoelectronic operations are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

: 2005® 2004 2003
REVEIMUES - .+« . ettt ettt ettt $10,000 $ 34,034 $ 36,452
Costof goods sold .. ... 8,295 37,750 42,117

Gross proﬁt ............................................... 1,705 (3,716) (5,665)

Total Operating eXpenses . . . .....vv ettt 349 33,101 23,840
Income (loss) from operations ..... ..., 1,356  (36,817) (29.505)

O T INCOME .« .t e e e e 23 (30) 68
Income (loss) from discontinued operations before income tax

EXPEISE .« o vttt e e e e e e 1,379  (36,847) (29437)
Gain on disposa1(2) ........................................... 11,620 S —
INCOME taX EXPEMSE . . ..o ottt ettt e 4,816 28 150

Net income (loss) from discontinued operations . .. ................ $ 8,183 $(36,875) $(29,587)

M As a result of the sale of the operations in April 2005, the results for 2005 represented only four

months of operations.

@  The gain on disposal for 2005 represented gain recorded on the sale of the Company’s optoelectronics
operations in Breinigsville, Pennsylvania and its optoelectronics subsidiary in Matamoros, Mexico to
CyOptics and the gain recorded on the sale of the Company’s Pennsylvania facility to Hamilton.
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discontinued operations on the consolidated statements of operations for all periods presented. Corporate
expenses such as general corporate overhead and interest have not been allocated to discontinued
operations. Additionally, assets and liabilities of the Breinigsville, Pennsylvania and Matamoros, Mexico
operations have been reclassified as held for sale on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets for all
periods presented, and the Company’s consolidated statements of cash flows have been reclassified to
reflect the operations in Breinigsville, Pennsylvania and Matamoros, Mexico as discontinued operations for
all periods presented.

Operating results of the discontinued optcelectronic operations are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

‘ 20050 2004 2003
REVENMUES . ... ittt it e e $10,000 $ 34,034 $ 36,452
Cost of 200ds SOIA . . ..o v\ttt e e 8,295 37,750 42,117

Gross Profit . ..o v e e 1,705 (3,716) (5,665)

Total:operating eXpenses . ... ....oviuieiin it 349 33,101 23,840
Income (loss) from operations ............ ... ... .. .. 1,356 (36,817) (29,505)

OtherinCome . . ..ottt ettt e e 23 (30) 68
Income (loss) from discontinued operations before income tax

EXPEIISE . . vttt ettt e e e e e e 1,379 (36,847) (29,437)
Gain on disposal®@ ... ... e 11,620 — —
Income tax eXpense .. ...t 4,816 28 150

Net income (loss) from discontinued operations . .................. $ 8,183 $(36,875) $(29,587)

(M As a result of the sale of the operations in April 2005, the results for 2005 represented only four
months of operations.

@ The gain on disposal for 2005 represented gain recorded on the sale of the Company’s optoelectronics
operations in Breinigsville, Pennsylvania and its optoelectronics subsidiary in Matamoros, Mexico to
CyOptics and the gain recorded on the sale of the Company’s Pennsylvania facility to Hamilton.
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The carrying value of the assets and liabilities held for sale of the discontinued optoelectronic

operations included in the consolidated balance sheets were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2005 2004
Assets held for sale:
Cash o $— $ 285
Accountsreceivable, et . ... . . e —_ 4477
Inventories, net ... ...t e e — 10,127
Other long-term assets™ .. ... ... ... .. . — 16,130
Prepaid eXpenses . . ... e — 637
Other aSSetS . .ot i e e e = 710
Assetsheldforsale ..........o e, $—_— $32,366@
Liabilities held for sale:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses . ............. ..., $— $14,685
Other labilities ... ... vt i i e e e - 372
Liabilitiesheldforsale ............ .. i, $_— $15,057

1)

@

Prior to the sale of the Company’s optoelectronics operations in Breinigsville, Pennsylvania and
Matamoros, Mexico, the Company had identified certain long-term assets as held for sale. These assets
included the Pennsylvania facility ($8,000), a variety of equipment used for optoelectronics fabrication
and assembly operations at the Pennsylvania and Mexico facilities, and intangible assets related to the
optoelectronics business. During 2005, the Company sold $15,630 of the assets it had classified as held
for sale as of December 31, 2004, including the Pennsylvania facility and $6,737 of long-lived assets
as a result of the sale of the operations to CyOptics. Additionally, the Company disposed of $234 of
the assets during the 2005 and transferred $266 of the assets classified as held for sale to the
Company’s Oregon, Texas and Florida operations and reclassified these assets as held and used at their
fair value.

At December 31, 2004, the Company also classified certain assets from its continuing operations as
held for sale. See Note 9 for further discussion.
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Note 5. Selected Financial Statement Information

December 31, December 31,

2005 2004
Accounts receivable, net:
Trade accounts receivable ... ... ... i $ 52,041 $ 36,400

Allowance for doubtful accounts . . ........... it (755) (746)
: $ 51,286 $§ 35,654

Inventories, net:

Raw materials . . ..o e e e $ 16,598 $ 19,617
WOTK-IM-PrOCESS . o oottt e e e 21,487 14,656

Finished g00ds ... ..o i e 11,299 15,346
‘ $ 49384 $§ 49,619

Property, plant and equipment, net:

Land &L e e $ 19,691 § 19,691
BUIldingS .ot 88,918 89,009
Leasehold improvements . ..................ooouuuenr.n.s P, 4,719 4,403
Machinery and equipment . ........... ..ttt 242,502 238,073
Furniture and fiXtUIES . . . ..ottt e 4,952 4,903
Computer equipment and software ............ ...ttt 20,777 21,042
ASSELS N PrOCESS . o\ v ev e nere e eanns e 15,115 3,961
396,674 381,082

Accumulated depreciation . .. ... .. e e e (205,885) (181,564)
| $190,789  $ 199,518

Accrued payroll:

Accrued payroll and tAXES . . ...\t $ 378 § 3,380
Accrued vacation and sickpay ........ ..o e 4,920 3,832
Self-insurance Hability . .. ... . o 714 716

$ 9423 § 7928

Other accrued liabilities:

Warranty liability ... ... e $ 702 % 806
Accrued interestpayable . ... ... e 2916 2,983
Accrued acqUISItion COSES . ..ottt n e e 3,722 -
L 13 1= 8,748 9,680

$ 16088 § 13,469

Note 6. Investments in Marketable Securities

The :cost, gross unrealized holding gains, gross unrealized holding losses and fair value of
available-for-sale investments by types and classes of security at December 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of
the following:

Gross Gross
unrealized unrealized
At December 31, 2005 Cost holding gains  holding losses  Fair Value
Available-for-sale:

U.S. treasury securities and obligations of

U.S government agencies . .. .......... $229,897 $— $(2,940) $226,957

Corporate debt securities and other ....... 76,215 = (180) 76,035

$306,112 $— $(3,120)  $302,992
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Gross Gross

unrealized unrealized
At December 31, 2004 Cost holding gains  holding losses  Fair Value
Available-for-sale:
U.S. treasury securities and obligations of
U.S government agencies . ............ $230,829 $15 $(1,819)  $229,025
Corporate debt securities and other ... .... 69,494 ___1 (187) 69,308
$300,323 §1_§ $(2,006)  $298,333
Investments by contractual maturity are as follows:
December 31, 2005 December 31, 2004
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Due or callable in one yearorless ............ $198,730 $197,377 §$109,151 $108,778
Due after one year through 42 months ......... $107,382 $105,615 $191,172 $189,555

Investments are considered to be impaired when a decline in fair value is judged to be other-than-
temporary. The Company employs a methodology that reviews specific securities in evaluating potential
impairment of its investments. In the event that the cost of an investment exceeds its fair value, the
Company evaluates, among other factors, the Company’s intent and ability to hold the investment and
extent to which the fair value is less than cost; the financial health of and business outlook for the investee;
and operational and financing cash flow factors. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, all unrealized holding
losses were considered to be temporary as the Company has the ability and intent to hold the investments
until a recovery of fair value. During 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Company had not recorded record any other-
than-temporary impairments on its investments.

Note 7. Net Income (Loss) Per Share

Net income (loss) per share is presented as basic and diluted net income (loss) per share. Basic net
income (loss) per share is net income (loss) available to common stockholders divided by the weighted-
average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted net income (loss) per share is similar to basic net
income (loss) per share, except that the denominator includes potential common shares that, had they been
issued, would have had a dilutive effect. Further, under SFAS No. 128, Earnings per Share, continuing
operations is the governing measure for the determination of antidilution.

The following summarizes the elements included in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings (loss)
per share for 2005, 2004 and 2003:

Years Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003
Net income (loss) from continuing operations . . ................... $ (4,203) § 7,821 $(43,391)
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations ................... 8,183 (36,875)  (29,587)
$ 3,980 $(29,054) $(72,978)
Weighted-average shares outstanding—Basic . .................. 139,566 136,936 133,920
Dilutive securities . ........... — 2,024 —
Weighted-average shares outstanding—Dilutive ................ 139,566 138,960 133,920
Basic Earnings (Loss) per Share:

Net income (loss) per shares from continuing operations .......... $ (0.03) $ 006 $ (032
Net income (loss) per shares from discontinued operations ........ 0.06 0.27) 0.22)

$ 003 $ (©021) $ (054

Diluted Earnings (Loss) per Share:
Net income (loss) per shares from continuing operations .......... $ (003) $ 006 $ (032
Net income (loss) per shares from discontinued operations . ....... 0.06 0.27) 0.22)

$ 003 § (021) $ (0.54)




For 2005, 2004 and 2003, options and other exercisable convertible securities under the treasury stock
method totaling 20,762 shares, 16,727 shares and 16,600 shares, respectively, were excluded from the
calculation as their effect would have been antidilutive.

Note 8.- Goodwill and Other Acquisition-Related Intangible Assets

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, the Company is required to
perform impairment tests of goodwill at least annually or when events and circumstances warrant. The
Company performs this test in the fourth quarter of each year unless indicators warrant testing at an earlier
date. At December 31, 2005, there were no events or circumstances warranting impairment and therefore
the Coni}pany did not record any impairments of intangible assets during the year.

Information regarding the Company’s other acquisition-related intangible assets is as follows:

Useful December 31, 2005 December 31, 2004

Life Accumulated Net Book Accumulated Net Book
(Years) _ Gross  Amortization _ Value Gross  Amortization _ Value

Non-Amortizing:

Goodwill ................ $3139 $§ — $3139 % 450 § — $ 450
Amortizing:
Patents, trademarks and
fother .................. 2-10 8,352 6,839 1,513 7,416 5,605 1,811
: Total intangible assets . . . . $11,491 $6,839 $4,652 $7,866 $5,605 $2,261

During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company recorded $2,689 of goodwill and $936 of
amortizing intangible assets associated with the Company’s acquisition of TFR (see Note 3). The fair value
of the intangible assets acquired as part of the acquisition, which were given useful lives that range from
less than one year to ten years, were determined by management, which considered a number of factors
including an evaluation by an independent appraiser. The goodwill was recorded as the excess of the total
consideration paid for TFR, less the net assets identified.

Amortization expense of intangible assets was approximately $1,234, $1,831 and $2,534 for 2005,
2004 and 2003, respectively. Amortization expense related to intangible assets at December 31, 2005 in
each of the next five fiscal years and beyond is expected to be as follows:

2000 . e e e $ 390
2007 . 258
2008 . e 239
20009 . e 239
2010 .. e 149
Thereafter ...... ... ... . .. . 238

$1,513

Note 9. Assets and Liabilities Held for Sale

As of December 31, 2005, the Company had no assets classified as held for sale. However, at
December 31, 2004, the Company had $32,366 of assets related to its optoelectronics operations and $1,524
of assets related to its continuing operations classified as held for sale. These balances at December 31,
2004 were comprised of the following:

e The Company held $32,366 of assets related to the Company’s optoelectronics operations in
Breinigsville, Pennsylvania and Matamoros, Mexico. The operations were sold in April 2005 and in
accordance with GAAP, the Company classified the assets as held for sale on the Company’s
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consolidated balance sheet for all periods presented. As of December 31, 2005 the Company had
successfully disposed of these assets (see Note 4 for further discussion).

+ As of December 31, 2004, the Company held for sale $850 of assets obtained from the liquidation of
an investment the Company had in a privately held company. During the first quarter of 2005, the
Company sold $725 of the assets and disposed of $33 of the assets, resulting in a net gain of $5. The
Company also reclassified $62 of the assets during the period as held and used at their fair value in
accordance with GAAP. During the second quarter of 2005, the Company disposed of the remaining
$30 of assets and during the third quarter of 2005 sold intellectual property acquired from the
liquidation for a gain of $954. As of December 31, 2005, the Company had disposed of these assets.

¢ As of December 31, 2004, the Company held for sale $674 of equipment located at the Company’s
Texas facility. During the first quarter of 2005, the Company transferred these assets back into
production at their fair value in accordance with GAAP. As a result of the transaction, the Company
recorded an impairment charge of $31 during the first quarter of 2005. As of December 31, 2005,
none of these assets remained classified as held for sale.

For 2004, the Company reclassified $1,092 of assets held for sale to held and used at their carrying
value. The reclassification was the result of the assets being transferred to other locations to replace or
enhance existing capacity at the location. No adjustment was necessary for depreciation expense for the
period of time the assets were classified as held for sale as the assets had never been placed into service.
Additionally during 2004, the Company classified $14 of assets at its Texas facility as held for sale and sold
$60 of assets classified as held for at this facility. No gain or loss was recorded on these asset sales. Further,
in the fourth quarter of 2004, the Company recorded an impairment of $320 on a portion of the assets at its
Texas facility classified as held for sale (see Note 14).

As December 31, 2004, the Company also held $15,057 of liabilities classified as held for sale. These
liabilities are the liabilities recorded by the Company’s former optoelectronics operations in Breinigsville,
Pennsylvania and Matamoros, Mexico. In accordance with GAAP, these liabilities were classified as held
for sale on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets for all periods presented due to the sale of these
operations in the second quarter of 2005 (see Note 4). As December 31, 2005, there were no liabilities
remaining as held for sale.

Note 10. Convertible Subordinated Notes

In February and March 2000, the Company completed the sale of $345,000 aggregate principal amount
of 4% convertible subordinated notes due March 1, 2007, raising approximately $333,900 net of fees and
expenses. The notes are unsecured obligations of the Company, subordinated to all of the Company’s
present and future senior indebtedness and do not contain significant restrictive covenants. Interest on the
notes is payable in arrears semiannually on each March 1 and September 1. The notes are convertible, at the
option of the holder, at any time prior to redemption or maturity into shares of the Company’s common
stock at a conversion price per share of $67.80, subject to certain adjustments. Financing costs related to the
issuance of the debt are capitalized as “Other noncurrent assets, net” on the Company’s condensed balance
sheet, and are amortized over the term of the related debt using the straight-line method which approximates
the effective interest method. Since issuance, the Company has made various repurchases of the outstanding
bonds, reducing the balance outstanding. The following schedule summarizes the repurchases during the
years presented:

Book value of notes  Cost of notes Gain on Bond issuance costs
Year of repurchase repurchased repurchased  repurchase written-off
2005 .. $ 5,000 $ 4,844 $114 $ 42
2004 ... .. $45,000 $43,875 $539 $586

2003 ... $  — $ — $ — $ —




At December 31, 2005, the Company had $218,755 of convertible subordinated notes outstanding and
net capitalized issuance costs of $1,173, as compared to $223,755 of convertible subordinated notes
outstanding and $2,228 of net capitalized issnance costs at December 31, 2004. During 2005, 2004 and
2003, the Company amortized $1,013, $1,104 and $1,233, respectively, of the capitalized issuance costs.
The fair value of the outstanding convertible subordinated notes at December 31, 2005 and 2004 was

$212,192 and $217,042, respectively.

Note 11. Income Taxes

Dofnestic and foreign pre-tax income (loss) for 2005, 2004 and 2003 were as follows:

Domestic
Foreign

Years Ended December 31,

2005

2004

2003

$(16,949) $(9,905) $(59,315)

9.173

18,123

14,230

$ (7,776) $ 8,218 $ 45,085

Income tax expense (benefit) for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, consisted of the

following:

Curtent:
Federal ...... ... .. .. .
N 17
Foreign

Deferred:
Federal ... .. . . . . i i e
State ...... .. ... e e
Foreign ... .
Tax benefit allocated to discontinued operations ...........

Net income tax expense (benefit) .........................

Years Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003

$ (405) $(335) § 741
— (53) (1,516)
1,648 785 (519)
1,243 397 (1,694)
(4.816) — —
(4,816) — —
$(3,573) $ 397 $(1,694)

The ‘effective tax rate differed from the federal statutory income tax rate for the years ended

December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2003 were as follows:

Tax computed at the federal statutoryrate ..................
State income tax, net of federal effect .....................
Increase in valuation allowance
Non-deductible merger costs .............covuivrieen....
Current benefit of tax exemption of Costa Rican subsidiary .. ..
Subpart F income
TRS SEMIEMENT . . ..\ vttt et
Tax benefit allocated to continuing operations from discontinued
OPEIALIONS . ot vttt ittt e e
Other, including credits, tax-exempt interest income and
dividendincome ........ .. ... . ... i

Effective tax rate
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Years Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
(35.0% 35.0% (35.0)%
0.9 04) (1.8)

16.1 (95.4) 36.3
21.2 9.6 —
(25.0) (39.1) (8.6)
44.0 99.6 4.9
— — 4.5
(61.8) — —
(6.3) (4.5) 4.1)
(45.9)% 4.8% (3.8)%
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The tax effects of significant items comprising the Company’s deferred tax asset and liability as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2005 2004
Deferred tax assets:

Amortization and depreciation ........... ... ..o iiiiiiia.... $ 37,359 $§ 44,303
Capital research and development expenditures . . ............... 2,955 —
Reserves and allowances . ...t i 514 1,773
Accrued liabilities .. . ... . o 2,127 3,342
Impairment of investment in other companies .................. 3,813 5,697
TVENIOTY ..ot e 6,109 5,385
Net operating loss carryforwards . ............ ... ... . ... 57,018 45,230
Capital loss carryforwards ......... ... ... . i 5,763 6,185
Research and development, and othercredits . . ................. 1,866 1,807
O hET « .o e 645 (128)

Total deferred tax asset . ...t e 118,169 113,594
Valuation allowance . ......... . (118,169) (113,594)

Net deferred tax @sset .. ...ttt $ — 3 —

The Company recorded a tax benefit from continuing operation of $3,573 and $1,694 for 2005 and
2003, and a tax provision from continuing operations of $397 for 2004. The provision for 2005 and 2064
does not reflect a benefit for current year losses due to a full valuation allowance against deferred tax assets.
The net change in total valuation allowance for the deferred tax assets for 2005 was an increase of $1,252.
For 2004 and 2003 the net change in the valuation allowance for the deferred tax assets was a net decrease
of $7,843 and a net increase of $16,370, respectively.

In assessing if the deferred tax assets are realizable, SFAS No. 109 establishes a more likely than not
standard. If it is determined that it is more likely than not that deferred tax assets will not be realized, a
valuation allowance must be established against the deferred tax assets. The ultimate realization of deferred
tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which the
associated temporary differences become deductible, Management considers the scheduled reversal of
deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this
assessment.

Although the Company anticipates future sustained profitability, SFAS No. 109 requires that recent
historical operating performance and income projections be considered in assessing if the deferred tax assets
are realizable. The more likely than not assessment was principally based upon the tax losses generated
during 20035, 2604 and 2003.

At December 31, 2005, the Company had approximately $185,711 of net operating loss carryforwards
to offset future U.S. taxable income, expiring from 2006 through 2025, $107,965 for state tax purposes,
expiring 2007 through 2025. Additionally, during 2003 the Company generated $16,248 of capital loss
carryforwards to offset future capital gains, which will expire in 2008. The Company has placed a full
valuation allowance against the tax effect of all net operating and capital loss carryforwards.

For 2005 and 2004, the Company generated $2,129 and $3,142 of net operating loss carryforwards
resulting from stock option transactions, which were offset by a valuation allowance. The portion of the
valuation allowance for deferred tax assets for which subsequently recognized tax benefits will be applied
directly to additional paid in capital is approximately $5,147. The Company will record benefits to
additional paid in capital as the net operating iosses are realized pursuant to SFAS No 109.

During 2003, the Company settled an IRS tax examination relating to the 2000 and 2001 tax years,
which resulted in the reduction of net operating loss carryforwards by $2,292 and $10,105, respectively.
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The Company provided for deferred taxes on the non-repatriated earnings of its subsidiary in Costa
Rica prior to fiscal 2000. This subsidiary benefited from a complete exemption from Costa Rican income
taxes through 2003 and 75% exemption thereafter through 2007. In 2000, the Company determined that its
investments in Germany and Costa Rica were permanent and that its earnings are considered indefinitely
reinvested; and, accordingly, no provision for U.S. federal and state income taxes has been provided for
2005, 2004 or 2003. In the event the Costa Rican or German subsidiary remits these earnings to the U.S.
parent, the earnings may be subject to U.S. federal and state income taxes. The estimated unrecognized
deferred income tax liability on these unremitted earnings at December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 was
$43,348, $46,285 and $44,300, respectively.

On Qctober 22, 2004, the American Jobs Creation Act was signed into law, which included a deduction of
85% of certain foreign earnings that are repatriated, provided certain restrictions are met. The Company may
elect to apply this provision to qualifying earnings repatriations in either 2005 or 2006. The Company evaluated
the effects of the repatriation provisions. The range of possible amounts that the Company considered for
repatriation under the provision was between zero and $145 million. The related potential range of income tax
was between zero and $6.1 million. The Company chose not to repatriate earnings due to the 15% dividend
withholding tax and the 15% taxable income portion of the dividend which could not be offset with net operating
loss carryforwards.

Note 12. = Foreign Currency Exchange

The Company’s functional currency for all operations worldwide is the U.S. dollar. For foreign
operations with the U.S. dollar as the functional currency, monetary assets and liabilities are remeasured at
the period-end exchange rates. Certain non-monetary assets and liabilities are remeasured using historical
rates. Statements of operations for each month are remeasured at the prior month’s balance sheet rate. To
manage its exposure to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations, the Company enters into derivative
financial instruments, including hedges. The ineffective portion of the gain or loss for derivative instruments
that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is immediately reported as a component of other income
(expense), net. The effective portion of the gain or loss on the derivative instrument is initially recorded in
accumulated other comprehensive income as a separate component of stockholders’ equity and
subsequently reclassified into earnings in the period during which the hedged transaction is recognized into
earnings. For 2005, the Company reported foreign currency gains from remeasurement and hedging activity
of $4, compared $2,125 for 2004 and foreign currency losses from remeasurement of $205 for 2003. The
gains recorded in 2004 were primarily due to the revaluation of a euro based non-trade receivable related to
the repayment of the contingent earnout deposit from the Infineon acquisition (see Note 18 for further
discussion).

As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, the notional amoynts of the Company’s currency exchange
contracts outstanding were approximately $3,385 and $39,028, respectively. The notional value of the
contracts designated as cash flow hedges at December 31, 2005 and 2004 were approximately $3,385 and
$7,047, respectively. The contracts designated as balance sheet hedges at December 31, 2004 were
approximately $31,981. There were no contracts outstanding at December 31, 2005 designated as balance
sheet hedges.

Note 13. Reduction in Force

During 2005, the Company recorded a charge to earnings of $341 for severance related costs
associated with a reduction in force of approximately 130 employees at the Company’s Florida and Costa
Rica operations. This reduction in force was made due to declining quarterly revenues from these operations
and the Company’s ongoing effort to align costs and capacity with its levels of production and revenues. As
of December 31, 2005, a liability of $3 remained for the unpaid portion of these severance costs and was
included in “Accrued payroll” on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets.

During, 2004, the Company accrued and recorded as a charge to earnings severance costs of $429
associated with a reduction in force of approximately 30 employees assigned to its Texas operations. The
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charge was a result of the Company’s ongoing efforts to align costs and Cépaéity with its levels of
production and revenue. As of December 31, 2004, no liability remained for the unpaid portion of these
severance costs. s

Due to continued excess design engineering capacity, the Company. adopted a plan to reduce its
operating costs and streamline its available capacity in June 2003. As part of this plan, the Company
determined that it would terminate 17 employees associated with its design center in Munich, Germany.
During 2003, the Company accrued and recorded as a charge to earnings $1,763 for expected severance
costs related to the plan as an operating expense. As of December 31, 2003, no liability remained for the
unpaid portion of these severance costs.

The following table details the severance activity for periods presented:

Years Ended December 31,

2005 2004 _ 2003
Beginning severance liability ............... ... ... ... .. $ — $ — &
Severance charges incurred ........ ... . i 341 429 1,763
Severance disbursements . ............. it (338) (429) (1,763)
Ending severance liability . . .............. . .. $ 3 § — § —

Note 14. Impairments
Impairments of Long-Lived Assets and Intangibles

During fiscal years 2005 and 2004 the Company recorded an impairment charges of $31 and $710,
respectively, on long-lived assets to reduce the carrying value of these assets to their current market values,
The impairments were due to business decisions, current and projected market conditions resulting in excess
capacity and reduced cash flow projection on these assets. Factors incorporated in the projections of future
cash flows included reduced revenue projections of future years compared to prior projections, continued
excess capacity, the continuation of the trend toward the movement of production to offshore facilities and
independent third-party valuations. These factors, combined with further reductions in the demand for, and
value of, used semiconductor fabrication equipment resulted in additional impairments over and above those
recorded. The impairments taken during 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

* The Company recorded an impairment charge of $31 in the first quarter of 2005 related to an
impairment of certain fabrication equipment to its fair market value. The equipment was classified as
held for sale at the time of the impairment.

* An impairment charge of $320 was recorded during the fourth quarter of 2004 related to certain
excess GaAs wafer manufacturing equipment that were classified as held for sale during 2002. The
impairment reduced the carrying value of these assets to their market values as determined by
management, which considered a number of factors including an independent appraisal. As these
assets were classified as held for sale, there was no reduction in depreciation expense.

* An impairment charge of $390 was recorded in the third quarter of 2004 related to leasehold and
other assets associated with the closure of the Company’s operation in Tianjin, China. The closure
was made as the Company’s primary customer in the region no longer required a manufacturing
presence in China.

There were no impairments recorded during 2003.




Impairments of Investments in Other Companies

During 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Company recorded charges of $155, $1,189 and $2,387, respectively,
related to the deteriorating financial condition of certain investments in privately held technology
companies. The investments were in small companies whose valuations declined significantly based on
factors such as current equity offerings, projected financial conditions, decline in market value of similar
companies, or cessation of operations. The charges were derived through analysis of such companies’
current operating results, anticipated future results and discussions such companies’ representatives. The
following table provides a summary of the impairments during each of the years presented:

Year ‘ Description Impairment

2005 « Impairment of investment in two privately held companies due to deteriorating
: financial condition and/or dilution of equity,net ............... ... ... ... ... ... $ 55

* Impairment of investments in a privately held companies based on deteriorating
financial conditions . ... 100
Total impairments in 2005 . ... ... o $ 155

2004 - Impairment of investment in an optoelectronics company that ceased operations, net
. of expected proceeds from recovered assets ... ........... . i $ 652

* Impairment of investments in two privately held companies based on deteriorating
financial conditions and/or reduction in the Company’s pro-rata ownership ......... 537
Total impairments in 2004 . ... ... .. ... $1,189

2003  Impairment of investments in privately held semiconductor companies based on
i deteriorating financial conditions . ......... ... .. e $1,392
+ Impairment of investments in privately held companies that ceased operations . .. ... 270

» Impairment of investment in privately held optoelectronics company based on its
deteriorating financial condition . .......... . ... ... i e 725
Total impairments in 2003 . ... ... ... e $2,387

Note 15." Commitments and Contingencies
Legal Matters

In February 2003, several nearly identical putative civil class action lawsuits were filed in the United
States District Court for the Middle District of Florida against Sawtek, Inc., the Company’s wholly owned
subsidiary since July 2001. The lawsuits also named as defendants current and former officers of Sawtek
and the Company. The cases were consolidated into one action, and an amended complaint was filed in this
action on July 21, 2003. The amended class action complaint was purportedly filed on behalf of purchasers
of Sawtek’s stock between January 2000 and May 24, 2001, and alleged that the defendants violated
Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act, as well as Securities and Exchange Commission
Rule 10b-5, by making false and misleading statements and/or omissions to inflate Sawtek’s stock price and
conceal the downward trend in revenues disclosed in Sawtek’s May 23, 2001 press release. On October 6,
2005, the: Middle District of Florida dismissed the complaint with prejudice.

On January 18, 2006, the Company received notice that a suit had been filed against it for patent
infringement in the United States District Court, Southern District of California on December 9, 2005. The
plaintiff, Stratedge Corporation, contends that the Company violated the patent laws of the United States by
manufacturing, marketing and selling power amplifiers in packages that infringe upon patents held by the
plaintiff. The Company filed an answer on February 7, 2006 denying the plaintiff’s allegations. The plaintiff
seeks a preliminary and permanent injunction against further infringement, full compensation for all
damages attributable to the infringement in an amount according to proof at trial but not less than a
reasonable royalty, the destruction of all products that the plaintiff believes infringes upon its patent,
reasonable attorney’s fees, costs of the suit, and assessment of interest among other items. The Company
denies infringing upon the plaintiff’s patent and intend to vigorously defend itself in this action.
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On February 13, 2006, the Company received notice that 2 complaint had beeDd filed pursuant to a
preach of fiduciary duty under ERISA statutes, filed in the U.S. District Court, Middle District of Florida
against TriQuint, its whouy-owned subsidiary Sawtek, Inc- The Sawtek, Inc. Employee Stock Ownership
and 401(K) plan (the “plan”) and The gawtek, Inc. Employee Stock Ownership and 401(k) Plan
Administxative Committee. The complainant, 2 paﬁiCipam in the Sawtek retirement plan and former
employee of Sawtek, contends the Company failed to act 1t his best interest in exercising the appropriate
and Tequisite skill, care, prudence and diligence in administering the Plan and the distribution of Plan

this action.

Lease Commitments

The Company leases certain equipment, office and manufacturing space under operating leases and
certain computer equipment under capital 1eases: Lease terms range from approximateiy one to 10 years:
expiring at various dates through 2015 with options tO renew at varying terms- Commitments for minimum
lease payments under non-cancelable leases a8 of December 31, 2005 were as follows:

O 51,527
006 0 e 1,252
00T o 307
008 oo 257
2009 oo 166
010 99

$4,108

Future minimum lease payments have not been reduced by future Minimum sublease rentals of $253
under an operating lease. Rent expense under operating Jeases for 2005, 2004 and 2003 was $2,039, $1,675
and $2.,090, respectively.

In August 2000, the Company acquired 2 420,000 square foot wafer fabrication facility located 11

Richardson, Texas for $87.0 million. The acquisition was financed by 2 variable interest entity (“VIE")
sponsored by 2 financial institution in which the Company contributed $73.0 million and a lender

contributed $14.0 miltion. In September 2002, the Company completed an improvemem to the Richardson,

Company was required 10 make lease payments through August 2005 or purchase the property: On July 16
2003, the Company terminated the lease O its Richardson Texas facility and took ownership of it. In
association with the (ermination of this 1ease the Company released the $17.4 million on its palance sheet
as «Restricted long-term assets” a8 of December 31, 2002 © the financial institution sponsoring the lease
and incurred various legal fees associated with the title transfer. In addition, of the $88.1 million showd on
the Company s pbalance sheet 85 “Other investment as of December 31, 2002, represem‘mg the Company s
previous participation in the V1 financing 10 the facilitys $46.1 million was reclassified as “property, plant
and equipmem” and $42.0 million was recorded as noncash charge (o earnings during 2003 for costs
associated with the termination of this lease. Management considered 2 aumber of factors, including third-

arty yaluations, in determining the noncash charge and the market value of the building and land of
$2.0 million. Of the $82.0 million assigned 1© the fixed assets: 8.0 million was assigned © the value of
the 38 acres of 1and associated with the puilding. The remaining 74 0 million Was assigned 10 the building
and equipment. The Company recorded these assets at faif market value at the date of the lease (erminaton.
The difference petween the 1ease buyoul amount and the market value was recorded as @ charge 10 garning$
in the second quarter of 2003. This charge i8 classified as “1ease termination costs i

Statements of Operations- There were 1O related charges during 2005 of 2004, respectiveiy.
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Note 16.; Concentration of Credit Risk
Suppliers

The Company currently obtains some components, equipment and services for their products from
limited or single sources. The Company purchases these components, equipment and services on a purchase
order basis, does not carry significant inventories of components and does not have any long-term supply
contracts with these vendors. Requirements of the Company are relatively small compared to silicon
semiconductor manufacturers. Access to sufficient capacity from these vendors in periods of high demand
may be limited, as the Company often does not account for a significant part of the vendor’s business. If the
Company were to change any of its sole or limited source vendors, it would be required to requalify each
new vendor. Requalification could prevent or delay product shipments that could negatively affect its results
of operations. In addition, reliance on these vendors may negatively affect the Company’s production if the
components, equipment or services vary in reliability or quality. If the Company is unable to obtain timely
deliveries of sufficient quantities of acceptable quality or if the prices increase, results of operations could
be harmed.

Credit Risk

The Company performs periodic credit evaluations of certain customers and generally does not require
collateral; however, in certain circumstances, the Company may require letters of credit from its customers.
All of the Company’s customers are in the communications markets.

Foreign Currency Exchange

At times the Company may engage in foreign currency exchange rate forward contracts to lock in the
cost of foreign currency for the purchase of equipment or raw materials denominated in foreign currencies.
While these forward contracts are subject to fluctuations in value from movement in the foreign currency
exchange rates, such fluctuations are offset by the change in value of the underlying exposures being
hedged.

The Company is not a party to leveraged derivatives and does not hold or issue financial instruments
for trading purposes. Foreign currency contracts are entered into with major financial institutions with
investment grade credit ratings, thereby decreasing the risk of credit loss. Gains and losses on instruments
that hedge firm commitments are deferred and are included in the basis of the underlying hedged item.

Note 17. ' Stock, Stock Options, Employee Benefit Plans and Rights
Common Stock

The Company has authorized capital of 600,000,000 shares, $.001 par value. Common Stock. Holders
of the Common Stock are entitled to one vote for each share of Common Stock on all matters submitted to a
vote of the Company’s shareholders.

Stock Option Plans

The Company had two stock option plans under which shares were available for grant at December 31,
2005: the 1996 Stock Incentive Plan (the “1996 Plan”) and the 1998 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan (the
“1998 Plan” and together with the 1996 Plan, the “Plans”). The 1996 Plan provides for the grant of
incentive stock options to officers, outside directors and other employees of the Company or any parent or
subsidiary; The 1998 Plan provides for the grant of non-qualified stock options to non-officer employees of
the Company. The stock plans were amended in 2002 to provide that options granted thereunder must have
an exercise price per share no less than 100% of the fair market value of the share price on the grant date.
Further, with respect to any participant who owns stock possessing more than 10% of the voting rights of
the Company’s outstanding capital stock, the exercise price of any incentive stock option granted must
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equal at least 110% of the fair market value on the grant date. In 2005, the 1996 Plan was further amended
to permit the award of restricted stock, restricted stock units, stock appreciation rights, performance shares
and performance units in addition to the grant of stock options. In addition, the amendment provided
specific performance criteria that the Plan administrator may use to establish performance objectives, a
formula mechanism that provides for automatic grants to the non-employee chairman of the Board and gave
management the ability to (i) reprice any outstanding stock option or stock appreciation right after it has
been granted (other than pro rata adjustments to reflect stock dividends and other corporate events) and
(i1) cancel any outstanding stock option or stock appreciation right and replace it with a new stock option or
stock appreciation right with a lower exercise price, unless approved by TriQuint’s stockholders. The terms
of all grants under the Plans may not exceed 10 years.

The following table presents shares authorized, available for future grant and outstanding under each of
the Company’ plans at December 31, 2005 (in thousands):

Authorized Available Qutstanding

1987 Stock Incentive Program . ......................... 11,387 — 34
1996 Stock Incentive Program . ........... ... ... ... .... 36,050 10,496 20,851
1998 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan .................... 4,000 1,455 1,283
Sawtek Stock Option Plans® ... ....... ... .. ... ... ..., 2,603 —_ 1,272

Total .o e 54,040 11,951 23,440

M Includes the acquired Sawtek Inc. Second Stock Option Plan and the Sawtek Inc. Stock Option Plan
for Acquired Companies

Subject to the discretion of the Board of Directors, outstanding options granted to new employees
under the Plans generally vest and become exercisable at the rate of 28% at the end of the first year, and
thereafter at a rate of 2% per month and generally expire up to 10 years after the grant date. Options granted
to current employees typically vest and become exercisable between the third and fourth year following the
grant date, or as approved by the Compensation Committee, and typically expire up to 10 years after the
grant date.

The following summarizes the Company’s stock option transactions for 2005, 2004 and 2003 (in
thousands, except per share data):

Years Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
average average Average
Shares  exercise price Shares exercise price Shares Exercise Price

Outstanding at beginning of year . . . .. 25,852 $11.30 24,257 $1221 19,168  $14.94
Granted ....................... 3,124 $ 3.27 5,108 $ 5.53 7265 $ 4.14
Exercised ..................... (362) $ 297 (1,253) $ 3.60 (528) $ 3.03
Cancelled ..................... (5,174) $ 940 (2,260) $12.32 (1,648) $11.36
Outstanding atend of year ......... 23,440 $10.78 25,8352  $11.30 24,257  $12.21
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The following table summarizes information concerning stock options outstanding and exercisable at
December 31, 2005 (in thousands, except per share data):

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted-Average o
‘ Number Remaining Number
Range of Qutstanding Contractual Weighted-Average Exercisable Weighted-Average
Exercise Price (in thousands) Life-Years Exercise Price (in thousands) Exercise Price
$ l.91 -$ 5.00 9,773 - 6.16 $ 3.38 5,661 $ 3.35
$ 5.01-%10.00 6,541 " 6.89 $ 6.72 5,836 $ 6.81
$10.01 - $15.00 2,358 "5.18 $11.43 2,358 $11.43
$15.01 - $25.00 2,073 4.17 $21.11 2,073 $21.11
$25.01 - $61.44 2,695 ﬂ_b_2_ $38.92 2,695 $38.92

$ 191-3%61.44 23,440 591 $10.78 18,623 $12.58

Employee Benefit Plans

The Company has a qualified retirement plan under the provisions of Section 401(k) of the Internal
Revenue Code covering substantially all employees in the U.S. Participants in this plan may defer up to the
maximum annual amount allowable under IRS regulations. Company contributions to the 401(k) Plan were
approximately $1,059, $543 and $733 in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The Company also has profit
sharing and other benefit plans covering substantially all employees worldwide. The Company made
contributions under these plans of approxnnately $674, $508 and $432 for 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectwely

The:! Company also has an Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”), pursuant to which participating
employees authorize the Company to withhold compensation and to use the withheld amounts to purchase
shares of the Company’s Common Stock at 85% of the lower of the fair market value on the first day of a
two year offering period or the last day of each six month exercise period. During 2005, 2004 and 2003,
approximately 1,944, 612, 2,116,969 and 1,712,583 shares, respectively, of the Company’s Common Stock
were purchased under the ESPP. As of December 31, 2005, 455,388 shares were reserved for issuance
under the ESPP. In addition, the Company has an employee stock ownership plan (“ESOP”) for employees
of its Sawtek, Inc. subsidiary. Under the ESOP, the Company made contributions of approximately $209 in
2003 and allocated 831,599 shares to participants’ accounts during the same year. There was no ESOP
expense in- 2005 and 2004 and no shares were allocated during this period. The shares allocated to the ESOP
in 2003 were. acquired by the Plan in 1991, As of December 31, 2003, all shares under the ESOP Plan had
been allocated

Dunng the fourth quarter of 2004, the (,ompany s Board of Directors approved a non-qualified
deferred compensation plan (the “Compensation Plan”). Under the Compensation Plan, employees who are
eligible-to participate and members of its Board of Directors, are provided with the opportunity to defer a
specified percentage of their cash compensation which the Company will be obligated to deliver on a future
date. At the time of deferral, the Company allocates the deferred monies to a trust account that is invested at
the participants election. The amount of compensation to be deferred by each participating employee or
board member will be based on elections by each participant and adjusted for any positive or negative
investment results from investment alternatives selected by the participant under the Compensation Plan.
The llab1hty for the deferred compensation is included in “Other long-term liabilities” on the Company’s
balance sln;et and was $505 at December 31, 2005 and $99 at December 31, 2004. The value of the funds
allocated to the trust by the Company was $505 at December 31, 2005 and $99 at December 31, 2004, and
included in “Other noncurrent assets, net.” For 2005 and 2004, the total participant deferrals were $401 and
$97, respectlvely '

The Company also has a pension obligation related to its German subsidiary, acquired as a result of the
Company’s. purchase of the Infineon Technologies AG, GaAs business in 2002. The pension liability
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becomes payable when the covered employees reach the age of 60 or 65 and the Company has elected to
secure the liability through a reinsurance program supported by the Company. The Company has included
the obligation to deliver the pension obligation in the “Other long-term liabilities” line item on our
consolidated balance sheet and the insurance receivables in the “Other noncurrent assets, net.” The value of
the obligation and receivable at December 31, 2005 was $2,055 and $2,005, respectively.

Preferred Shares Rights Plan

On June 30, 1998, the Company adopted a Preferred Shares Rights Agreement (the “Agreement”).
Pursuant to the Agreement, rights were distributed as a dividend at the rate of one right for each share of
TriQuint common stock, held by stockholders of record as of the close of business on July 24, 1998. The
rights expire on June 29, 2008, unless redeemed or exchanged. Initially, under the Agreement, each right
entitled the registered holder to buy one share of preferred stock for $20.83. On April 5, 2000, the Company
approved an amendment to the Agreement to increase the per unit price to $200.00. These prices are
reflective of all stock splits. The rights will become exercisable only if a person or group (other than
stockholders currently owning 15% of the Company’s common stock) acquires beneficial ownership of
15% or more of the Company’s common stock, or commences a tender offer or exchange offer upon
consummation of which such person or group would beneficially own 15% or more of the Company’s
common stock.

Note 18. Infineon Receivable

As part of the Infineon purchase in 2002, the price paid by the Company included a €10,000
(approximately $9,920) contingent earnout deposit. The earnout deposit required certain sales goals to be
met for products acquired as part of the acquisition for Infineon to retain the deposit. If the sales goals were
not met by September 30, 2004, Infineon was required to reimburse the Company the entire amount. At the
time of the purchase, the earnout deposit was recorded by the Company as a non-monetary long-term asset
at its historical value of $9,920. The Company continued to monitor the sales of the products associated
with the deposit to determine if the expense has been incurred. On September 30, 2004, the Company
determined that the sales goals had not been met and notified Infineon that repayment of the earnout deposit
was required by December 31, 2004, in accordance with the terms of the purchase agreement. During 2004,
the Company reclassified the deposit as a non-monetary short-term asset and when the earnout period
expired at the end of the third quarter of 2004, the Company reclassified the deposit as a monetary asset and
recorded a foreign currency gain of $2,480 on the remeasurement. On November 16, 2004, the Company
received payment on the receivable.

Additionally, in the fourth quarter of 2002, the Company recorded a receivable of approximately
$3,526 as a result of the €3,000 reduction in the purchase price. On November 16, 2004, the Company
received payment on the balance.

Note 19. CyOptics Subordinated Promissory Note and Preferred Stock

On April 29, 2005, the Company completed the sale of its optoelectronic operations in Breinigsville,
Pennsylvania and its optoelectronics subsidiary in Matamoros, Mexico to CyOptics. The terms of the sale
included $4,500 of preferred stock representing approximately 10% of the voting shares of CyOptics on the
closing date and a subordinated unsecured promissory note for $5,633 which was discounted $2,292 to
reflect the current market rate for similar debt of comparable companies. The promissory note is an interest-
bearing note at the rate of the lesser of (i) 8.5% and (ii) 3.0% plus the one-year LIBOR, as determined on
the date of the note and redetermined on each subsequent April 1 thereafter. At the time of the transaction,
the Company reviewed current market rates for similar debt, analyzed CyOptics’ financial condition and
obtained an independent valuation analysis on the debt. As a result, the Company determined the market
rate for similar debt was approximately 20% and thus recorded a discount on the original value of the note
to record it at a current market rate. The initial payment of the note is due April 1, 2007. The $4,500 of
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preferred stock obtained in the transaction represented approximately 10% of the capital stock of CyOptics
on a fully diluted basis on the closing date and is be held by the Company at cost. The stock is
non-redeemable Series F preferred stock and ranks prior and in preference to other series of preferred stock.
The value of the preferred stock was determined based upon the price paid by unrelated parties for the same
Series F preferred stock on the same date as the closing of the sale of the optoelectronics operations.

Note 20: Segment Information

The Company complies with Statement of SFAS No. 131, Disclosures About Segments of an
Enterprise and Related Information. SFAS No. 131 establishes standards for the reporting by public
business enterprises of information about operating segments, products and services, geographic areas and
major customers. The method for determining what information to report is based on the way that
management organizes the segments within the Company for making operating decisions and assessing
financial performance.

The Company’s chief operating decision maker is considered to be the President and Chief Executive
Officer (the “CEO”). The Company’s CEO evaluates both consolidated and disaggregated financial
information in deciding how to allocate resources and assess performance. The CEO receives certain
disaggregated financial information for the Company’s four markets, including, wireless handsets,
broadband, base station and military; and three geographic units, including, Oregon, Texas and Florida.

The Company has aggregated its businesses into a single reportable segment as allowed under SFAS 131
as each of the businesses have similar long-term economic characteristics, including average gross margin. In
addition, the businesses are similar in regards to (a) nature of products and production processes, (b) type of
customers and (c) method used to distribute products. Accordingly, the Company describes its reportable
segment as high performance components and modules for communications applications. Al of the
Company’s revenues result from sales in these product lines.

The Company’s revenue by business market (as a percentage of total revenues) were as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

: 2005 2004 2003

‘Business market:

© Wirelesshandsets . ... . 43% 44% 46%
Broadband ........... ... ... ... 21% 22% 22%
Base Station . ........ i e 21% 19% 14%
Military ... e 15% 15% 18%

100%  100%  100%

Revenues are reported in the geographic areas where they originate. Transfers from the U.S. to Costa
Rica are made on a basis intended to reflect the market price of the products. This market price is above cost
and is consistent with rules and regulations of taxing authorities. Such transfers are eliminated in the
consolidated financial statements. To date, substantially all sales have been denominated in U.S. dollars.
The functional currency for the Costa Rican operations is the U.S. dollar as sales, most material cost and
equipment are denominated in the U.S. dollar. The impact of fluctuations of the local Costa Rican currency
is not considered significant and the foreign exchange rate is not hedged. Selected financial information by
geographical area is summarized below:
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Years Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
Revenues from continuing operations (origin):
United States . ... $294,787 $270,038 $222,063
CostaRica...... ... ... i i, 23,637 80,547 84,438
Transfers /Eliminations ............... ... .. ... ..... (23,637) (37,614) (30,681)

$294,787 $312,971 $275,820

Operating Income (Loss) from continuing operations:

United States .. ... .ot $(17,850) $ 1,419 $(54,784)
CostaRica......... oo i 7,399 8,741 10,002
Transfers / Eliminations ....... ... ... — — (99)

$(10,451) $ 10,160 $(44,881)

Long-Lived Assets:
United States .. ......... i $171,769 $173,996 $189,261

CostaRica..... ... . 23672 27,783 24,650
$195,441 $201,779 $213911

Revenues outside of the U.S. were approximately $199,181 in 2005 of which revenues to China were
approximately $67,412. In 2004, revenues outside of the U.S. were approximately $181,825, of which
revenues to China and Korea were approximately $47,915 and $37,657, respectively. In 2003, revenues
outside of the U.S. were approximately $155,346, of which revenues to China and Korea were
approximately $42,208 and $35,241, respectively. There were no other foreign regions to which revenues
represented 10% or more of total revenues for the periods presented.

Revenues from customers representing approximately 10% or more of total revenues for each period as
follows (as a percentage of total revenues):

Years Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
Motorola . ... 13% 12% 16%
Nokia . ... e (M 10% m

() During the period presented, Nokia did not represent more than 10% of the Company’s total revenues

Related receivables from Motorola at December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 were 17%, 11% and 8% of
trade accounts receivable, respectively. Related receivables from Nokia at December 31, 2004 were 5% of

trade accounts receivable.

Note 21. Subsequent Events

On February 13, 2006, the Company received notice that a complaint had been filed pursuant to a
breach of fiduciary duty under ERISA statutes, filed in the U.S. District Court, Middle District of Florida
against TriQuint, its wholly-owned subsidiary Sawtek, Inc., The Sawtek, Inc. Employee Stock Ownership
and 401(k) Plan (the “Plan”) and The Sawtek, Inc. Employee Stock Ownership and 401(k) Plan
Administrative Committee. The complainant, a participant in the Sawtek retirement plan and former
employee of Sawtek, contends the Company failed to act in his best interest in exercising the appropriate
and requisite skill, care, prudence and diligence in administering the Plan and the distribution of Plan
benefits to the complainant. The Company denies any wrongdoing and intends to vigorously defend itself in
this action.
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In the fourth quarter of 2005, the Company announced a plan to repurchase up to $25.0 million of the
Company’s Common Stock beginning after our December 31, 2005 earnings release in the first quarter of
2006. During the first quarter of 2006, the Company initiated the plan and as of March 10, 2006, had
repurchased approximately 663,165 shares at an average cost of $4.64. The repurchased shares have been
retired upon purchase.

Note 22.; Summarized Quarterly Data (Unaudited)

i Fiscal Year 2005 Quarters®

1st® 2nd@ 3rd® 4th® Tetal
“ (In thousands, except per share data)

Revenues ..............ciiiiiinninnennon. $66,965 $67,927 $75,235 $ 84,660 $294,787
Grossprofit .................. .. ....... ... $17.313  $19,147  $23,589 $ 24,292 §$ 84,341
Income (loss) from continuing operations . . ... ... $(7,615) $(1,525) $ 2,053 $ 2,884 3 (4,203)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations . . . ... (130) 7,734 522 57 8,183
Netincome (1088} . ... .ot $(7,745) $ 6,209 $ 2575 $ 2941 $ 3,980
Basic earnings (loss) per common share®

Continuing operations ..................... $ (0.06) $ (001) § 002 $ 002 $ (0.03)

Discontinued operations ................... 0.00 0.05 0.00 0.00 0.06
‘ $ (006) $ 004 $ 002 $ 002 §$ 0.03

Diluted earnings (loss) per common share(
Continuing operations ..................... $ (0.06) $ (0.01) $ 002 $ 002 $ (003
Discontinued operations ................... 0.00 0.05 0.00 0.00 0.06

$ (006) $§ 004 $ 002 $ 002 $ 0.03

Fiscal Year 2004 Quarters

‘ 1st™ 2nd® 3rd® 4tha0 Total
Revenues ......... ... ... ... ... .. ... .. ..., $79,734 $84,628 $81,569 $ 67,040 $312,971
Grossprofit ...........ciiiiiiii $27,031 $27,860 $24,692 $ 19,972 $ 99,555
Income (loss) from continuing operations . ....... $ 2645 $ 3970 $ 4,781 §$ (3,575 §$ 7,821
Income (loss) from discontinued operations . .. ... (2,643) (3,683) (8,868) (21,681) (36,875)
Netincome (10SS) . ..o $ 2§ 287 $(4,087) $(25,256) $(29,054)
Basic earhings (loss) per common sharet

Continuing operations ..................... $ 002 $ 003 $ 003 $ (0.02) $ 006
Discontinued operations ................... (0.02) 0.03) (0.06) (0.16) 0.27)

: $ 000 $ 000 $ (0.03) $ (0.18) $ (0.21)
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share(®

Continuing operations ..................... $ 002 $ 003 $ 003 $ (002 $ 006

Discontinued operations ................... (0.02) (0.03) (0.06) (0.16) (0.27)

$ 000 $ 000 $ (0.03) $ (0.18) $ (0.21)

M Eami’hgs per share is computed individually for each of the quarters presented; therefore, the sum of
the quarterly earnings per share may not necessarily equal the total for the year.

@ During each of the quarters in 2005, the Company incurred approximately $414 of acquisition related
charges associated with the Company’s TFR acquisition on January 5, 2005.

®  During the first quarter of 2005, the Company recorded a gain on the disposal of equipment of $206.
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During the second quarter of 2005, the Company recorded a reduction in workforce charge of $362, an
impairment charge on an investment in another company of $100 and a gain from the retirement of
debt of $114.

During the third quarter of 2005, the Company recorded a gain of $954 related to the sale of
intellectual property acquired from the liquidation of an investment.

During the four quarter of 2005, the Company recorded a gain on the disposal of equipment of $305.
During the first quarter of 2004, the Company recorded a reduction in workforce charge of $295.

During the second quarter of 2004, the Company recorded a reduction in workforce charge of $133, an
asset impairment charge of $389 and a gain from the retirement of debt of $539.

During the third quarter of 2004, the Company recorded a gain on the $2,372 primarily related to the
revaluation of a euro based non-trade receivable.

During the four quarter of 2004, the Company recorded an impairment on long-lived assets of $321
and an impairment charge from investments in other companies of $785.
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Schedule 11

TRIQUINT SEMICONDUCTOR, INC.
CONSOLIDATED VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
(in thousands)

Allowance for

| Dcubtful
Date Accounts
Balance at December 31, 2002 . ... . $ 3,867
Additions/(deductions) charged/(credited) to costs and expenses . ..................... 700
DedUCHIONS . ...t (3.412)
Balance'at December 31, 2003 .. ..ot 1,155
Additions/(deductions) charged/(credited) to costs and expenses . ..................... (397)
Deduqtions ................................................................ (a2
Balance at December 31,2004 ... ... ... ... oo $ 746
Additions charged to costs and EXpPenses . . . ..ottt e 42
DedUCtionS . ... e (33)
Balance “at December 31, 2005 ... $ 755
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Report on Financial Statement Schedule and
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
TriQuint Semiconductor, Inc.:

Under date of March 14, 2006, we reported on the consolidated balance sheets of TriQuint Semiconductor,
Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 and the related consolidated statement of
operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2005 as contained in the annual report on Form 10-K for the year 2005. In connection with
our audits of the aforementioned consolidated financial statements, we also audited the related consolidated
financial statement schedule as contained in the annual report on Form 10-K for the year 2005. This
financial statement schedule is the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on this financial statement schedule based on our audits. In our opinion, such financial
statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a
whole, present fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statement (Nos. 33-75464, 333-02166,
333-08893, 333-08891, 333-31585, 333-36112, 333-39732, 333-48883, 333-66707, 333-74617, 333-81245,
333-81273, 333-39730, 333-61582, 333-65850, 333-89242, 333-102085, 333-105701, 333-115809, 333-
120407 and 333-125269) on Form S-8 of our reports dated March 14, 2006, with respect to the consolidated
balance sheets of TriQuint Semiconductor, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the
related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in
the three-year period ended December 31, 2005, and the related financial statement schedule, management’s
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005 and the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, which reports appear in
the December 31, 2005 annual report on Form 10-K of TriQuint Semiconductor, Inc.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Portland, Oregon
March 14, 2006
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TriQuint Semiconductor, Inc.
Supplement to Proxy Statement and 2005 Annual Report to Stockholders

Pléase be advised that the graph titled “Revenue from Wireless Handset Products by Air
Interface Standard” on the inside cover of the Proxy Statement and 2005 Annual Report
to'Stockholders is corrected to read as follows: “CDMA 63%; GSM 37%”

Revenue from Wireless Handset
Products by Air Interface
Standard*

GSM CDMA

PLEASE RETAIN THIS SUPPLEMENT TO THE PROXY STATEMENT AND 2005
ANNUAL REPORT TO STOCKHOLDERS
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